
  

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Tuesday, February 19, 2013 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
5:30 p.m. Executive Session (Community Center Meeting Room) Pursuant 

to ORS 192.660.1(2)(h) to consult with counsel concerning the 
legal rights and duties of a public body with regard to current 
litigation or litigation likely to be filed. 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting (Community Center – North End) 

 
CALL TO ORDER   7:00 PM   Mayor Vigil 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for 
Recognition” form.  Forms are on the table at the back of the room. 
Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to 
attend all meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a 
Public Hearing is scheduled. 

 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. February 4, 2013 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which are routine in 
nature and for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any item placed on the 
Consent Agenda may be removed at the request of any council member prior to the time a vote is taken.  All 
remaining items of the Consent Agenda are then disposed of in a single motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This 
motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will then poll the council members individually by a roll call 
vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the consent Agenda is then voted on individually by roll call 
vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more detailed staff reports, letters, resolutions, and other supporting 
materials.  A citizen wishing to review these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. Third Avenue, Stayton, 
or the Stayton Public Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 
 
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting. If you require special accommodations, please contact Alissa Angelo, 
Deputy City Recorder at (503) 769-3425. 
 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 3 
February 19, 2013 



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 3 
February 19, 2013 

PUBLIC HEARING – None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Ordinance No. 949, Comprehensive Plan       Action 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Resolution No. 895, City of Stayton Personnel Manual     Action 
a. Staff Report – Alissa Angelo 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS 
Finance Director’s Report – Christine Shaffer     Informational 
a. January 2013 Monthly Finance Department Report 

 
Police Chief’s Report – Rich Sebens      Informational 
a. January 2013 Statistical Report  
 
Public Works Director’s Report – Dave Kinney     Informational 
a. January 2013 Operating Report 
b. Downtown Area Sidewalk Repairs 

 
Pool Manager’s Report – Rebekah Meeks      Informational 
a. January 2013 Monthly Operating Report 

 
Library Director’s Report – Louise Meyers     Informational 
a. January 2013 Activities/Statistics 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 

 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR         
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
a. Adoption of City Council Goals 
 
 
ADJOURN 



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 3 
February 19, 2013 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

FEBRUARY 2013
Monday February 18 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF PRESIDENTS’ DAY 
Tuesday February 19 City Council Executive Session 5:30 p.m. Community Center Meeting Room 

Tuesday February 19 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday February 20 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Wednesday February 20 Public Safety Commission 6:00 p.m. City Hall Conference Room 

Monday February 25 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

MARCH 2013
Monday March 4 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday March 5 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday  March 8 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Saturday March 9 Tri 101 Workshop 10:00 a.m. Stayton Family Memorial Pool 
Tuesday March 12 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday March 18 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday March 20 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday March 25 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

APRIL 2013
Monday April 1 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday April 2 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday April 9 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday  April 12 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday April 15 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday April 17 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday April 29 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

MAY 2013
Monday May 6 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 7 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday May 7 Budget Committee 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Thursday May 9 Budget Committee 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Friday  May 10 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday May 13 Budget Committee 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 14 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Wednesday May 15 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday May 20 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 28 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

 



City of Stayton Project Status Report

# Project Description Dept Project Status Project Dates

Goal 1 - Improve Public Infrastructure

1 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF)      
Phase 1 Improvements Public Works

$11.3 Million WWTF Plant Upgrade.  Slayden Construction Group (SCG).  Construction 
completed.  Warranty period initiated August 29, 2012. City operating plant.  Retainage 
withheld until Sludge Dryer operating problems are resolved:  seals & consistent operating 
process. Keller working with Slayden & Therma-Flite (supplier).   

Project Completed.  Warranty Period.  

2 Facilities Inventory & Maintenance Schedule Public Works

Prepare a maintenance/management program for city-owned buildings and facilities. 2012 
projects included: HVAC & Roof Replacements at City Hall & Police Dept.  New roof and 
repairs in old food bank.  100% complete.    2013 projects include develop Facility Inventory 
& Maintenance schedules for Library & Comm Ctr.

City Hall/PD HVAC & Roofing completed.

4 10th Avenue Street & Drainage Improvements 
(E. Santiam to Hospital) Public Works Construction 100% complete.  Detention Basin planting completed - November 2012.    

Warranty period started 10-25-2012. Project Completed.  Warranty Period.  

5 2012 Street Maintenance Activities Public Works

Summer 2012 maintenance work:  gravel streets, pavement patching, crack-sealing 
completed. 6th Avenue overlay at St. Mary Catholic School & church.    2013 projects will 
include gravel shoulder maintenance, crack seal or slurry seals in selected areas, 4th Avenue 
repairs/overlay. 

2012 Projects Completed.                
Planning for 2013.

6 Sidewalk Maintenance Program Public Works

City Council approved Sidewalk Maintenance Program in September 2012.  Downtown is the 
1st focus area.  Initial Public Information mailing to downtown property owners in November 
2012.  Inventory & specific notices of hazardous sidewalks were mailed to individual prop 
owners in January 2013. SW repairs will occur in 2 fiscal years: May/June 2013 & summer 
2013.  Program focuses on fixing safety hazards not solving all aesthetic issues.

Complete Downtown Sidewalk Repairs      
by August 1, 2013

7
Shaff Rd Grant Apps - Safe Routes to School 
and ODOT Bicycle/Pedestrian grant 
application 

Public Works
City application to ODOT passed Step 1 review for a Bike/Ped&TE grant for Shaff Rd near 
Stayton Middle School.   City Engineer John Ashley prepared a Project Report and City filed a 
Transportation Enhancement/Bike Ped grant application on December 13, 2012.  

Final TE/Bike Ped App was filed           
December 13, 2012

8 E. Jefferson Water Main Replacement Public Works

Install a new 8" water main in E. Jefferson St. (10th Avenue to 15th Avenue).  Project 
replaces old 1", 2" and 4" mains with a new 8" ductile iron main. New services will be installed 
from the meter at each house to the new water main. Project design complete.  Waiting for 
Oregon Health Division - Drinking Water Section approval before proceeding with 
construction.  Work will be completed by May 1, 2013.

Ready to start construction.               
Complete by May 1, 2013.

Goal 2- Support & Encourage Economic Development 

1 Comprehensive Plan Update Planning

Comp Plan Update Committee - review Comp Plan, city regulations and economic incentives. 
Committee completed DRAFT Stayton Comprehensive Plan  update.  Planning 
Commission approved and forwarded to the City Concil in September 2012.  Council hearing 
held in October 2012.  Council still reviewing the updated plan.

City Council Review                     
February - March, 2013

2 Review and update city regulations affecting 
economic development.

PW, Planning & 
Administration

Comp Plan Committee & City Council recommended staff review Systems Development 
Charges.  Public Works/Planning Staff has started its review of the Parks, Transportation, 
Sewer and Water SDCs.  The Parks Board reviewed the Parks SDC analysis on Tuesday, 
February 5, 2013 & suggested several revisions. 

SDC Reviews by April 15, 2013.

3 Review economic development incentives Planning & Admin

Look for opportunities to support local businesses & industries.  Enterprise Zone applies to 
Wilco Rd. industrial area and provides tax incentives for Capital Investments.  Master Craft 
started operations in Stayton in 2012.  Alumax expansion plans on Planning Commission 
agenda 2-25-2013.  McDonald's expansion approved and under construction. 

On-going 

City of Stayton Project Status Report
File Name:  Copy of Project Status Rpt  February 2013 Updated:  2/13/2013 Page 1 of 2



City of Stayton Project Status Report

# Project Description Dept Project Status Project Dates

4 Downtown Revitalization Proposals Planning

Planning staff working with Chamber Downtown Committee on small projects.   Parks Board 
looking at options for new trash receptacles and other street furniture.  The City Council 
requested staff City investigate grant opportunities for a street light retrofit and  development 
of a long term lighting plan.  Put on hold until FY 2013-2014. 

Small projects - Ongoing

Goal 3- Build Partnerships with Community Organizations and other Government Entities

1 Partnership Efforts All Depts Leaders Roundtable Meetings - 2nd Friday of Month (Covered Bridge Café)             
Commissioners Breakfasts - 2nd Tuesday of Month (Covered Bridge Café)                               Ongoing   

2 Pool Upgrades w/ Santiam Endowment and 
Friends of the Pool Swimming Pool

Santiam Endowment funded pipe replacement and surge tank rehabilitation in the 
Mechanical Room at the Stayton Pool.  Work completed in September 2012.  Locker rehab, 
HVAC upgrades and various maintenance items still to be completed in 2013 and beyond.  
See Local Option Levy for other approved pool projects.

Piping & Surge Tank Rehabilitation    
Completed in September 2012.  

Goal 3- Build Partnerships with Community Organizations and other Government Entities (continued)

3 Volunteer Opportunities All Depts.
Current list of volunteer opportunities is posted on City web site.   2012 I-SERVE projects 
completed in Comm Ctr Park/Library area, Museum and Jordan Bridge repainting.   
Community Service Workers continue to perform park maintenance.

Next I-Serve Date - June 22, 2013

Goal 4- Enhance Stayton's Livability by Supporting Parks, Library, Pool and Public Safety

3 Pioneer Park Rehab Public Works

Final Pioneer Park design plan for redevelopment completed.  $60K for park improvements in 
Local Option Levy.  With levy approval the Parks Board will file OPRD Local Govt Grant 
application in April 2013.  Pioneer Park Master Plan improvements before Planning 
Commission February 25, 2013.

File Grant Apps in 2013. 

4 Community Center / Kitchen Remodel Finance / PW Develop proposal & financing pkg to renovate, modernize or expand the Community Ctr On hold.

Library Outreach Storyteller & Library 
Foundation Fundraising Library

Library Outreach Storyteller in various public and private schools/pre-schools funded for 4th 
year.  Collins Foundation, Friends of Library, Northwest Natural Gas & Larry Smith awarded 
$18,000 in challenge grants to the Library Foundation for Crown Jewel Society fundraising 
effort.  SPLF met its goal by raising $24,000 in matching gifts as of Decembver 31, 2012.   
Crown Jewel Society membership increased from 115 to 185 people.  See SPLF and City 
partnership for Library meeting room enhancemenst (below). 

Ongoing   

5 Library Lighting & ADA Upgrades Library

The library is looking for grant funds to add energy efficient lighting in the main reading room.  
CCIS & Trust Management Grants awarded.  Capitol Door installed ADA door openers in 
Library Mtg room & Community Center.  Manning Concrete poured a wider sidewalk & HC 
ramp at library.  New bike rack installed in front of library.  New entry lighting for Library 
meeting room and interior improvements by Spring 2013.  

90% completed.                        
Balance of projects in April 2013.

7 Public Safety Code Amendments Police Emergency Operations Plan.   PD Staff & MC Emergency Mgt staff to review a final "DRAFT" 
before submittal to City Council. To Council - 2013

Goal 5- Promote Honest, Efficient & Effective City Government

1 Encourage Business Friendly Attitude All Depts. Alison McKenzie, GROW, assisting city staff on improving on city's community relations and 
customer service approach.  On-going

4 Community Open House Town Hall Meetings Mayor/Council Hold Community Town Hall Meetings.   Next Town Hall in Spring 2013 after Council Goal 
Setting Session. Spring 2013

City of Stayton Project Status Report
File Name:  Copy of Project Status Rpt  February 2013 Updated:  2/13/2013 Page 2 of 2



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 3 
February 4, 2013 

STAYTON CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

February 4, 2013 
 
CALL TO ORDER 7:00 p.m. Mayor Vigil 

 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL 

Mayor Scott Vigil Councilor Jennifer Niegel 
Councilor Henry Porter Councilor Catherine Hemshorn 
Councilor Brian Quigley Councilor Emily Gooch 
 

STAFF 
Don Eubank, City Administrator 
Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
Rich Sebens, Police Chief 
Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 
Louise Meyers, Library Director, excused 
David Kinney, Public Works Director 
Rebekah Meeks, Aquatics Manager, excused 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney, excused  
Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 

 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC – None  
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
a. Additions to the Agenda: None. 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.: None. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. January 22, 2013 City Council Meeting Minutes 

 
MOTION: From Councilor Gooch, seconded by Councilor Hemshorn, to adopt the 

Consent Agenda. Motion passed 5:0. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Ordinance No. 950, Pacific Power Franchise 
a. Staff Report:  Ms. Shaffer stated this proposed Ordinance was brought before Council at the 

January 22, 2013 meeting. It is being brought back before the City Council for a second 
consideration. 

 
b. Council Deliberation: Councilor Quigley asked how Marion County had been so incorrect 

in their projection of a 2% increase of assessed valuation. Ms. Shaffer stated the projection 
was for the County as a whole, and the final percentage amount depends on the specific city. 

 



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 3 
February 4, 2013 

Councilor Porter inquired if staff had received any comments or feedback from the public 
regarding this proposed increase. Ms. Shaffer stated there had been none received.  
 
Councilor Niegel asked if the City had gotten a response from the City of Sublimity. Ms. Shaffer 
stated yes, and indicated the City of Sublimity is at 3.5% with Pacific Power. 
 
Councilor Quigley explained that he has struggled with his decision on this Ordinance. He spoke 
about recent issues addressed in the local newspaper and he doesn’t want to see further reduction 
in staff, especially at the Police Department. He indicated he will be supporting the Ordinance 
this evening.  
 
c. Council Decision:  
 

MOTION: From Councilor Niegel, seconded by Councilor Hemshorn, to approve 
Ordinance No. 950, increasing the Pacific Power franchise rate to 7%.  

 
Upon roll call vote, the motion passed 5:0.  

 
NEW BUSINESS – None  
 
STAFF / COMMISSION REPORTS – None 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC – None 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Mr. Eubank gave a brief reminder about the upcoming Community Leaders meeting on Friday, 
February 8th and the City Council work session scheduled for Monday, February 11th.  
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR 
a. Mayor Vigil asked the Council to ratify the appointment of John Dowdy to the Planning 

Commission.  
 
Councilor Gooch expressed her appreciation that Mr. Dowdy attended tonight’s meeting. 
 

MOTION: From Councilor Niegel, seconded by Councilor Quigley, to ratify the 
appointment of John Dowdy to the Planning Commission. Motion passed 
5:0.  

 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL – None 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
ADJOURN 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:11 p.m. 
 



 
 

  
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 3 
February 4, 2013 

 
APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 19TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2013, 
BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL.  
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 
 
Date:    By:  

A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 
 
Date:    Attest:  

 Don Eubank, City Administrator 
       
Date:    Transcribed by:  
 Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
 



Land Use File 06-06/12 

2012 Comprehensive Plan Update 

City Council Staff Report 

Page 1 of 3 

 

City of Stayton 
 

 

Planning and Development Department 
 

Mailing address:  362 N. Third Avenue·  Stayton, OR 97383 

Office location: 311 N. Third Avenue 

Phone:  (503) 769-2998  ·  FAX: (503) 767-2134 

Email:  dfleishman@ci.stayton.or.us 

www.staytonoregon.gov 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Scott Vigil and City Council Members 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Planning and Development Director 

 DATE: February 13, 2013 

 SUBJECT: Comprehensive Plan Update, Enactment of Ordinance 494 

 120 DAYS ENDS:  not applicable 

 

 

ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is finalizing the public hearing process on the draft 2012 Update of 

the Stayton Comprehensive Plan, adoption of a new Official Zoning Map, and a number of legislative 

text amendments to the Land Use and Development Code and enactment of Ordinance 949 to adopt 

these documents. 

BACKGROUND 

The City Council held a public hearing on the draft comprehensive plan, Official Zoning Map and text 

amendments to the Land Use and Development Code on October 15.  At the close of the hearing, the 

City Council kept the record open for written submissions and began its review of the plan and 

deliberations.  The Council reviewed the draft Plan at a number of City Council meetings and a 

February 11 work session. 

During the course of the deliberations the City Council discussed a number of changes to the draft 

Plan, voting on them when the deliberations were at a regular meeting of the Council.  I have kept a 

log of the changes decided upon by the Council and have revised Ordinance 949 to include these 

changes. 

One of the changes to draft Plan that the City Council had decided upon during a December 2012 

discussion was the removal of the A.G Gardner House from the list of historic resources in the City.  

Whereas former Councilor Loftus is the owner of the Gardner House, made the motion to remove the 

property from the list, and participated in the vote without declaring a conflict of interest, staff 

recommends that the City Council revisit that decision.   



Land Use File 06-06/12 

2012 Comprehensive Plan Update 

City Council Staff Report 

Page 2 of 3 

The revised draft of Ordinance 949 continues to adopt the Comprehensive Plan, the new Zoning Map 

and the text amendments to the Land Use Code.  However, as a result of the City Council’s discussions 

and decisions staff has made the following changes to the original draft that was presented to the City 

Council at the October 15 hearing: 

• Finding 12 has been revised to delete reference to increasing the density of residential 

development and therefore decreasing the amount of land that may need to be annexed during 

the twenty-year planning period. 

• Finding 15 has been added noting that the owner of the AD Gardner House has objected to the 

property being included in the historic resources inventory. 

• Section 1 of the Ordinance has been amended to include nine specified amendments to the 

October 15 draft of the Comprehensive Plan. 

• Section 2 of the Ordinance has been amended to refer to an April 1, 2013 Official Zoning Map 

instead of an October 1, 2012 Official Zoning Map.  The Official Zoning Map has been 

amended to include the 10 acres of land for which the City Council finalized the annexation in 

January 2013. 

• Section 3 of the Ordinance has been amended to change the Code amendments to reflect 

changes to the draft Comprehensive Plan specified in Section 1.  Deleted from the Code 

amendments as contained in the original draft of the ordinance are the density bonus for 

including reserved affordable housing in a master planned developments, changes to the 

descriptions of the Low Density Residential and Medium Density Residential zones to establish 

minimum residential densities and removal of the footnote to the dimensional requirements 

table that establishes a 10,000-square foot minimum lot size in the LD zone east of 10
th

 Ave.  

The Code amendments have also been changed to refer to the April 1, 2013 Official Zoning 

Map. 

• Section 4 of the Ordinance has been amended to provide for an April 1, 2013 effective date, 

rather than the usual 30 days after enactment.  This is simply to coordinate with the date on the 

official zoning map.  If the Ordinance is enacted on February 19, this would delay the effective 

date by 10 days. 

A careful reading of the revised draft Ordinance will reveal that it does not delete the references to 

establishing minimum residential density standards from the draft Plan.  That is because, following the 

Council’s discussion on this issue, when I went to find the appropriate page number and reference to 

delete them, I discovered that, though included by the Planning Commission, I had mistakenly failed to 

include them in the October 15 draft of the Plan.  It must have been my Freudian subconscious at 

work.  Nevertheless, rest assured that the such policies are not in the Plan proposed to be adopted. 

Again, the staff would like to thank the members of the Comprehensive Plan Update Committee for 

their long and diligent effort and would like to express my appreciation to the Council for care it put 

into its review of the draft Plan. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Staff recommends the following actions: 



Land Use File 06-06/12 

2012 Comprehensive Plan Update 

City Council Staff Report 

Page 3 of 3 

1. The following the oral staff report, the Mayor should declare the record closed for the public 

hearing. 

2. The City Council should reconsider its December 3 2012 decision to remove the Gardner House 

from the list of historic resources.  There should first be a motion to reconsider, and then if 

successful a new motion to delete the property should be offered.  Suggested motions are: 

 I move that the City Council reconsider its December 3 2012 decision to remove the A. D. 

Gardner House at 633 N 3
rd

 Ave from the list of historic resources. 

 I move that the City Council remove the A. D. Gardner House at 633 N 3
rd

 Ave from the list of 

historic resources due to the request from the property owner. 

3. Consider enactment of Ordinance 949 as amended. 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

Regarding consideration of Ordinance 949, the City Council has the following options from which to 

choose.  Staff recommends the first option. 

1. Adopt the revised draft Ordinance as presented. 

I move the City Council approve the first consideration of the revised Ordinance 949 as presented. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote shall 

be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If the vote is unanimous, Ordinance No. 949 is enacted and 

will be presented to the Mayor for his approval. 

If the vote is not unanimous, Ordinance No. 949 will be amended to remove the emergency 

provision and be brought before the Council for a second consideration at the March 4, 2013 

meeting. 

2. Adopt the revised draft Ordinance with changes. 

I move the City Council approve the first consideration of Ordinance 949, requesting staff make 

the following changes to the draft Comprehensive Plan, [Official Zoning Map] or [text 

amendments to Title17] (list changes) and return the revisions to the City Council for a second 

consideration on March 4, 2013. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote shall 

be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If the first consideration is approved, Ordinance No. 949 will 

be brought before the Council for a second consideration at its March 4, 2013meeting. 

3. Continue to deliberate on the Comprehensive Plan, Official Zoning Map, and text 

amendments to Title 17. 

I move that the City Council continue its deliberations on Ordinance 949 until March 4, 2013 (or 

some other date). 



 

Ordinance 949, Adopting 2012 Comprehensive Plan, Official Zoning Map, and Title 17 Amendments Page 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 949 

 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2012 STAYTON 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, THE OCTOBER 1, 2012 OFFICIAL 

ZONING MAP, AND AMENDING STAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE 

(SMC) TITLE 17 
 

WHEREAS, Oregon statutes and administrative rules require every municipality to enact a 

Comprehensive Plan and land use regulations in conformance with Statewide Planning Goals and 

Guidelines, and coordinated with other affected units of government;  

WHEREAS, the Stayton Comprehensive Plan was adopted in 1979, and has undergone periodic 

review and amendment, but not been thoroughly updated since adoption; 

WHEREAS, in April 2010, the Stayton City Council appointed a 13-member committee to review 

and update the Comprehensive Plan.  That Committee met on a monthly basis.  Upon completing a 

draft of an updated Comprehensive Plan, the Committee held a public informational session on April 

25, 2012 and made changes to the draft plan and the draft official zoning map in response to comments 

received at the informational session; 

WHEREAS, drafts of each chapter of the Plan were sent to the Department of Land Conservation 

and Development and to Marion County Planning Division as each chapter was written.  Review 

comments from Marion County were incorporated as appropriate; 

WHEREAS, the draft Comprehensive Plan was sent to the Oregon Department of Land 

Conservation and Development which sent review comments and suggestions on July 13, 2012;  

WHEREAS, the Stayton Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 27 and 

September 24, 2012 and made changes to the draft plan and the draft amendments to the Stayton 

Municipal Code in response to the comments received at the public hearing and in response to the 

comments and suggestions received from the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and 

Development; 

WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council held a public hearing on October 15, 2012; 

WHEREAS, following the public hearing the Stayton City Council made the following findings: 

1. The proposed comprehensive plan contains chapters on demographics, economics, 

transportation, public facilities and services, housing, land use, energy, and a fiscal 

analysis of the City.  In each chapter, other than the chapter on demographics, there is an 

updated inventory and analysis, the relative Statewide Planning Goals, and one or more 

local goals.  For each local goal there are one or more policies for achieving the local goal.  

For each policy there are one or more action steps to be taken to implement the policy. 

2. Stayton’s population has grown from 5,011 in 1990 to 7,644 in 2010.  After decades of 

growth of more than 30%, Stayton’s population grew only 12% between 2000 and 2010, 

the slowest since 1910-1920. 

3. In 2010 Marion County adopted “coordinated population projections” for the County and 

each of the cities within the County.  The Marion County projections included a low 

growth, medium growth and high growth projection for each jurisdiction.  The medium 

growth projected 2030 population for Stayton is 11,359. 

4. The number of occupied housing units in the City has grown from 1,862 in 1990 to 2,882 

in 2010.  42% of the occupied housing units are renter-occupied.  381 housing units were 



 

Ordinance 949, Adopting 2012 Comprehensive Plan, Official Zoning Map, and Title 17 Amendments Page 2 

added between 2000 and 2010, 95% of which were single family detached units.  In order 

to accommodate the projected 2030 population, an additional 1,281 housing units will be 

needed. 

5. Elevations with the urban growth area range from a low of 400 to a high of 665 feet.  

There are small areas on the east side of the City and urban growth area with slopes 

steeper than 20%. 

6. The Plan identifies 13 buildings and sites as historic resources. 

7. There is no land in Stayton identified as terrestrial wildlife habitat.  The North Santiam 

River, Salem Ditch and Stayton Power Canal have been identified as fisheries habitat, 

including habitat for endangered species.  Water quality in the North Santiam River is 

excellent but is impaired by high temperatures during the summer. 

8. Within the UGB there are 358 acres of open space land, including city parks, school 

property and the golf course. 

9. Stayton has historically had a resident unemployment rate that is 50% higher than 

neighboring cities, Marion County or the State. 

10. There are 138 acres of buildable land zoned residential within the City limits.  There are 

21 acres of buildable land zoned commercial or downtown mixed use within the City 

limits.  There are 142 acres of buildable land zoned industrial in the City limits. 

11. Marion County establishes a target for residential density of between 5 and 6 units per 

gross acre of land zoned residential for cities of Stayton’s size.  Looking at land within the 

City limits zoned residential, the City currently has a residential density of 3.1 units per 

acre 

12. In subdivisions recorded since 2000, the residential density has been 2.8 units per acre.  If 

residential development continues at this density, the City will need to annex 320 acres of 

land during the next 20 years. 

13. The City of Stayton currently has a “one map” system in which the Comprehensive Plan 

Map and Official Zoning Map show identical detail.  The 2012 Comprehensive Plan 

proposes establishing a “two map” system in which the Comprehensive Plan Map shows 

broad categories of land use: residential, commercial, industrial, downtown, and public. 

14. A new Official Zoning Map is proposed to be adopted.  The new map makes 

approximately 30 zoning changes, mostly to address either existing non-conforming uses 

or parcels split by a zoning boundary.  The Zone Map amendments result in a net loss of 

16.4 acres of land zoned residential, no change in the land zoned commercially, a net gain 

of 7.3 acres of land zoned industrially, and a net gain of 11 acres of land zoned public; 

15. The owner of the A.D Gardner House, 633 N 3rd Ave objected to the property being 

included on the City’s inventory of historic resources. 

WHEREAS, based on the above findings, the Stayton City Council concludes the 2012 City of 

Stayton Comprehensive Plan meets the Statewide Planning Goals, Guidelines and Administrative 

Rules; 

WHEREAS, based on the above findings, the Stayton City Council concludes that the October 1, 

2012 Official Zoning Map is in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan Map; and 



 

Ordinance 949, Adopting 2012 Comprehensive Plan, Official Zoning Map, and Title 17 Amendments Page 3 

WHEREAS, based on the above findings the Stayton City Council concludes that the proposed 

text amendments to Title 17, described below, implement the 2012 City of Stayton Comprehensive 

Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Stayton City Council does ordain as follows: 

Section 1.  The October 15 Draft of the 2012 Stayton Comprehensive Plan, attached as Exhibit A and 

made a part hereof, is herby adopted with the following amendments: 

Additions are underlined, Deletions are crossed out 

Part 1.  In Chapter 1, page 1, in the recitation of goals, change Goal 5 as 

follows: 

5. Habitat for rare and endangered fish species Fisheries habitat will be maintained and 

improved. 

Part 2.  In Chapter 3, page 15, amend the third paragraph under Surface 

Water Bodies as follows: 

Additionally, the Salem Ditch and Stayton Power Canal (West Stayton irrigation ditch) 

divert water from the North Santiam River and pass through the southern part of Stayton.  

Salem Ditch forms part of the western edge of the UGB just before its confluence with Mill 

Creek.  The Salem Ditch and the Santiam Power Canal were originally constructed for water 

power.  The ditches were used for a variety of industrial uses, for wastewater disposal and flood 

control. but Both ditches are now owned and operated by the Santiam Water Control District as 

conveyances of irrigation water, and which has ongoing operational rights and responsibilities.  

The two canals also receive the majority of the City’s storm water. 

Part 3.  In Chapter 3, page 32, amend the second paragraph under Historic 

Sites, Structures, and Landmarks as follows. 

Since that time, one of the historic resources, the Paris Woolen Mill, has been demolished 

and is therefore removed from the inventory.  Two other properties have since been listed on 

the National Register of Historic Places — the Deidrich building at 195 N 3
rd

, and the Brown 

House at 425 N 1
st 

 —and have been added to the inventory.  One property, the A.D. Gardner 

House at 633 N 3
rd

 Ave, has been removed at the request of the property owner.  Table 3-3 

presents the designated historic resources within the City.   

Part 4.  In Chapter 3, page 33, remove the A.D. Gardner House from the 

table of Historic Resources. 

Part 5.  In Chapter 3, page 38, amend the third Goal as follows: 

GOAL FISHERIES HABITAT FOR RARE AND ENDANGERED FISH SPECIES WILL 

BE MAINTAINED AND IMPROVED 

Part 6.  In Chapter 4, page 40, amend the first paragraph under Streets and 

Highways as follows: 

Automotive transport is and will continue to be the dominant form of moving people and goods to, 

through, and within the City of Stayton.  The TSP contains a complete inventory of the street and 

highway system, an analysis of the needed improvements, and a recommended capital improvements 

plan.  Based on the analysis of projected traffic in 2025, the TSP calls for eight significantvarious 

changes to the existing street and highway system, two of which had been completed by 2010.  These 

improvements are 

1.Rebuild the Highway 22-Cascade Highway interchange (completed 2010) 



 

Ordinance 949, Adopting 2012 Comprehensive Plan, Official Zoning Map, and Title 17 Amendments Page 4 

2.Widen Cascade Highway between Highway 22 and Regis Street to 5 lanes 

3.Widen Golf Club Road between Highway 22 and Shaff Road to 5 lanes 

4.Construct four roundabouts at Washington St, 6
th

 Ave, Jefferson St, 10
th

 Ave, and Santiam St 

5.Signalize east bound ramp onto Highway 22 at Golf Club Road 

6.Signalize intersection of Golf Club Road and Mill Creek Road 

7.Signalize the Cascade Highway/Whitney St intersection with left turn lanes (completed 2008) 

8.Construct roundabout at corner of Wilco Rd, Washington St, and Ida St. 

Part 7.  In Chapter 4, page 45, delete the third Action under Policy T-7. 

Part 8.  In Chapter 4, page 47, amend the fourth Action under Policy T-14 

to read as follows: 

ACTION The City will require striped bicycle lanes on all new and improved collector streets. 

Part 9.  In Chapter 6, page 76 delete the second Action under Policy HO-1. 

Section 2.  The April 1, 2013 Official Zoning Map, attached as Exhibit B and made a part hereof, is 

herby adopted. 

Section 3.  Stayton Municipal Code Title 17, is hereby amended and restated as follows: 

Additions are underlined, Deletions are crossed out 

Part 1.  Amend Section 17.12.210.5 to indicate that the zoning district 

shall be assigned when territory is annexed into the City in 

accordance with the comprehensive plan designation and the 

proposed use of the territory being annexed. 

5. ZONING OF ANNEXED TERRITORY.  All lands that are annexed to the City shall be zoned 

in conformance accordance with the designation of the property in the Comprehensive Plan.  

The specific zone assigned to the land being annexed shall be determined by the City Council 

in accordance with the proposed uses of the land and the needs identified by the buildable lands 

analysis in the Comprehensive Plan.  This requirement does not prohibit an application to 

amend the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning MapsMap concurrent with the application for 

annexation. 

Part 2.  Add Section 17.12.220.4.b.20) to add a submission requirement for 

a geotechnical study when development activity is proposed on 

sites with slopes of 20% or steeper. 

20)  When any development activity is proposed on a location a slope of 20% or steeper, a 

geotechnical study, prepared by a licensed geologist or registered engineer with experience in 

geotechnics, determining the suitability of the site for construction considering the possibility 

of increased erosion potential, slope stability, slippage and other concerns. 

Part 3.  Add Section 17.12.220.5.n to add an approval criterion for Site 

Plan Review applications regarding impacts on fish habitats. 

n.  When any portion of an application is within 100 feet of North Santiam River or Mill Creek or 

within 25 feet of Salem Ditch, the proposed project will not have adverse impact on fish 

habitat. 

Part 4.  Amend Section 17.16.020.3 to refer to an updated Official Zoning 

Map. 



 

Ordinance 949, Adopting 2012 Comprehensive Plan, Official Zoning Map, and Title 17 Amendments Page 5 

3. OFFICIAL ZONING MAP  

a. The zones and their boundaries as specified in this title are shown upon a map which is 

designated as the "Official Zoning Map" of the City and which is hereby adopted as part of 

this code. 

b. Such map shall constitute the official record of the zones within the City as of January 

1989April 1, 2013 and thereafter as the map may be modified in accordance with the 

provisions of this title. 

c. The official zoning map or its subsequent amendments shall be dated with the effective date 

of the ordinance which adopts the map or map amendments and signed by the City Recorder. 

Part 5.  Amend Section 17.16.090.1 to revise the boundaries of the Natural 

Resources Overlay District. 

1. BOUNDARIES OF THE NR DISTRICT. The NR Overlay district shall include lands that are: 

a. 100 feet from the normal high water line of the North Santiam River, Mill Creek, Lucas 

Ditch, Salem Ditch north of Shaff Road, except for areas within the HD, CR, CG, CCMU, 

DRMU, and ID zones. 

b. 50 25 feet from the normal high water line of the Salem Ditch and the Stayton Ditch, except 

for areas within the CR, CG, CCMU, DCMU, and DRMU zones. 

The provisions, requirements, and restrictions found herein shall be in addition to those found 

in the underlying primary zone.  Where there are conflicts between the requirements of the NR 

Overlay zone and the requirements of the underlying primary zone, the more restrictive 

requirements shall apply. 

Part 6.  Add Section 17.24.040.6.k to an approval criterion for 

subdivisions and partitions regarding impacts on fish habitat. 

k.  When any portion of subdivision or partition is within 100 feet of North Santiam River or Mill 

Creek or within 25 feet of Salem Ditch, the proposed project will not have adverse impact on 

fish habitat. 

Part 7. Amend Section 17.24.090.2 to require parcels of land containing 

significant wetlands to be developed as master planned 

developments. 

2. APPLICABILITY.  The Master Planned Development designation may be applied in any 

zoning district. An applicant may elect to develop a project as a Master Planned Development 

in compliance with the requirements of this Section.  However In addition, the City may shall 

require that the following types of development be processed using the provisions of this 

Section: 

a. Where a land division and associated development is to occur on a parcel or site containing 

wetland(s) identified in the City of Stayton Local Wetlands and Riparian Inventory or by 

Department of State Lands as being a significant wetland site(s) requiring protection. 

b. Where the land division is to occur on slopes of 15% slope or greater. 

c. Where Comprehensive Plan policies require any development in the area to occur as a 

Master Planned Development. 



 

Ordinance 949, Adopting 2012 Comprehensive Plan, Official Zoning Map, and Title 17 Amendments Page 6 

Part 8. Amend Section 17.24.100.2.g.2) regarding density bonuses in master 

planned developments. 

2) Residential density bonuses may be granted when one or more of the following criteria are met, 

up to a 50% increase in density. 

a) Where the percentage of open space increases. The bonus shall permit a 5% increase in the 

maximum dwelling density for each percentage point increase of open space above the 

minimum required in Section 17.24.100.3.d. 

b) When the decision authority determines that the architectural standards proposed for the 

development exceed the applicable design standards of Sections 17.20.190, 17.20.200 and 

subsection 2.b through quality, distinctive and innovative design, and use of architectural 

amenities, such as locating garages behind the primary building line of the house, side 

loaded garages, or alley-access garages, a density bonus of up to 1520% may be granted. 

c) Up to a 15% density increase may be granted by the decision authority if the development 

exceeds the standards of subsection 2.d.8. 

d) Up to a 15% density increase may be granted by the decision authority if open space 

amenities such as those identified in subsection 2.d.8 are open to the public. 

Section 4.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective April 1, 2013. 

Section 5.  Notification to State.  A copy of this Ordinance shall be furnished to the State of Oregon, 

Department of Land Conservation and Development forthwith. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 19th day of February, 2013.  

 CITY OF STAYTON 

Signed: ____________, 2013 BY: _______________________________ 

 A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 

Signed: ____________, 2013 ATTEST: _______________________________ 

 Don Eubank, City Administrator 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 _______________________________ 

 David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 



 

Exhibit B, Ordinance 949 
 



 
 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
  

M E M O R A N D U M 
    

TO:   Mayor Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council 

FROM:  Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 

DATE:  February 19, 2013 

SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 895, a Resolution Amending Various 
Sections of the Stayton Personnel Manual Dated October 
2011 

  
ISSUE 
Resolution No. 895 amends various sections of the Stayton Personnel Manual. The 
recommended legal language updates to the Personnel Manual are recommended by City County 
Insurance Services (CCIS) and the Local Government Personnel Institute (LGPI).  
 
 
ENCLOSURES 
 
1. Letter from LGPI regarding their review of the personnel manual 
2. October 2011 Personnel Manual (includes only marked up pages with changes) 
3. Resolution No. 895 
4. Revised Stayton Personnel Manual 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The City of Stayton requested both CCIS and LGPI review the core policies of the City’s 
Personnel Manual. They recently completed their review and provided City staff with their 
recommended legal language updates. These recommendations do not make any changes to the 
policies of the Personnel Manual and were recommended by CCIS because they are the areas 
where they have seen the most legal challenges made by employees.  
 
Following review of the October 2011 Personnel Manual, it was determined formatting of the 
entire document needed to be updated. Spacing and margins were reduced to save paper, 
resulting in the document being reduced from 112 pages to 66 pages. Also, the number 
formatting was revised to make the document easier to read and follow.  
 

 
Resolution No. 895 – Amending Stayton Personnel Manual  Page 1 of 2 



OPTIONS 
 
1. Adopt Resolution No. 895, as presented.  
 
2. Do Nothing. 
 
MOTIONS 
 
1. Offer a motion to adopt Resolution No. 895, a Resolution amending various sections of the 

Stayton Personnel Manual dated October 17, 2011.  
 
2. No motion necessary.  

 
Resolution No. 895 – Amending Stayton Personnel Manual  Page 2 of 2 



  
  

Your Resource for Labor Relations and HR Assistance 
 

        
   
 

Diana Moffat  
Executive Director 

Labor Relations Attorney 
Steven Schuback  

Labor Relations Attorney 
Dan Rowan     

Labor Relations Attorney 
     

 
 

Dana Bennett  
HR/Labor Relations Consultant 

Brandi Leos  
HR/Labor Relations Specialist 

Aaron Olson     
Investigator 

Craig Stoelk 
Investigator  

 
 

 

Stephanie Matlock Allen  
Office Manager 

Denise Quinn Nanke 
Administrative Assistant 

Mary Lou Janeba 
Bookkeeper 

 
     

 
 

(503) 588-2251 
www.lgpi.org 

PO Box 908 

(503) 485-5900 fax 
asklgpi@lgpi.org 
Salem, OR 97308 

October 31, 2012 
 
 
City of Stayton 
Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
362 N Third Ave 
Stayton OR  97383 

 
 

RE: Core Policy Review 
 

Dear Mr. Forbes, 
 
At the request of the City of Stayton and in conjunction with City County Insurance Services, 
LGPI has completed a review of the core policies in your employee policy manual.  The policies 
reviewed during this process include: 

 
• Equal Employment Opportunity • Veteran Hiring Preference 
• Harassment • Ethics 
• Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act (GINA) • Political Activity 
• Religious Accommodation • Social Networking 
• Retaliation • At-Will Employment 
• Oregon’s “No Mandatory Meetings” Law • Domestic Violence 
• Confidential Information Storage • Cell Phone Use 
• Whistleblower • Family Leave 

 
LGPI has made suggested changes and additions throughout your manual as related to these 
core polices.  Suggestions are merely to help guide you with the policy; you should consider 
how the policy fits your particular environment.  Due to potential bargaining obligations, we 
recommend providing notice to any Unions or bargaining groups prior to implementation of 
changes.  As provided for by the Public Employee Collective Bargaining Act, an employer 
should provide at least 14 calendar days’ notice to bargaining groups prior to a unilateral 
change in a mandatory subject of bargaining not covered by the collective bargaining 
agreement.  Upon receipt of such notice, a union does have the right to file a demand to 
bargain mandatory subjects or the impact of a permissive subject on a mandatory issue within 



  
  

Your Resource for Labor Relations and HR Assistance 
 

        
   
 

(503) 588-2251 
www.lgpi.org 

PO Box 908 

(503) 485-5900 fax 
asklgpi@lgpi.org 
Salem, OR 97308 

14 days.  Unilateral implementation, without the notice period, could be construed as an 
Unfair Labor Practice.   Furthermore, if you are currently in bargaining, the policy revisions 
should be brought to the bargaining table.  If a Union does request to bargain, you will need to 
evaluate the particular sections raised as to whether they are mandatory or permissive.  
Should you need further assistance with a bargaining situation, please do contact us to review 
the situation. 
 
Next Steps: 
  

• Review LGPI’s edits and policy recommendations; consider other policies these changes 
may affect; and make sure definitions in your Personnel Rules match those listed in your 
bargaining agreements. 

• Notify any unions if changes are mandatory subjects of bargaining and give them 14 
days to respond.  Contact your labor representative/counsel (LGPI, County Counsel, City 
Attorney, private labor attorney, etc.) if you have questions regarding “mandatory 
subjects of bargaining.” 

• Submit policy change recommendations to the policy approval body in your organization 
(e.g. City Council, Board of Commissioners, Board of Directors, etc.) for approval of 
policy changes and additions. 

• Communicate approved “significant policy changes/additions” to employees 15 days 
prior to implementation date per language added to the receipt of handbook document. 

• Conduct training for staff and/or supervisors to ensure awareness of new policies and 
processes, if needed. 

• Obtain signatures on new “Handbook Receipt” pages to be filed in employees’ official 
personnel files. 

 
If you have questions or concerns related to the policies reviewed (or changes suggested) 
during this process, please do not hesitate to call.  We are available to discuss our 
recommendations. 
 
Policies other than those listed above have not been reviewed at this time; however some 
important policy changes/clarification needed have been noted within the document.  If you 
would like LGPI to provide a review of additional policies, please contact us for a time estimate 
and rate information. 

 
Sincerely, 

 
 
Paulette Baxter & Libet Hatch 
LGPI Human Resources Consultants 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
EMPLOYEE CERTIFICATE OF RECEIPT OF PERSONNEL HANDBOOK 

 

 

 I certify that I have received a copy of the Stayton Personnel Manual.   

 

 I understand that it is my responsibility to read and ask questions if necessary regarding personnel 

policies.  I accept responsibility for understanding and complying with the City's policies.  I understand 

that my employment is “at will” and can be terminated, at any time, at the option of either the City or 

myself, subject however only to such restrictions as appear in this manual or in a collective bargaining 

agreement.   

 I further understand that neither this handbook nor any other City document, confers any 

contractual right, either express or implied, to remain in the City's employ.  

 

As an employee of the City of Stayton, I acknowledge the following: 

 

I have received a copy of the Employee Manual.  I understand that the Manual contains important 

information about the City’s policies, work rules, and my benefits.  I also understand that the Manual 

outlines my responsibilities as an employee.  I understand that I have the responsibility to read and 

understand the information in the Manual, and to ask my supervisor for clarification of any information I 

do not understand. 

 

I understand that this Manual is not a contract of employment or a guarantee of specific treatment in 

specific situations.  Except for any supplemental safety policies and rules that apply to employees in 

certain jobs or work areas, or otherwise stated in an express, individual, written employment contract, I 

understand that this Manual supersedes all prior Manuals, policies, and understandings on the subjects 

contained in it. 

 

I understand that unless stated in an employment contract or collective bargaining agreement, the City has 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Deleted: ¶
NOTE: This signed form should be 
inserted in the employee’s personnel file.¶
¶



 

 

the right to change, modify, add to, substitute, eliminate, interpret, and apply in its sole judgment, the 

policies, rules, and benefits described in this Manual.  I understand that should the content be changed in 

any way, the City may require an additional signed acknowledgement from me to indicate that I am aware 

of the changes. 

 

Unless otherwise stated in a written employment contract, I understand that my employment relationship 

with the City of Stayton is at-will – either the City or I can terminate the relationship at any time, with or 

without reason or notice. 

 

I understand that the City Council is the only entity who is authorized to make changes in the policies, 

rules, and benefits described in this Manual and that all such changes must be in writing to be valid.  I 

also understand that the Council is the only entity who will ever have the authority to enter into an 

employment contract, and that all such contracts must be express, individual, in writing and signed by 

both parties to be valid. 

 

I also acknowledge that, before signing this form, I have asked for and received clarification on any of the 

items listed on it that I did not understand. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________           ______                                         
                    Employee Signature   Date 
 
 
 
Date Filed in Central Personnel File:                                  



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
2 
 

SECTION 1. 
 
 INTRODUCTION AND GENERAL POLICIES 
 
 

1.1  PURPOSE   

 1.1.1 This manual will be known as the "Stayton Personnel Manual."  The Stayton Personnel 

Manual includes the personnel policies and procedures of the City of Stayton.  The 

policies and procedures are to provide each and every employee of the City with an 

understanding of what is expected of him/her, and are designed to ensure consistent, fair, 

and uniform treatment of City employees. 

 

1.2  APPLICABILITY AND EFFECTIVE DATE 

1.2.1 The Personnel Manual applies to all regular full-time, regular part-time employees, 

seasonal employees, temporary employees, contract employees and the City 

Administrator.  

 

1.2.2 The Personnel Manual supersedes all prior oral and written personnel policies and 

procedures of the City of Stayton.  The City reserves the right to change these policies 

and procedures with 15 days’ notice at any time with or without notice.  The City of 

Stayton is an “at will” employer, and employment may be terminated at any time, at the 

option of either the City or employee, subject however only to such restrictions as appear 

in this manual or in a collective bargaining agreement. Nothing contained in these 

policies and procedures is intended to confer any property right in continued 

employment, to constitute a contract of employment which cannot be changed by the City 

at its discretion, or to give rise to a binding past practice under any collective bargaining 

agreement. Contracts must be express, approved by the City Council, and signed by the 

City Administrator.  

 

1.2.3 Amendments to this Personnel Manual may be made by resolution adopted by the City 

Council.  

 

1.2.4 This Personnel Manual is effective on January 7, 2013.                                

 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Deleted: October 17, 2011



 
 
 
 
 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
4 
 

 

ADVANCEMENT:   A salary increase within the limits of a pay range established for a 

position. 

 

ANNIVERSARY DATE:  The yearly return of the first day of employment with the 

City.  For insurance purposes and calculation of vacation, sick leave, and merit 

increases the anniversary date for employees hired on the first day of the month 

will be that date and for employees hired after the first day of the month the 

anniversary date will be the first day of the following month. 

 

APPEAL:   A request to a supervisor, department head, City Administrator, or city 

council for consideration of and a decision or ruling on a problem or situation 

affecting the employee, including an alleged violation of the employee's rights, 

for the purpose of attempting to gain an adjustment of the management decision 

or ease the employee's dissatisfaction.  

 

APPOINTING POWER:  The City Administrator or a department head to which 

authority is delegated to make the appointment to fill a vacant position. 

 

 APPOINTMENT: The hiring of a person to fill a vacant position. 

 

ASSESSMENT CENTER: A structured interview and testing process designed to 

evaluate an individual's skills and qualifications for a position. 

 

AT-WILL EMPLOYEE: An employee who serves at the pleasure of the City, who has 

no property rights in employment, no expectation or promise of the duration of 

employment with the City, and who may be dismissed without cause or hearing, 

subject only to such restrictions as appear in this manual or in a collective 

bargaining agreement. 

 



 
 
 
 
 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
10 
 

  TERMINATION:  Termination of employment with the City for cause or termination of 

an at-will employee. 

 

    TRANSFER:  A change of an employee from one position to another within the City 

service. 

 

WARNING: An oral statement which outlines violations of work rules or deficiencies in 

the employee's job performance for which a memorandum may be placed in the 

employee's personnel file. 

 

    WORK DAY: The regularly scheduled work day is eight (8) hours for employees 

working a five-day work week and ten (10) hours per day for employees working 

a four-day work week. 

 

WORK PERIOD:  The work period is defined as a maximum of one-hundred seventy-

one (171) non-overtime hours in a twenty-eight (28) day period for certified 

police officers. 

 

     WORK WEEK: The regularly scheduled work week is forty (40) hours (Example: five 

8-hour or four 10-hour shifts), and begins on Sunday at 12:01 a.m. 

Formatted: Highlight

Deleted: ¶

Deleted:    TRIAL SERVICE 
PERIOD:  [See note under Personnel 
Policies and Procedures “Trial Service 
Period”] A working test and training 
period during which an employee is 
required to demonstrate his or her fitness 
for the duties to which he or she is 
appointed by actual performance of the 
duties of the position.¶
¶



 
 
 
 
 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
11 
 

 
 SECTION 2. 

 PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

 

2.1  ACCEPTANCE OF EMPLOYMENT APPLICATIONS 

2.1.1 The City will accept applications for employment only when a job vacancy exists and a 

job announcement has been posted.  When no vacancy exists, unsolicited applications, 

letters, or résumés will not be accepted by the City.  They will either be returned to the 

applicant or they will be disposed of by the City. 

 

2.1.1a    Veterans’ Preference in Hiring:, all things being equal, the City may give 

preference to veterans, when making hiring decisions; the City does not 

discriminate against individuals based on current or prior military service. 

 The City of Stayton provides qualifying veterans and disabled veterans 

preference in employment in accordance with ORS 408.225-408.238.  For the 

preference to be applied, veterans must have received an honorable discharge 

from military service, successfully complete the initial application screening, and 

meet the minimum qualifications of the applied for position.  To qualify for 

disabled veteran preference, applicants must submit proof of veteran status and 

proof of their veterans' disability rating from the Department of Veterans' Affairs.  

Applicants must submit proof of veteran status (DD214/DD215) at the time the 

application is submitted. 

 

2.1.2 APPLICATION PROCEDURES 

2.1.2a The City Administrator will post a job announcement at City Hall for all job 

openings. 

 

2.1.2b An applicant for a vacant position will file a completed application for 

employment specifying the position applied for together with a letter of 

Formatted: Strikethrough



 
 
 
 
 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
14 
 

2.3.1 For specific job classifications, an offer of employment may be contingent upon an 

applicant's successful completion of a medical examination, including a physical, and/or 

drug and alcohol testing by a doctor of the City's choice prior to appointment.  If 

required, this examination will be provided at City’s expense. 

 

2.3.2 In order to ensure continued qualification for employment, the City periodically may 

request employees in specific job classifications to submit to a medical examination at 

City expense. 

 

2.3.3 Genetic Information Non-discrimination Act (GINA). Pursuant to GINA, the City does 

not discriminate against applicants or employees based upon either the employee’s or the 

employee’s family genetic information; nor does the City use genetic information in 

employment decisions. Family medical history is included in the definition of genetic 

information as it is often used to determine whether someone has an increased risk of 

getting a disease, disorder, or condition in the future. 

 

2.3.4 Once a condition manifests itself, the GINA no longer applies.  More detailed 

information about GINA is available on the EEOC poster placed on the employee 

bulletin board. 

 

 2.3.5 Genetic Information and Wellness Programs:  Employees may be asked to sign voluntary  

waivers, in which, the employee acknowledges that his/her genetic information will only 

be provided to licensed health care professionals or board-certified counselors involved 

in the wellness program.  There is no penalty for non-participation. 

 

2.4  DRIVING RECORD 

2.4.1 The driving record of any job applicant will be checked by the City prior to being hired 

and as a condition of employment.  Driving record must be acceptable to the City and its 

insurance companies coverage guidelines. 

Deleted: T



 
 
 
 
 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
15 
 

 

 2.4.2 Employees who may be required to drive must possess a valid Oregon driver's license 

and must comply with any restriction.  All employees who may be required to drive on 

City business may at any time have their driving record checked by the City.  If the 

record indicates major traffic violations, the employee may be subject to warnings or 

sanctions and may not be permitted to operate a City vehicle. 

 

2.4.3 Employees who may be required to drive will notify their department head of any change 

in license status and all major traffic violations.  Failure to report a major traffic violation 

or change in license status to the department head is viewed as a violation of City policy.  

The City monitors driving records as a component of risk management in order to 

identify needs of driver improvement. 

 

2.5  ORIENTATION   

2.5.1 Upon appointment, the department head or a designate will be responsible for the 

orientation of each new employee.  Orientation will include, but will not be limited to, 

organization and services of the City, work rules, personnel manual and procedures, 

benefits, completion of payroll forms, and introduction to other City personnel. 

 

 

2.6  EMPLOYEE STATUS 

 2.6.1 Regular Full-time Employee:  An employee who regularly works a minimum of forty 

(40) hours a week on a continuing basis, and one who has completed the trial service 

period is considered a regular full-time employee. 

 

 2.6.2 Regular Part-time Employee:  An employee who regularly works less than forty (40) 

hours a week is considered a regular part-time employee once the trial service period is 

successfully completed.   

Deleted: 2.6 TRIAL SERVICE 
PERIOD¶
¶
NOTE:  LGPI suggests removing the 
introductory/probationary period 
language because it may provide a false 
sense of job security for at-will 
employees.  Employees represented by a 
union should find information about their 
introductory period in the Collective 
Bargaining Agreement (CBA).  We 
understand that removing this language 
may cause complications in 
administration of current practices and as 
a result, two options are provided for 
your consideration.¶
¶
Option 1:  Remove the introductory 
period language from this page, the 
Employment Classifications section, and 
any other section within this handbook.¶
¶
Option 2:  Change 
Introductory/Probationary to Trial 
Service and include the following 
disclaimer:  “The Trial Service Period is 
used to assess a new employee’s ability to 
perform the essential job functions.  
Completion of the Trial Service Period 
does not alter an employee’s at-will 
status.”¶

Deleted: 2.6.1 All new, rehired, 
transferred, and promoted employees will 
serve a minimum six (6) month trial 
service period, commencing with the first 
day of employment in the position, except 
in the Police Department, where new 
employees will serve a minimum twelve 
(12) month trial service period. ¶
¶
2.6.2 The trial service period is 
considered a part of the selection process.  
It is used to confirm the initial 
employment decision and to reject those 
whose performance is not satisfactory.  It 
is a period of evaluation.  During this trial 
service period, the employee and the City 
will have an opportunity to determine 
whether further employment with the 
City is appropriate.¶
¶

2.6.3 The City can extend the duration 
of the trial service period up to an 

Deleted: 2.7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

... [1]



 
 
 
 
 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
22 
 

2.16.4 Personnel records will be considered confidential and will be accessible only to the  City 

Administrator, supervisors, managers, and others authorized access by the  City 

Administrator in accordance with Oregon law, or as required by the business and 

operational needs or interests of the City.  Employees may examine their personnel 

records at a mutually convenient time upon request to the  City Administrator or 

designee.  

 

2.16.5 Employees will be notified of any Personnel Action Forms or adverse entries into the 

employee's central personnel file. 

 

2.16.6 For each employee's benefit, it is important that all personnel records be kept up to date.  

If there is a change of name, address, telephone number, marital status, or number of 

dependents, the department head and Finance Director will be notified. 

 

2.16.7 Confidential Information Storage:  Records pertaining to I-9 verification, medical 

records, and victims of domestic violence are considered confidential and shall be 

maintained by the City Administrator or designee in confidential files separate from the 

personnel file. 

 

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
42 

 

certification of physician or practitioner form required for federal or state family medical 

leave, obtain second or third medical opinions at the City’s expense as provided by 

family medical leave laws, and provide fitness for duty medical certifications before 

return to work as provided by the family medical leave policy. 

 

6.4  WITNESS OR JURY DUTY   

6.4.1 When a City employee is called for jury duty or is subpoenaed as a witness, he/she will 

not suffer any loss and will receive his/her regular wages while serving on the jury or 

serving as a witness.  Employees serving as jurors or as a witness will transfer to the City 

any payment he/she receives for the performance of this duty, except mileage 

reimbursement.  The employee will provide a copy of the summons to their supervisor at 

least 2 weeks prior to the required appearance.  The employee will be granted a 

reasonable time-off duty to serve as a witness or juror without loss of pay, earned 

vacation, or sick leave.  Jury duty may require rescheduling if operations will be 

adversely effected.  This provision does not apply to any absence when the employee is a 

plaintiff in the litigation, or a defendant in litigation which did not arise in the course of 

the employee's employment and does not relate to the performance of the employee's 

official duties. 

 

6.5  CONFERENCES AND CONVENTIONS   

6.5.1 Decisions concerning attendance at conferences, conventions, or other meetings at City 

expense will be made by the department head with the approval of the  City 

Administrator.  Permission may be granted based on the costs to the City and the benefits 

to the City from the employee's participation in the conference or the direct relation of the 

employee's work to the subject matter of the meeting.  

  

6.6   OREGON FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE (OFLA) AND L FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE 

ACT (FMLA) 

 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  4.5 pt

Deleted: 6.5     RELIGIOUS 
ACCOMMODATION [LGPI 
recommends that the Religious 
Accommodation policy be moved into the 
Non Discrimination Section]¶
6.5.1 The City may provide reasonable 
accommodation for religious observances 
or practices of employees, unless 
providing the accommodation would 
impose an undue hardship on The City; 
this may also include accommodating the 
wearing of religious clothing.¶
The City respects the religious beliefs and 
practices of all employees and will make, 
upon request, an accommodation for such 
observances when a reasonable 
accommodation is available that does not 
create an undue hardship on the City of 
Stayton’s business.¶
An employee whose religious beliefs or 
practices conflict with his/her job, work 
schedule, with the City’s policy or 
practice on dress and appearance, or with 
other aspects of employment and who 
seeks a religious accommodation should 
submit a request for the accommodation 
to his/her immediate supervisor. The 
request should be in writing and include 
the type of religious conflict that exists 
and the employee’s suggested 
accommodation. ¶
¶
The supervisor and employee will meet to 
discuss the request and the decision on an 
accommodation. If the employee accepts 
the proposed religious accommodation, 
the immediate supervisor will implement 
the decision. If the employee rejects the 
proposed accommodation, the parties 
may discuss alternative accommodations 
or the employee may appeal the decision 
using the policy set forth in these 
personnel rules (Section 11.3.3). ¶
¶
<#>With management approval, an 
employee may use vacation or other 
available leave for religious activities; if 
accrued leave is not available, then an 
employee may request to take unpaid 
leave.¶
¶

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 7

Deleted: FEDERA



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
43 

 

This policy intends to comply with applicable law and enables employees to take up to 12 

weeks of protected leave in a 12-month period for their own serious condition; for the 

birth or adoption of a child; for the placement of a foster child; for the care of a child with 

a non-serious health condition; for the care of a spouse, parent, child, grandparent, 

grandchild, parent-in-law, same-sex domestic partner, or someone with whom the 

employee has an “In Loco Parentis” relationship who has a serious health condition; and 

for an exigency leave related to a spouse, child or parent of a covered service member 

who is on active duty or called to active duty. In addition, leave is provided to employees 

to enable them to take up to 26 weeks of protected leave in a 12-month period for the care 

of a spouse, child, parent or next of kin of a covered service member or veteran who has a 

serious injury or illness.  An employee must be eligible under the FMLA to receive the 

defined benefits. 

 

 The City of Stayton follows a calendar year, Sunday through Saturday. 

 

6.6.1 FMLA applies to employers with 50 or more employees in the current or previous year. 

To be eligible for FMLA leave, employees must have worked for the employer for at 

least 12 months (not necessarily consecutive), and have worked at least 1,250 hours 

during the 12-month period immediately preceding the leave.  

 

 6.6.1a FMLA is differentiated from OFLA as follows (FMLA and OFLA will run 

concurrently under most, but not all circumstances): 

 

  6.6.1b FMLA only provides for protected time off for the serious health condition of the 

employee or his or her spouse, child or parent (or one standing in the place of a 

parent or child of the employee).  OFLA also extends to grandparents and 

grandchildren, parents-in-law, same-gender domestic partners and children and 

parents of same-gender domestic partners. 

 

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  4.5 pt

Deleted: LGPI suggests each entity 
outline here their definition of year and 
week for FML/OFL purposes.  Consider 
how FML/OFL is tracked within your 
entity.  Do you use a calendar year, 
rolling forward year, or rolling back 
year?  Week should also be defined, 
generally as an employee’s normal 
workweek schedule.  As each entity will 
have a different process, LGPI is unable 
to provide language

Deleted: .

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
44 

 

  6.6.1c OFLA (but not FMLA) has sick child leave (non-serious health condition 

requiring home care) and the additional allotment of leave following pregnancy 

disability leave and sick child leave following 12 weeks of parental leave.  

 

  6.6.1d FMLA and Workers Compensation Leave may run concurrently. 

 

6.6.1e The City will designate leaves of absence as covered under FMLA and/or OFLA, 

even when not requested by the employee, if the reason for the absence is a 

qualifying purpose under one or both of the laws regulating these leaves of 

absence.  

 

6.6.2 OFLA applies to employers with 25 or more employees. Eligible employees are those 

who have been with the City for more than 180 days, working an average of 25 hours per 

week or more, are eligible to take twelve weeks leave within a twelve-month period for: 

 

6.6.2a Birth of a child; 

 

6.6.2b Adoption of a child up to age 18 (or older if incapable of self care) or the 

placement of a foster child; 

 

6.6.2c Care of a sick spouse, same sex domestic partner, child, parent, or parent-in-law; 

To care for a child aged 18 or over, grandparent, grandchild, parent-in-law, same-sex 

domestic partner, or child or parent of a same-sex domestic partner who has a serious health 

condition; and/or  

 

6.6.2d The employee’s own serious health condition; 

 

6.6.2e To care for a sick child other than a serious medical condition. 

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  72 pt,
Hanging:  36 pt, Tabs: Not at  0 pt + 
72 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  54 pt,
First line:  0 pt

Formatted: Strikethrough

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
48 

 

 

6.6.10d   

i. An eligible employee seeking Oregon Military Family Leave must provide 

the City with notice of the intention to take leave within five business days 

of receiving official notice of an impending call or order to active duty or 

of a leave from deployment, or as soon as is practicable when official 

notice is provided fewer than five days before commencement of the leave.  

 

ii. The active duty orders of a covered military member will generally specify 

if the service member is serving in support of a period of military conflict 

by citation to the relevant section of Title 10 of the United States Code 

and/or by reference to the specific name of the military conflict.  

  

iii. An eligible employee’s notice of intention to take OMFLA leave must 

follow the above procedures for requesting any kind of leave.  The City 

may require in writing that the eligible employee provide a photocopy of 

the service member’s orders to verify the purpose of the leave.  

 

• Please Contact the City Recorder for Medical Leave Request Forms. 

 

6.7  DOMESTIC VIOLENCE / VICTIM’S LEAVE 

6.7.1 In accordance with the provisions of ORS 659A.272, Eemployees who work an average 

of 25 hours or more per week for at least 180 days immediately before taking leave, and 

are victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, criminal harassment, or stalking, or are 

parents of victims (minor children), may be eligible for this leave for an authorized 

purpose. An “authorized purpose” includes seeking legal or law enforcement assistance 

or remedies; seeking medical treatment for or recovering from injuries; obtaining 

counseling or services from a victim services provider; or relocating or taking steps to 

secure a safe home for the employee or minor child. 

 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 8

Deleted: 8



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
49 

 

6.7.2 The  City may grant an eligible employee a reasonable leave of absence if the employee 

or the employee’s minor child or dependent needs time off to deal with issues of 

domestic violence, sexual assault, criminal harassment, or stalking. 

 

6.7.3 Employees may use accrued sick or vacation leave; or comp time, to pay for time off. 

Employees shall charge leave for absences under this policy to accrued leave balances in 

accordance with applicable City rules and collective bargaining agreements.  When 

applicable, such leave shall also be designated as FMLA and/or OFLA.  

 

6.7.4 The City may provide reasonable safety accommodations for an employee who is a 

victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, criminal harassment, or stalking, if the 

employee requests it, and if it does not impose an undue hardship on the  City.   

 

6.7.5 When an employee requests a reasonable safety accommodation, the City will engage in 

discussions with the employee about the nature and scope of a reasonable safety 

accommodation that will best address the particular safety concern affecting the 

individual employee. 

 

6.7.6 An employee who wishes to take leave under this policy must provide certification as 

provided in ORS 659A.280(4) that the employee or dependent child is a victim of 

domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or criminal harassment.  Where feasible, the 

employee will provide reasonable advanced notice of the intent to take leave. 

 

6.7.7 Examples of reasonable accommodation , may include, but are not limited to:  transfer, 

reassignment, modified schedule, unpaid leave from employment, changed work 

telephone number, changed work station, installed lock, implemented safety procedure, 

or any other adjustment to a job structure, workplace facility or work requirement. 

 

6.8  UNIFORMED SERVICES LEAVE AND RE-EMPLOYMENT 

6.8.1 Overview: This policy covers leave and re-employment for employees in the uniformed 

services.  It also contains non discrimination and non-retaliation provisions related to 

uniformed service.  Regular employees requiring a leave of absence for service in the 

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  72 pt,  No
bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  72 pt,  No
bullets or numbering

Deleted: ,

Deleted: but not limited to

Deleted:  

Deleted: 9

Deleted: 9



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
65 

 
 

9.1.2 Public Service:  Service to the community is the primary responsibility of the City and all 

employees.  Each employee will strive to provide the highest quality service in a caring, 

responsive, and effective way.  All employees should remember that to the public the 

individual employee represents and is the "City of Stayton." 

 

 9.1.3 Teamwork:    Every employee should keep in mind that each is a part of a team of City 

employees.   A cooperative spirit and teamwork are essential to high morale, 

productivity, and personal job satisfaction.   Each employee should always strive to be a 

positive, constructive member of the city team. 

 

9.2  PERSONAL CONDUCT 

 9.2.1 Personal Conduct:  All employees will conduct themselves in a manner which is 

appropriate for an employee in the public's service.  Employees will be courteous, 

considerate, efficient, and helpful to everyone in their work and will do the best job 

possible on every assignment.  Each employee should strive to provide services that are a 

source of pride to the employee, fellow employees, elected officials, and the citizens of 

Stayton. 

 

9.2.2 Public Relations:  Public relations will be an integral component of each employee's job.  

When answering telephones or greeting the public, each employee will be courteous, 

considerate, efficient, and helpful.  In addition, each employee will listen to questions and 

concerns and respond to the citizen in a friendly, professional manner.  Each employee 

should actively work to serve the public and demonstrate that he or she is capable and 

willing to help the citizen. Favorable impressions created by employees' public behavior 

can help develop good will and support for City services. 

 

9.2.3 Meetings: The City does not take adverse employment action against employees who 

choose not to attend City sponsored meetings where the City’s “position” regarding 

religious or political matters will be presented. 

Formatted: Strikethrough



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
66 

 

From time to time the City will require employees to attend work related meetings either 

on or off premises.  These meetings will be used to disseminate information, train, or 

instruct personnel on work related matters.  Per ORS 659.785, employees cannot be 

required to attend employer-sponsored meetings or communications with the employer or 

the agent, representative, or designee of the employer if the primary purpose of the 

meeting or communication is to communicate the opinion of the employer about religious 

or political matters (political party affiliation, campaigns for measures or candidates).  An 

employee may not be disciplined, discharged, or otherwise penalized for refusing to 

attend or participate in such meetings. 

 

 

9.3  CODE OF ETHICS FOR CITY EMPLOYEES 

9.3.1 Personal Interests Avoided:  City employees may not use City time to participate in 

matters of personal interest.  When giving testimony unrelated to their assigned City 

responsibilities, City employees should recognize their capacity as a private citizen and 

not use information or facts that have come to them by virtue of their employment which 

are not subject to disclosure to the public.  In matters of personal interest, employees 

should conduct themselves so as not to impair their working relationship with other 

employees or with public officials. Information on these laws is available at the Oregon 

Government Ethics Commission website, http://www.oregon.gov/OGEC/. 

 

9.3.2. Conflict of Interest 

City of Stayton employees shall avoid situations that create, potentially create, or give the 

appearance of creating a conflict with the mission or objectives of the City; or could cast 

doubt upon objectivity between personal interests and the interests of the City of Stayton.  

 

 Disclosure:  City employees are required to report any potential conflict of interest to 

their supervisor or the City Administrator.  

9.3.23 Gifts and Gratuities:  Acceptance of certain types or forms of gifts is viewed as a conflict 

of interest.  Employees will not accept any special favors, gifts, loans, fees, or gratuities resulting 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  36 pt,
First line:  0 pt, Tabs: Not at  108 pt

Formatted: Strikethrough

http://www.oregon.gov/OGEC/


 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
67 

 
 

from or related to employment with the City, if the acceptance could be considered to influence 

directly or indirectly the actions of said personnel, or any other person, in any matter of City 

business.  In this regard, the appearance of impropriety can be as damaging as actual impropriety 

and will be avoided. 

 

  Special Gifts:  Department heads may allow acceptance of nonmonetary gifts of nominal 

value (e. g., under $50.00) at holidays or special occasions which are available to be 

shared by all employees. Under no circumstances are gifts to exceed $50 per calendar 

year from any one source. 

 

9.4  POLITICAL ACTIVITIES OF CITY EMPLOYEES 

9.4.1 Official Position: Campaigning.  Employees may not use their official authority or 

position with the City to further the cause of any political party or candidate for 

nomination or election to any political office. 

 

 9.4.2 Political Activity.  Oregon law forbids any City employee, while on the job, from 

soliciting money, influence, service, or other article of value or otherwise aiding and/or 

promoting any political cause or the nomination or election of any person for public 

office. The restrictions imposed by the law of the State of Oregon (ORS 260.432(2)) on 

your political activities are that “No public employee shall solicit any money, influence, 

service or other thing of value or otherwise promote or oppose any political committee or 

promote or oppose the nomination or election of a candidate, the gathering of signatures 

on an initiative, referendum or recall petition, the adoption of a measure or the recall of a 

public office holder while on the job during working hours.  However, this section does 

not restrict the right of a public employee to express personal political views.” 

 

It is therefore the policy of the City of Stayton that employees may engage in political 

activity except to the extent prohibited by state law when on the job during working 

hours. 

 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0 pt

Deleted: 9.3.3



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
71 

 

9.9  PERSONAL APPEARANCE 

9.9.1 Both the employee's personal appearance and dress are essential to creating a favorable 

public image.  All employees will dress in neat, clean, professional-looking attire 

appropriate to their daily job duties. 

 

9.9.2 Each employee is responsible to present a proper appearance whether in an office 

environment, in a police patrol car, or on a maintenance site.  Good taste and good 

judgment in personal attire is expected. 

 

9.9.3 The City may provide, at City expense, clothes or uniforms, if required by the 

department.  The City will schedule and pay for cleaning of city-issued clothing and 

uniforms, with the exception of certified police officer uniforms. 

 

9.10  APPEARANCE OF WORK AREAS 

9.10.1 The City's objective is to provide and maintain clean, safe and healthy work conditions.  

It is the responsibility of each employee to maintain a safe, neat work area and to insure 

that all working documents, desks, and cabinets are secured at the close of the work day. 

 

9.11  PERSONAL TELEPHONE CALLS 

9.11.1 City phones are to be used for City purposes.  Telephone calls of a personal nature 

(incoming or outgoing) should be kept to an absolute minimum and made during breaks 

or lunch periods whenever possible.  Under no circumstances should an employee charge 

a long distance call to the City unless it is work-related.  Employees are requested to keep 

other personal phone calls to a minimum.  Friends and relatives should be discouraged 

from calling during working hours except in emergencies. 

 

9.12 ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS AND SOCIAL NETWORKING  

9.12.1 The City’s systems, equipment, hardware, software and other information                  

(hereinafter referred to as “systems”) in any form are considered an asset of the City and 

thus must be properly used and adequately protected.  This includes the transmission of 

information over computer communication networks. 

 



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
72 

 

9.12.2 Systems include but are not limited to, computers, software, electronic mail (e-mail),  

copiers, fax machines, telephones, cell phones, voice mail, surface messengers, 

communication tools, various on-line services, and protected health information.  All of 

these systems are operated and managed based upon this policy. 

 

9.12.3 The City-provided systems are intended to be used primarily for business purposes.  

Without a Department Head’s approval, you are not allowed personal use of City 

systems.  Any approved personal use must not interfere with normal business activities, 

involve solicitation, be associated with any for-profit outside business activity, or 

potentially embarrass the City. 

 

9.12.4 The City reserves the right to monitor employee use of City systems at any time.      

Employees should not consider their usage of City systems to be private.  Within the 

bounds of current and future laws, the City reserves and intends to exercise the right to 

review, audit, intercept, access, and search any of these systems at will, monitor data and 

messages within them at any time for any reason, and disclose selected contents without 

notice or other restrictions.  Messages sent through these systems remain the property of 

the City. All data and messages maintained on City systems may be subject to public 

records law and disclosed to the public upon lawful request.   

 

9.12.5 Social Networking and Blogging 

The City takes no position on any employee’s decision to start or maintain a social media 

blog or participate in other social networking activities. However, it is the right and duty 

of the City to protect itself from unauthorized disclosure of information. The City’s social 

networking policy covers City-authorized social networking and personal social 

networking and applies to all employees (see Authorized Social Networking and Personal 

Blogging/Social Networking below). 

 

Blogging or other forms of social media or technology include but are not limited to 

video or wiki postings, sites such as Facebook and Twitter, chat rooms, personal blogs or 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, No
underline

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0 pt



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
73 

 

other similar forms of online journals, diaries or personal newsletters not affiliated with 

the City.   

 

Unless specifically instructed, employees are not authorized and therefore restricted from 

speaking on behalf of the City.  Employees are expected to protect the privacy of other 

employees and clients and are prohibited from disclosing personal employee and 

nonemployee information and any information to which employees have access through 

work.  This policy does not prohibit employees from exercising their rights under 

applicable employment relations laws. 

 

Authorized social networking is social networking or blogging on behalf of the City 

which has been authorized by the City.  Authorized social networking and blogging is 

used to convey information about City services, promote and raise awareness of City 

activities and events, and issue or respond to breaking news or negative publicity. 

 

The goal of authorized social networking and blogging is to become a part of the 

community conversation and promote web-based sharing of ideas and exchange of 

information.  When social networking, blogging or using other forms of web-based 

forums, the City must ensure that use of these communications maintains our integrity 

and reputation while minimizing actual or potential legal risks, whether used inside or 

outside the workplace. 

 

Personal Blogs/Social Networking 

The City respects the right of employees to write blogs and use social networking sites, 

the City does not want to discourage employees from self-publishing and self-expression, 

and does not discriminate against employees who use these media for personal interests 

and affiliations or other lawful purposes.  

 

If you choose to identify yourself as a City of Stayton employee, please understand that 

some readers may view you as a spokesperson for the City due to your content including 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  72 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0 pt

Deleted: [If your entity authorizes 
social networking on behalf of the City, 
LGPI suggests the guidelines be outlined 
here.]¶
¶



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
74 

 

text and images. Because of this possibility, we ask that you state that your views 

expressed in your blog or social networking area are your own and not those of the City, 

nor of any person or organization affiliated or doing business with the City of Stayton.   

 

Employer Monitoring 

Employees are cautioned that they should have no expectation of privacy while using the 

internet at work, subject to lawful access to public postings. Postings can be reviewed by 

anyone, including the City of Stayton. The City reserves the right to monitor comments 

or discussions about the City, its employees, and clients.  

 

Employees are cautioned that they should have no expectation of privacy while using 

City equipment or facilities for any purpose, including authorized blogging. 

 

9.13 PERSONAL CELL PHONE / ELECTRONIC DEVICES 

9.13.1 Use of personal electronics during work hours must be kept to a minimum and may not 

interfere with the performance of work. Messages sent via personal media on or off duty 

may not contain information represented as a being a spokesperson of the City; may not 

contain defamatory or confidential information regarding the City or its Management; 

and may not be used to harass or intimidate as outlined in the Harassment Policy.  

 

The City discourages personal cell phone use or text messaging except on breaks or lunch 

time.  In cases of emergencies, prior approval should be obtained by the supervisor.   

 

Employees should not store confidential or work-related information on personal cell phones 

unless authorized by a supervisor and protected by a password. When using a cell phone, 

employees should be courteous and speak quietly in an area away from coworkers and other 

persons interacting within the workplace.  Unattended cell phones should have the volume set to 

silent to limit disruptions within the workplace.  

 

 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  36 pt,
Tabs:  72 pt, Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  36 pt,
Hanging:  36 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  72 pt

Deleted: ¶



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
75 

 

9.13.2 City-issued Cell Phones  

Cell phones assigned to City employees, volunteers and officials are intended to provide 

for the efficient conduct of business related to the City of Stayton. Personal calls 

(outgoing and incoming) will be allowed infrequently, for limited duration, and only in 

instances of family emergencies when a landline telephone is not reasonably available. 

These phones remain City property and will be on the service plan provided by the City.  

 

Employees issued City cell phones shall have no expectation of privacy while using City-

issued devices.  The City may audit and monitor phone calls, messages, internet, and 

other usage. 

 

9.13.3 Cell Phone Safety 

The City prohibits the use of cell phones, including text messaging, during the following 

work-related activities: 

• While operating a moving vehicle unless a hands free device is used; 

• While operating or being in close proximity of heavy, dangerous, moving 

machinery; or 

• Where use of a cell phone may place employees at risk of injury.  

 

9.13.4 Reporting Lost or Stolen Cell Phones 

If a personal or City-issued cell phone stores email addresses, phone numbers or other 

work or private information about other employees, customers, or clients, or sensitive or 

confidential workplace information and is lost or stolen, report the loss to a supervisor 

immediately. 

9.13.5 Any improper use or violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and 

including discharge.  Any violation of this policy should be brought to the attention of the 

City Administrator. 

 

 

 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  72 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  72 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  112.5 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  72 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  31.5 pt,
Hanging:  40.5 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  72 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  36 pt,
Hanging:  36 pt,  No bullets or
numbering

Deleted: ¶



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
84 

 

 

 SECTION 10. 

 NON-DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT 

 

10.1  EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

10.1.1 It is the policy of the City that all persons are entitled to equal employment opportunities 

and benefits regardless of age, race, religion, color, sex, sexual orientation, veteran status, 

military status, injured worker status, marital status, political affiliation, union 

participation, national origin, non-supervisory family relationships, or membership in any 

other classification protected under federal or Oregon law.  Discrimination on the basis of 

mental or physical disability is also prohibited except where a particular provision 

requires a bona fide occupational qualification.  The City will take affirmative action to 

ensure that the City work force is representative of the work force in the area.  It is the 

policy of the  City to comply with federal and state statutes on equal employment 

opportunities. 

 

10.1.2 Employment opportunities are open to all qualified applicants on the basis of their 

performance, training, experience, aptitudes, and abilities.  Advancement to another 

classification is based on the individual's performance, ability, aptitude, and potential, 

and where two employees have identical qualifications, length of employment may be a 

determining factor. 

 

10.2  NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE 

10.2.1 The City will rigorously enforce all of the laws relating to providing equal opportunities 

and non-discrimination in employment and in preventing any improper conduct on the 

job.  If at any time an employee has any complaint or appeal in this area, the employee 

should immediately notify his or her supervisor.  If the supervisor is the source of the 

problem, the employee should immediately notify the department head,  City 

Administrator, or the  Mayor. 

 



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
85 

 

 

10.3   AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) 
 

10.3.1 The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and the Americans with Disabilities Act 

Amendment Act (ADAAA) are is a comprehensive federal civil rights  

laws that specifically protects individuals with physical and mental disabilities.  

Individuals still need to be “qualified” for the job, and not pose a “direct threat.”   

Individuals may be protected under the ADA/ADAAA if any of the following conditions 

exist: 

 

10.3.1a They currently have a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits a 

major life activity. 

10.3.1b They have a record of such an impairment, physical or mental, that substantially 

limits a major life activity; or; 

10.3.1c They are perceived to have such impairment. 

10.3.2 Episodic or in remission conditions may meet the definition of a disability if it would 

substantially limit a major life activity when active.  Temporary, non-chronic 

impairments of short duration, with little or no residual effects usually are not considered 

disabilities under ADA/ADAAA.  Examples of, but not limited to, impairments that 

typically would not meet the ADA/ADAAA definition of a disability:  common cold, 

seasonal or common influenza, joint sprain, minor and non-chronic gastrointestinal 

disorders or broken bones that are expected to heal completely. 

 

10.3.3 The use of ordinary eyeglasses or contact lenses  that are intended to fully correct visual 

acuity or eliminate refractive error, typically are not considered disabilities under 

ADA/ADAAA. Pregnancy is not considered impairment under the ADA/ADAAA. 

 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
86 

 

10.3.4 Individuals who currently engage in illegal use of drugs are excluded from 

ADA/ADAAA protection.  

  

10.3.5 The ADA/ADAAA also prohibits discrimination on the basis of an individual's 

relationship to someone (parent, sibling, child, spouse/significant other, etc.) with a 

disability. 

The City offers equal employment opportunities for qualified individuals who may have a 

physical or mental disability, but are still able to perform the essential functions of the job 

with or without reasonable accommodation. Essential functions are defined as the 

fundamental non-marginal duties of the position being held or sought by a disabled 

individual.  A job function is essential if the position exists for the performance of the 

function, there are only a limited number of employees available to perform it, or the 

function is so highly specialized that an expert must be specially hired to perform it. 

 

10.3.6 Reasonable accommodation may be available to employees and applicants, as long as the 

accommodation doesn't cause undue hardship for the City.  Individuals protected by the 

ADA/ADAAA should discuss their need for possible accommodation with their manager 

or the Finance Director. 

 

10.4  AGE DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT ACT (ADEA) 

10.4.1 The Age Discrimination in Employment Act prohibits the discrimination against 

employees age 40 and over with respect to any term, condition or privilege of 

employment, including hiring, firing, promotion, layoff, compensation, benefits, job 

assignments and training. The City may ask an employee to waive his/her rights or claims 

under the ADEA either in the settlement of an ADEA administrative or court claim or in 

connection with an exit incentive program or other employment termination program. 

Specific minimum standards must be met in order for a waiver to be considered knowing 

and voluntary and, therefore, valid, including 21 days to consider the waiver and 7 days 

to rescind a decision. Affected employees will be notified of their rights when applicable. 

 

Formatted: Strikethrough



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
87 

10.5  WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY 

10.5.1 The City does not discriminate against employees who report in good faith alleged 

violations of state or federal laws, rules, or regulations. It is the responsibility of all City 

employees to report violations or suspected violations of applicable laws, rules, and 

regulations.  Employees should share their concerns, suggestions, or complaints with 

someone who can properly address them.  Typically, concerns should be shared with a 

supervisor, department head, or the City Administrator.  This policy in no way limits an 

employee’s right to engage in rights protected by the Public Employees Collective 

Bargaining Act. 

 

Anyone filing a complaint concerning a violation or suspected violation must be acting in 

good faith and have reasonable grounds for believing the information disclosed indicates 

a violation. Any allegations that prove to have been made maliciously or knowingly to be 

false will be viewed as a serious disciplinary offense. 

 

Discrimination or retaliation against employees who report in good faith alleged 

violations of applicable laws, rules, or regulations shall not be tolerated.  Any employee 

who believes that he or she has been subjected to discrimination or retaliation for 

whistleblowing, or that a violation of this policy has occurred, should immediately 

contact the City Administrator.  The City Administrator or designee shall conduct an 

investigation regarding the complaint maintaining anonymity and confidentiality to the 

greatest extent possible.  Appropriate corrective action will be taken if warranted by the 

investigation. 

 

10.6  RETALIATION 

10.6.1 If you believe you have been discriminated against or harassed, or if you witness or  

suspect any violation of our policies, you should report the matter immediately to  

any member of management or to the  City Administrator, or Human Resources 

Representative.  If the complaint is in regard to an alleged violation of these policies by 

the  City Administrator, the complaint may be directed to the  Mayor and City Council of 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0 pt

Deleted: ¶



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
88 

 

the  City.  The City will not retaliate against you for filing a complaint or cooperating in 

an investigation, and will not tolerate or permit retaliation by management, employees or 

co-workers. 

 

10.6.2 The City will not tolerate unlawful retaliation or adverse actions against employees for 

engaging in protected activity. Federal Laws such as Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 

1964, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, and the American with Disabilities 

Act, all prohibit an employer from retaliating against an employee engaged in a protected 

activity.  Adverse actions include termination, refusal to hire, denial of promotion, 

threats, unjustified negative evaluations and/or references, and reassignment leading to 

less desirable work conditions. 

 

10.6.3 A protected activity is defined as: opposing an unlawful practice prohibited by 

employment discrimination laws (even if the accusations are not substantiated), or 

participating in any way in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing of an Equal 

Employment Opportunity charge. 

 

10.6.4 Any act of retaliation by a manager and/or coworker may result in serious adverse  

disciplinary action up to and including termination.  Any staff member may file a 

complaint with the City Administrator, or the Human Resources Representative or the 

Mayor and City Council of the City if an employee feels that they have experienced 

retaliation in any form.  

 

10.7  HARASSMENT 

 10.7.1 Statement of Concern:  The City seeks to eliminate and prevent harassment and to 

alleviate any effects such as harassment may have on the working condition of an 

employee.  All such harassment is forbidden.  The City prohibits harassment based on 

disability, race, color, national origin, religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, veterans 

status, military status, retaliation for opposing unlawful employment practices, 

association with members of a protected class, marital status, union participation, injured 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Deleted: ¶
¶



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
89 

workers status, non-supervisory family relationships, or any other protected class, 

regardless of whether that harassment is targeted specifically at the employee. 

 

Harassment includes unsolicited remarks, gestures or physical contact, display or 

circulation of written materials or pictures derogatory towards either gender or towards 

racial, ethnic, or religious groups, or basing personnel decisions on an employee's 

response to such harassment.  The City regards job related harassment as a serious 

transgression. 

 

10.7.2 Sexual harassment can include, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, 

requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or non-verbal communication or physical 

conduct of a sexual nature where: 

 

i. Submission to such conduct is made, either explicitly or implicitly, a term or 

condition of an individual’s employment. 

ii. Submission or rejection of such conduct by an individual influences any 

employment-related City decisions affecting the individual; or, 

iii. The conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with an individual’s work 

performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment. 

 

The conduct prohibited may be verbal, visual or physical in nature.  A mayor to an 

employee, council to employee or co-worker-to-co-worker may direct it.  It includes 

unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, physical touching, or the 

granting or withholding of benefits (e.g. pay, promotions, time off) in response to the 

sexual conduct.  More subtle forms of prohibited behavior, such as offensive posters, 

cartoons, caricatures, comments and jokes, language or innuendoes, hugging, or kissing 

may also constitute sexual harassment when they create or contribute to a hostile or 

offensive work environment. 

 

 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0 pt

Formatted

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  36 pt



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
99 

 
 

 

 10.8.15a Ensure the proper posting of work rules and operation 

procedures to ensure that each employee has advance notice of 

his/her obligations regarding providing of services to infected 

clients as well as safety procedures; 
 

 10.8.15b Ensure that safety procedures are in compliance with guidelines 

issued by the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) or the Oregon 

Health Division; 
 

 10.8.15c Arrange for any specialized training that may be necessary in 

operational areas in which special risks may exist; 
 

 10.8.15d Ensure that such equipment and materials are available to 

employees as are necessary to adhere to required procedures; 
 

 10.8.15e Ensure that the policy in this section is adhered to. 
 

10.8.16 Complaints concerning any employee's failure to comply with this policy should 

be brought to the attention of a supervisor.  Complaints may be raised by 

following procedures of Section 10.7, Harassment, or Section 11.3 related to the 

appeal process. 

10.9 CRIME VICTIMS 

No person may refuse to hire an otherwise qualified individual because the individual is a victim 

of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or criminal harassment.  

 

No person may discharge, threaten to discharge, demote, suspend or in any manner discriminate 

or retaliate against an employee with regard to promotion, compensation, or other terms, 

conditions or privileges of employment because the employee is a victim of domestic violence, 

sexual assault, stalking, or criminal harassment or because the employee requests leave or 

reasonable safety accommodation under the provisions of this rule. 

 

10.10     RELIGIOUS ACCOMMODATION 

10.10.1 The City respects the religious beliefs and practices of all employees and will make, 

upon request, an accommodation for such observances when a reasonable 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 pt,
Tabs: Not at  72 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  40.5 pt,
First line:  0 pt, Tabs: Not at  72 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  40.5 pt,
First line:  0 pt, Tabs: Not at  72 pt

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  72 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  36 pt,
Hanging:  54 pt, Tabs:  90 pt, Left



 

STAYTON PERSONNEL MANUAL 
100 

 

accommodation is available that does not create an undue hardship on the City of 

Stayton’s business. 

 

An employee whose religious beliefs or practices conflict with his/her job, work 

schedule, with the City’s policy or practice on dress and appearance, or with other 

aspects of employment and who seeks a religious accommodation should submit a 

request for the accommodation to his/her immediate supervisor. The request should 

be in writing and include the type of religious conflict that exists and the employee’s 

suggested accommodation.  

 

The supervisor and employee will meet to discuss the request and the decision on an 

accommodation. If the employee accepts the proposed religious accommodation, the 

immediate supervisor will implement the decision. If the employee rejects the 

proposed accommodation, the parties may discuss alternative accommodations or the 

employee may appeal the decision using the policy set forth in these personnel rules 

(Section 11.3.3).  

 

10.10.2 With management approval, an employee may use vacation or other available leave 

for religious activities; if accrued leave is not available, then an employee may 

request to take unpaid leave. 

 

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  90 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  36 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  90 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  72 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  36 pt,
Hanging:  54 pt, Tabs:  90 pt, Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 pt, First
line:  0 pt

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: ¶



RESOLUTION NO. 895 
 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF THE STAYTON PERSONNEL 
MANUAL DATED OCTOBER 17, 2011. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Stayton requested the Local Government Personnel Institute 
(LGPI) in conjunction with City County Insurance Services (CCIS), review the core policies of 
the Stayton Personnel Manual, adopted October 17, 2011; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council is committed to protecting the City from 
unnecessary litigation; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council wishes to provide rules and policies that apply to 
all City employees in a fair and equitable manner. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL that the 
Stayton Personnel Manual in the Sections listed below is hereby amended as reflected in 
attachment “A”: 
 
• The entire manual has updated numbering of sections and has been reformatted to single 

spacing to reduce paper. 
• Revised Employee Certificate of Receipt of Personnel Handbook 
• Section 1.2.2, page 1 – Removed “at any time with or without notice” and replaced with 

“15 days notice”; added new language regarding “at will” employment and contracts. 
• Section 1.2.4, page 1 – Change effective date. 
• Section 1.3.4, page 2 – Added new language to definition of “At-Will Employee” 
• Section 1.3.4 – Removed “Trial Service Period” definition. 
• Section 2.1.1a, page 6 – “Veterans Preference in Hiring” language revised. 
• Section 2.3.3, page 7 – Addition of last sentence regarding family medical history. 
• Section 2.6, Trial Service Period – Removed section discussing Trial Service Period. 
• Section 2.16.7, page 12 – Paragraph discussing Confidential Information Storage added. 
• Section 6.6, page 24 – Explanation of the section was added in regard to OFLA and 

FLMA. Also, explanation of City’s definition of year and work week. 
• Section 6.6.2c, page 25 – Revised acceptable OFLA leave to care for extended family 

members and children over the age of 18.  
• Section 6.7.1, page 27 – Added additional language referencing ORS 659A.272 in regard 

to Domestic Violence / Victims Leave. 
• Section 6.7.3, page 27 – Added additional language regarding how an employee’s leave is 

charged under this policy.  
• Section 6.7.5, page 27 – New language regarding reasonable safety accommodation.  
• Section 6.7.6, page 27 – New language regarding ORS 659A.280(4) regarding 

certification requirements required from an employee taking leave under this policy. 
 
Resolution No. 895  Page 1 of 2 
Amending the Stayton Personnel Manual 



• Section 9.2.3, page 36 – Language regarding meetings was revised, references ORS 
659.785. 

• Section 9.3.1, page 36 – Link to Oregon Government Ethics Commission website added. 
• Section 9.3.2, page 37 – Section discussing “Conflict of Interest” added. 
• Section 9.3.3, page 37 – Additional language added in regard to “Gifts and Gratuities”.  
• Section 9.4.2, page 37 – Revised language regarding “Political Activity”. 
• Section 9.13, page 40 – New section discussing Social Networking and Blogging. 
• Section 9.14.1, page 41 – Additional language added regarding “Personal Electronics”.  
• Section 9.14.2, page 41 – New section added “City-Issued Cell Phones”. 
• Section 9.14.3, page 41 – New section added “Cell Phone Safety”. 
• Section 9.14.4, page 41 – New section added “Reporting Lost or Stolen Cell Phones”. 
• Section 10.1, page 46 – Additional protected classes added to “Equal Employment 

Opportunity” section. The word “performance” was added to the second paragraph, first 
sentence.  

• Section 10.3, page 46 to 47 – Reference throughout section to the “Americans with 
Disabilities Act Amendment Act (ADAAA)”. 

• Section 10.5, page 47 – Additional language added to the “Whistleblower Policy”. 
• Section 10.6.2, page 48 – Additional language added to the “Retaliation” section. 
• Section 10.7.1, page 48 – Additional language added forms of harassment prohibited.   
• Section 10.7.2, page 48 to 49 – Section added discussing forms of sexual harassment. 
• Section 10.9, page 54 – Section titled “Crime Victims” added. 
• Section 10.10, page 54 – The section on “Religious Accommodation” was moved from 

Section 6 to Section 10. 
 
This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption by the Stayton City Council. 
 
ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 19TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2013. 
 
       CITY OF STAYTON 
 
Date:    , 2013  By: ________________________________  
       A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 
 
Date:    , 2013  Attest: _________________________________ 
       Don Eubank, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 

 
Resolution No. 895  Page 2 of 2 
Amending the Stayton Personnel Manual 



Personnel 
Manual 

 



EMPLOYEE CERTIFICATE OF RECEIPT OF PERSONNEL HANDBOOK 
 

As an employee of the City of Stayton, I acknowledge the following: 
 
I have received a copy of the Employee Manual.  I understand that the Manual contains important 
information about the City’s policies, work rules, and my benefits.  I also understand that the Manual 
outlines my responsibilities as an employee.  I understand that I have the responsibility to read and 
understand the information in the Manual, and to ask my supervisor for clarification of any information I 
do not understand. 
 
I understand that this Manual is not a contract of employment or a guarantee of specific treatment in 
specific situations.  Except for any supplemental safety policies and rules that apply to employees in 
certain jobs or work areas, or otherwise stated in an express, individual, written employment contract, I 
understand that this Manual supersedes all prior Manuals, policies, and understandings on the subjects 
contained in it. 
 
I understand that unless stated in an employment contract or collective bargaining agreement, the City has 
the right to change, modify, add to, substitute, eliminate, interpret, and apply in its sole judgment, the 
policies, rules, and benefits described in this Manual.  I understand that should the content be changed in 
any way, the City may require an additional signed acknowledgement from me to indicate that I am aware 
of the changes. 
 
Unless otherwise stated in a written employment contract, I understand that my employment relationship 
with the City of Stayton is at-will – either the City or I can terminate the relationship at any time, with or 
without reason or notice. 
 
I understand that the City Council is the only entity who is authorized to make changes in the policies, 
rules, and benefits described in this Manual and that all such changes must be in writing to be valid.  I 
also understand that the Council is the only entity who will ever have the authority to enter into an 
employment contract, and that all such contracts must be express, individual, in writing and signed by 
both parties to be valid. 
 
I also acknowledge that, before signing this form, I have asked for and received clarification on any of the 
items listed on it that I did not understand. 
 
 
 
 

           
Employee Signature     Date    

 
           
Employee Name (Printed)        

 
 
 
 
 
Date Filed in Central Personnel File:       



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

SECTION 1 – INTRODUCTION AND GENERAL POLICIES ............................................................................1 
1.1 Purpose .......................................................................................................................................................1 
1.2 Applicability and Effective Date ................................................................................................................1 
1.3 Administration, Written Department Rules, and Standard Operating Procedures......................................1 

 
SECTION 2 – PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ............................................................................6 

2.1 Acceptance of Employment Applications ..................................................................................................6 
2.2 Appointment ...............................................................................................................................................7 
2.3 Medical Examinations ................................................................................................................................7 
2.4 Driving Record ...........................................................................................................................................8 
2.5 Orientation..................................................................................................................................................8 
2.6 Employee Status .........................................................................................................................................8 
2.7 Relatives in the City’s Service....................................................................................................................9 
2.8 Work Week and Working Hours ................................................................................................................9 
2.9 Transfers ...................................................................................................................................................10 
2.10 Promotions................................................................................................................................................10 
2.11 Layoff .......................................................................................................................................................10 
2.12 Residence Requirements...........................................................................................................................11 
2.13 Voluntary Resignation..............................................................................................................................11 
2.14 Re-Employment........................................................................................................................................11 
2.15 Volunteer Services....................................................................................................................................11 
2.16 Personnel Records ....................................................................................................................................11 

 
SECTION 3 – EMPLOYEE TRAVEL AUTHORIZATION AND REIMBURSEMENT..................................13 

3.1 General Expectations................................................................................................................................13 
3.2 Documentation Objective .........................................................................................................................13 
3.3 Approval and Reimbursement ..................................................................................................................13 

 
SECTION 4 – POSITION DESCRIPTIONS ..........................................................................................................14 

4.1 Position Descriptions................................................................................................................................14 
4.2 New Positions...........................................................................................................................................14 

 
SECTION 5 – PAY PLAN, SCHEDULING, AND OVERTIME PRACTICES ..................................................15 

5.1 Pay Plan....................................................................................................................................................15 
5.2 Analysis of Pay Plan.................................................................................................................................15 
5.3 Initial Compensation and Salary Reviews ................................................................................................15 
5.4 Salary Adjustments...................................................................................................................................15 
5.5 Acting-in-Capacity Salary Adjustment.....................................................................................................16 
5.6 Bonuses ....................................................................................................................................................17 
5.7 Pay Period.................................................................................................................................................17 
5.8 Pay Day ....................................................................................................................................................17 
5.9 Payroll Deductions ...................................................................................................................................17 
5.10 Time Records............................................................................................................................................18 
5.11 Separation Pay ..........................................................................................................................................18 
5.12 Overtime...................................................................................................................................................18 
5.13 Management Leave...................................................................................................................................19 
5.14 Weekend Duty / Holiday / Standby Time.................................................................................................19 

 
SECTION 6 – TIME OFF.........................................................................................................................................20 

6.1 Holidays....................................................................................................................................................20 
6.2 Vacation....................................................................................................................................................20 
6.3 Sick Leave ................................................................................................................................................22 
6.4 Witness or Jury Duty ................................................................................................................................23 
6.5 Conferences and Conventions ..................................................................................................................24 



6.6 Oregon Family Medical Leave (OFLA) and Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) ..................................24 
6.7 Domestic Violence / Victim’s Leave........................................................................................................27 
6.8 Uniformed Services Leave and Re-Employment .....................................................................................27 
6.9 Unpaid Leave of Absence.........................................................................................................................29 

 
SECTION 7 – FRINGE BENEFITS ........................................................................................................................30 

7.1 Retirement ................................................................................................................................................30 
7.2 Social Security..........................................................................................................................................30 
7.3 Industrial Accident Insurance ...................................................................................................................30 
7.4 Medical and Related Insurance.................................................................................................................30 
7.5 Cobra ........................................................................................................................................................31 
7.6 Health Insurance Coverage for Retired Employees & Dependents ..........................................................32 
7.7 Modification of Benefits...........................................................................................................................32 

 
SECTION 8 – SAFETY AND ACCIDENTS ..........................................................................................................33 

8.1 Safety Policy Statement............................................................................................................................33 
8.2 Unsafe Conditions ....................................................................................................................................33 
8.3 Accident Reporting...................................................................................................................................34 
8.4 Employee Injury Report ...........................................................................................................................34 
8.5 Workers’ Compensation Insurance...........................................................................................................34 
8.6 Light Duty Assignments...........................................................................................................................34 
8.7 Return-to-Work Policy .............................................................................................................................34 

 
SECTION 9 – WHAT THE CITY EXPECTS OF YOU........................................................................................36 U

9.1 Public Service, Teamwork, and Excellence..............................................................................................36 
9.2 Personal Conduct......................................................................................................................................36 
9.3 Code of Ethics for City Employees ..........................................................................................................36 
9.4 Political Activities of City Employees .....................................................................................................37 
9.5 Civic Involvement ....................................................................................................................................37 
9.6 Cost and Energy Consciousness ...............................................................................................................38 
9.7 Legal Liability ..........................................................................................................................................38 
9.8 Attendance and Punctuality ......................................................................................................................38 
9.9 Personal Appearance ................................................................................................................................39 
9.10 Appearance of Work Areas ......................................................................................................................39 
9.11 Personal Telephone Calls .........................................................................................................................39 
9.12 Electronic Communications .....................................................................................................................39 
9.13 Blogging and Social Networking..............................................................................................................40 
9.14 Cell Phone / Electronic Devices ...............................................................................................................41 
9.15 Smoking....................................................................................................................................................41 
9.16 Outside Employment ................................................................................................................................42 
9.17 Selling and Peddling Among Employees .................................................................................................42 
9.18 Substance Abuse.......................................................................................................................................42 

 
SECTION 10 – NON-DISCRIMNATION AND HARASSMENT ........................................................................46 

10.1 Equal Employment Opportunity...............................................................................................................46 
10.2 Non-Discrimnation Clause .......................................................................................................................46 
10.3 Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)...................................................................................................46 
10.4 Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA)....................................................................................47 
10.5 Whistleblower Policy ...............................................................................................................................47 
10.6 Retaliation ................................................................................................................................................48 
10.7 Harassment ...............................................................................................................................................48 
10.8 Communicable Diseases and Related Safety Protocol for Employees and Clients ..................................50 
10.9 Crime Victims ..........................................................................................................................................54 
10.10 Religious Accommodation .......................................................................................................................54 

 
 



SECTION 11 – EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE REVIEW PROCESS ..............................................................55 
11.1 Employee Performance Reviews..............................................................................................................55 
11.2 Performance Review Procedures..............................................................................................................55 
11.3 Problem Solving Process for Non-Bargaining Unit Employees...............................................................56 
11.4 Violation of Rules Which May Lead to Disciplinary Action ...................................................................58 

 
SECTION 12 – DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES FOR NON-BARGAINING UNIT EMPLOYEES .............61 

12.1 Purpose of Disciplinary Action ................................................................................................................61 
12.2 Disciplinary Action Procedure .................................................................................................................61 
12.3 Disciplinary Action of Trial Service Employees ......................................................................................63 
12.4 Appeal Procedure .....................................................................................................................................63 

 
SECTION 13 – SUGGESTION, INCENTIVE AND EDUCATION PLANS ......................................................65 

13.1 Suggestion Policy .....................................................................................................................................65 
13.2 Recognition ..............................................................................................................................................65 
13.3 In-Service Training...................................................................................................................................65 
13.4 Educational Opportunities ........................................................................................................................65 



SECTION 1 
INTRODUCTION AND GENERAL POLICIES 

 
1.1 PURPOSE 

This manual will be known as the "Stayton Personnel Manual." The Stayton Personnel Manual 
includes the personnel policies and procedures of the City of Stayton. The policies and 
procedures are to provide each and every employee of the City with an understanding of what is 
expected of him/her, and are designed to ensure consistent, fair, and uniform treatment of City 
employees. 

 
1.2 APPLICABILITY AND EFFECTIVE DATE 

1. The Personnel Manual applies to all regular full-time, regular part-time employees, seasonal 
employees, temporary employees, contract employees and the City Administrator. 

2. The Personnel Manual supersedes all prior oral and written personnel policies and procedures 
of the City of Stayton. The City reserves the right to change these policies and procedures 
with 15 days’ notice. The City of Stayton is an “at will” employer, and employment may be 
terminated at any time, at the option of either the City or employee, subject however only to 
such restrictions as appear in this manual or in a collective bargaining agreement. Nothing 
contained in these policies and procedures is intended to confer any property right in 
continued employment, to constitute a contract of employment which cannot be changed by 
the City at its discretion, or to give rise to a binding past practice under any collective 
bargaining agreement. Contracts must be express, approved by the City Council, and signed 
by the City Administrator. 

3. Amendments to this Personnel Manual may be made by resolution adopted by the City 
Council. 

4. This Personnel Manual is effective on February 19, 2013. 

5. In the event of a conflict between these policies and any valid collective bargaining 
agreement, City ordinance, or state or federal law, the terms and conditions of the collective 
bargaining agreement, ordinance, or law will apply. In all other cases, these policies and 
procedures will apply. 

6. The City Administrator will provide a current copy of the personnel manual to each employee 
and will provide each employee with a copy of any revisions to this manual adopted by the 
City. As a condition of employment with the City, a new employee must receive and 
acknowledge in writing that he/she has received and reviewed the personnel manual and a 
copy of the executed acknowledgment will be placed in the employee's central personnel file. 

 
1.3 ADMINISTRATION, WRITTEN DEPARTMENT RULES, AND STANDARD 

OPERATING PROCEDURES 
1. The City Administrator will have the power and duty to administer and enforce the policies 

and procedures contained in the personnel manual. 

2. The City Administrator may specifically delegate the authority for the enforcement of rules 
and policies. 

3. Each department head may establish such additional rules and standard operating procedures 
as may be deemed necessary for the efficient and orderly administration of the department.  
Such rules and procedures are subject to approval by the City Administrator before becoming 
effective and must be consistent with the general policies, procedures, rules, or regulations 

 
City of Stayton           Page 1 
Personnel Manual 



established by the City. Department rules and regulations may be more restrictive than 
general city policy. Copies of the applicable department rules and operating procedures will 
be made available to all employees in the department and will be filed at City Hall. 

4. Definitions: As used in this Manual, the following terms will have the meanings indicated: 

ADVANCEMENT: A salary increase within the limits of a pay range established for a 
position. 

ANNIVERSARY DATE:  The yearly return of the first day of employment with the City. 
For insurance purposes and calculation of vacation, sick leave, and merit increases the 
anniversary date for employees hired on the first day of the month will be that date and for 
employees hired after the first day of the month the anniversary date will be the first day of 
the following month. 

APPEAL: A request to a supervisor, department head, City Administrator, or city council for 
consideration of and a decision or ruling on a problem or situation affecting the employee, 
including an alleged violation of the employee's rights, for the purpose of attempting to gain 
an adjustment of the management decision or ease the employee's dissatisfaction. 

APPOINTING POWER: The City Administrator or a department head to which authority is 
delegated to make the appointment to fill a vacant position. 

APPOINTMENT: The hiring of a person to fill a vacant position. 

ASSESSMENT CENTER: A structured interview and testing process designed to evaluate 
an individual's skills and qualifications for a position. 

AT-WILL EMPLOYEE: An employee who serves at the pleasure of the City, who has no 
property rights in employment, no expectation or promise of the duration of employment with 
the City, and who may be dismissed without cause or hearing, subject only to such 
restrictions as appear in this manual or in a collective bargaining agreement. 

CALENDAR YEAR: Twelve (12) month period beginning January 1st and ending 
December 31st. 

CENTRAL PERSONNEL FILES: Files maintained at City Hall and the Police Department 
that contains complete personnel records of all City employees. 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR: The chief administrative officer of the City government who is 
directly responsible to the Mayor and the City Council for the proper administration of all 
affairs of the City. 

COMPENSATORY TIME OFF: Time off work to compensate the employee for overtime 
worked. 

CONTINUOUS SERVICE: Uninterrupted employment with the City less time off for 
leaves of absence without pay. Reasonable absences due to military service or extended 
leaves, such as State and Federal leaves (OFLA and FMLA) approved by the City 
Administrator do not constitute a break in continuous employment. 

DEMOTION: Transfer of an employee from one position to another position which has a 
lower maximum salary. 

DEPARTMENT: A major functional unit of the city government. 

 

 
City of Stayton           Page 2 
Personnel Manual 



DEPARTMENT HEAD: A person in charge of a department of the City who is directly 
responsible to the City Administrator. 

DISCIPLINARY ACTION: Imposition of certain personnel actions (i.e., suspension, 
demotion, or termination). 

DUTY DAY: A day or shift when an employee is scheduled to be available for work. 

EXAMINATION: A test for the purpose of evaluating an applicant for an employment 
vacancy, promotion, or for advancement or maintenance of position. 

FISCAL YEAR: Twelve (12) month period starting July 1st and ending June 30th. 

FULL-TIME EMPLOYEE: An employee who works the normal amount of working hours 
for the position assigned (to be not less than 40 hours per week). 

GENDER: The masculine gender includes the feminine and the feminine gender includes the 
masculine. 

HOURLY RATE: Rate of compensation for each hour of work performed. It is determined 
by dividing the annual regular monthly salary by the regular number of hours worked each 
month. 

JOB RIGHT: A right to any job or benefit of employment established in the Stayton 
Personnel Manual. 

IMMEDIATE FAMILY: The spouse, son, daughter, stepchild, father, mother, brother, 
sister, father-in-law, mother-in-law, grandparent, and grandchild of the employee. In addition, 
any other relative living in the employee's household will be considered a member of the 
immediate family to include a same-sex domestic partner for purposes of OFLA. 

LAYOFF: A temporary or permanent separation from employment because of organizational 
changes, lack of work, lack of funds, or other reasons not reflecting discredit upon an 
employee. 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE: Time off from work for reasons within the scope and purpose of 
these rules and regulations upon prior approval of the employee's supervisor, department 
head, or the City Administrator. 

MAYOR: The highest ranking elected official of the City government. 

MILITARY LEAVE:  Leave of absence for an employee in active military training or active 
military duty. 

MONTH: One calendar month. 

NON-OCCUPATIONAL DISABILITY: Disability from an accident or sickness suffered or 
contracted by the employee which cannot be attributed to the performance of assigned duties. 

OCCUPATIONAL DISABILITY: Disability from an accident or sickness suffered or 
contracted as a result of the performance of assigned duties. 

OVERTIME: Overtime will be considered as time worked in excess of the regularly 
scheduled work day, work week, or work period unless an employee is exempted from 
overtime because of the executive, administrative, supervisory, or professional nature of 
his/her employment. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 3 
Personnel Manual 



PARENT:  An employee with parental rights and duties as defined by law who is responsible 
for the care and nurture of a child, and includes the adoptive mother or the adoptive father of 
a newly adopted child under six (6) years of age. The term "parent" does not include: 

a. An employee who has contracted to carry a child to term and to renounce parental 
rights at the birth of the child. 

b. An employee who has worked for the City for fewer than ninety (90) days prior to 
the first day of the requested parental leave. 

PARENTAL LEAVE: An unpaid leave of absence for childbirth or adoption of a child as 
allowed by ORS. 

PART-TIME EMPLOYEES: An employee who is employed regularly for less than forty 
(40) hours per week, and who normally follows a predetermined, fixed pattern of working 
hours. 

PERSONNEL ACTION: Any action taken with reference to appointment, compensation, 
promotion, transfer, layoff, disciplinary action, termination, or other action affecting the 
status of employment. 

PLURALITY: The singular will include the plural and the plural will include the singular. 

PROMOTION: The change of position for an employee one position to another position that 
has a higher maximum salary. 

REGULAR EMPLOYEE: An employee who has been retained in his appointed position 
after the completion of his trial service period. 

REPRIMAND: A written statement from a supervisor to an employee which identifies 
violations of work rules or repeated deficiencies of performance or failures to improve, 
intended by the supervisor to be an admonishment and to be disciplinary rather than 
corrective in nature. 

SEASONAL EMPLOYEE: An employee who has been appointed or hired for a full-time or 
part-time position for a limited season of the year (Example: Swimming pool employees 
working from June to September). 

SENIORITY: The length of continuous service to the City since an employee's last date of 
hire. 

SPLIT SHIFT: The division of a work day into two or more non-consecutive time periods 
(Example: work hours assigned 8:00 a.m. to noon; 4:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.). 

SUPERVISOR: Any person who is responsible to a higher divisional or departmental level 
of authority and who directs the work of others. 

SHIFT EMPLOYEE: An employee whose daily hours of work rotate from one shift to 
another periodically and whose duties are continuous from the start to the end of the shift. 

SUSPENSION: Temporary separation of an employee from City service with or without pay 
for disciplinary purposes or purposes of an investigation which may lead to disciplinary 
action. 

TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE: An employee who has been appointed for a job of limited 
duration arising out of special projects, abnormal workloads, or emergencies. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 4 
Personnel Manual 



TERMINATION: Termination of employment with the City for cause or termination of an 
at-will employee. 

TRANSFER: A change of an employee from one position to another within the City service. 

WARNING: An oral statement which outlines violations of work rules or deficiencies in the 
employee's job performance for which a memorandum may be placed in the employee's 
personnel file. 

WORK DAY: The regularly scheduled work day is eight (8) hours for employees working a 
five-day work week and ten (10) hours per day for employees working a four-day work week. 

WORK PERIOD: The work period is defined as a maximum of one-hundred seventy-one 
(171) non-overtime hours in a twenty-eight (28) day period for certified police officers. 

WORK WEEK: The regularly scheduled work week is forty (40) hours (Example: five 8-
hour or four 10-hour shifts), and begins on Sunday at 12:01 a.m. 

 

 
City of Stayton           Page 5 
Personnel Manual 



SECTION 2 
PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

 
2.1 ACCEPTANCE OF EMPLOYMENT APPLICATIONS 

1. The City will accept applications for employment only when a job vacancy exists and a job 
announcement has been posted. When no vacancy exists, unsolicited applications, letters, or 
résumés will not be accepted by the City. They will either be returned to the applicant or they 
will be disposed of by the City. 

a. Veterans’ Preference in Hiring: The City of Stayton provides qualifying veterans and 
disabled veterans preference in employment in accordance with ORS 408.225-
408.238.  For the preference to be applied, veterans must have received an honorable 
discharge from military service, successfully complete the initial application 
screening, and meet the minimum qualifications of the applied for position. To 
qualify for disabled veteran preference, applicants must submit proof of veteran 
status and proof of their veterans' disability rating from the Department of Veterans' 
Affairs. Applicants must submit proof of veteran status (DD214/DD215) at the time 
the application is submitted. 

2. Application Procedures 

a. The City Administrator will post a job announcement at City Hall for all job 
openings. 

b. An applicant for a vacant position will file a completed application for employment 
specifying the position applied for together with a letter of application, personal 
résumé, or other information as required in the job announcement. 

c. Non-job related personal information may be removed from any application materials 
received by the City. 

d. Upon filling of a vacancy, all applications will be placed in an inactive application 
file, which will be retained pursuant to Oregon State Archives City Records 
Retention Schedule. Inactive applications may not be reactivated. A new application 
must be filed for each job vacancy. Job applications will be considered inactive one-
hundred eighty days from the date of receipt by the City. 

3. All original appointments to vacancies will be made solely on the basis of merit, efficiency, 
and fitness. The decision to hire an applicant will be made by the appointing power after a 
careful and impartial evaluation. The appointing power may consider, but is not limited to, 
any or all of the following criteria: 

a. The applicant's job related knowledge, skills, abilities, experience, education, 
training, and when appropriate, prior demonstrated performance, aptitude, and 
character. 

b. The applicant's ability to perform the primary functions of the position for which the 
applicant has applied, with or without accommodation. 

c. The results of an oral interview(s), written examination, or the applicant's 
performance in an assessment center. 

d. The results of a background investigation. 

e. Other criteria applicable to the position. 
 

 
City of Stayton           Page 6 
Personnel Manual 



4. All statements submitted on the employment application or application materials may be 
subject to investigation and verification prior to appointment. 

5. No question in any test or in any application form or by any appointing power will be so 
framed as to attempt to elicit information concerning age, race, color, sex, ancestry, disability, 
national origin, marital status, or political or religious affiliation for the purpose of 
discrimination except when a bona fide occupational qualification exists. 

6. If required by the City, applicants may be finger-printed for the purpose of performing a 
criminal history check prior to appointment. An applicant’s conviction for any felony within 
the past 10 years preceding the date of application or conviction for any crime of dishonesty, 
crimes against a person or crime against property within the past 5 years shall be grounds to 
deny City employment to the applicant. 

7. The Employee Polygraph Protection Act of 1988 (EPPA) generally prevents employers from 
using lie detector tests, either for pre-employment screening or during the course of 
employment, with certain exemptions for government entities. Employers generally may not 
require or request any employee or job applicant to take a lie detector test, or discharge, 
discipline, or discriminate against an employee or job applicant for refusing to take a test or 
for exercising other rights under the Act. 

 
2.2 APPOINTMENT 

The Mayor must appoint and may remove the City Administrator with the consent of the council.  
The City Administrator will appoint all other department heads and will approve the appointment 
of all other employees. 
 

2.3 MEDICAL EXAMINATIONS 
1. For specific job classifications, an offer of employment may be contingent upon an 

applicant's successful completion of a medical examination, including a physical, and/or drug 
and alcohol testing by a doctor of the City's choice prior to appointment. If required, this 
examination will be provided at City’s expense. 

2. In order to ensure continued qualification for employment, the City periodically may request 
employees in specific job classifications to submit to a medical examination at City expense. 

3. Genetic Information Non-discrimination Act (GINA). Pursuant to GINA, the City does not 
discriminate against applicants or employees based upon either the employee’s or the 
employee’s family genetic information; nor does the City use genetic information in 
employment decisions. Family medical history is included in the definition of genetic 
information as it is often used to determine whether someone has an increased risk of getting 
a disease, disorder, or condition in the future. 

4. Once a condition manifests itself, the GINA no longer applies. More detailed information 
about GINA is available on the EEOC poster placed on the employee bulletin board. 

5. Genetic Information and Wellness Programs: Employees may be asked to sign voluntary 
waivers, in which, the employee acknowledges that his/her genetic information will only be 
provided to licensed health care professionals or board-certified counselors involved in the 
wellness program. There is no penalty for non-participation. 

 
 
 
 

 
City of Stayton           Page 7 
Personnel Manual 



2.4 DRIVING RECORD 
1. The driving record of any job applicant will be checked by the City prior to being hired and 

as a condition of employment. Driving record must be acceptable to the City and its insurance 
companies coverage guidelines. 

2. Employees who may be required to drive must possess a valid Oregon driver's license and 
must comply with any restriction. All employees who may be required to drive on City 
business may at any time have their driving record checked by the City. If the record 
indicates major traffic violations, the employee may be subject to warnings or sanctions and 
may not be permitted to operate a City vehicle. 

3. Employees who may be required to drive will notify their department head of any change in 
license status and all major traffic violations. Failure to report a major traffic violation or 
change in license status to the department head is viewed as a violation of City policy. The 
City monitors driving records as a component of risk management in order to identify needs 
of driver improvement. 

 
2.5 ORIENTATION 

Upon appointment, the department head or a designate will be responsible for the orientation of 
each new employee. Orientation will include, but will not be limited to, organization and services 
of the City, work rules, personnel manual and procedures, safety manual, benefits, completion of 
payroll forms, and introduction to other City personnel. 
 

2.6 EMPLOYEE STATUS 
1. Regular Full-time Employee: An employee who regularly works a minimum of forty (40) 

hours a week on a continuing basis, and one who has completed the trial service period is 
considered a regular full-time employee. 

2. Regular Part-time Employee:  An employee who regularly works less than forty (40) hours a 
week is considered a regular part-time employee once the trial service period is successfully 
completed. 

a. Benefits for Regular Part-Time Employees (25+ hours per week):  The City will 
provide the following benefits to regular part-time employees who are regularly 
scheduled to work twenty-five (25) or more hours per week: 
 

• Social Security 
• Workers' Compensation Insurance 
• Sick Leave 
• Vacation Leave 
• Health, vision, and dental insurance if the employee meets 

eligibility requirements of the Plan. 
 
b. Regular part-time employees will earn sick leave and vacation leave proportionate to 

the minimum number of hours the employee is regularly scheduled to work (e.g., 25 
hrs/wk = 5/8 time x 8 hrs sick leave = 5 hours sick leave per month). 

c. The City and regular part-time employees will share insurance premium costs. The 
City will pay a share of the insurance premium costs proportionate to the number of 
hours the employee is regularly scheduled to work (e.g., if the employee works 25 
hours per week, the City will pay 62.5 percent; 30 hours = 75 percent; 35 hours = 
87.5 percent). 

 
City of Stayton           Page 8 
Personnel Manual 



 

d. No other benefits will be provided to regular part-time employees who are regularly 
scheduled to work twenty-five (25) or more hours per week. 

e. Benefits for regular part-time employees (one to twenty-four hours per week):  the 
City will provide the following benefits to regular part-time employees who are 
regularly scheduled to work less than twenty-five (25) hours per week. 
 

• Social Security 
• Workers' Compensation Insurance 

 
No other benefits will be provided to regular part-time employees who are regularly 
scheduled to work less than twenty-five (25) hours per week. 

3. Temporary Employee: Temporary employees are defined as those employees holding jobs of 
limited duration arising out of special projects, abnormal work loads, or emergencies.  
Temporary employees are ineligible for employer-paid benefits, with the exception of: 

 
• Social Security 
• Workers’ Compensation Insurance 

4. Seasonal Employee: Seasonal employees are defined as those employees holding jobs of 
limited duration during a limited season of the year. Seasonal employees are not covered by 
these personnel policies and are ineligible for employer-paid benefits, with the exception of: 

 
• Social Security 
• Workers’ Compensation Insurance 

5. Volunteers: Volunteers are covered by these personnel policies and are ineligible for 
employer-paid benefits except Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage. 

6. Inactive Status: An employee who is on an unpaid leave of absence (other than protected 
leave such as FMLA) for thirty (30) days or more. Inactive employees are covered by these 
personnel policies, but are ineligible for employer-paid benefits. 

7. All employees except temporary or seasonal employees are hired for an unspecified duration. 
No position guarantees employment for any specific length of time. Employment is at the 
mutual consent of the employee and the City. Accordingly, either the employee or the City 
can terminate the employment relationship at any time in accordance with City procedures 
and applicable collective bargaining agreements. 

 
2.7 RELATIVES IN THE CITY’S SERVICE 

Relatives of employees may be hired by the City only if individuals concerned do not work in a 
direct supervisory relationship. Present employees who marry will be permitted to continue to 
work only if they do not work in a direct supervisory relationship with one another. Employees 
will be allowed to accept a demotion to an available and suitable position to avoid direct 
supervision by a relative. If this cannot be accomplished, the least senior employee will be 
terminated. 

 
2.8 WORK WEEK AND WORKING HOURS 

1. The normal work week consists of forty (40) hours and begins on Sunday at 12:01 a.m.  
Employees are expected to accomplish service priorities in a timely fashion within the normal 
work week to the greatest extent possible. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 9 
Personnel Manual 



 

2. The hours of employment for each employee will be fixed by the department heads with 
regard to convenience of the public. 

3. Supervisors will establish meal and break periods as required by law. Employees may take a 
fifteen (15) minute rest period during each half shift, scheduled at, or as nearly as feasible, to 
the middle of each half shift. Rest periods shall not exceed 15 minutes in total. Rest periods 
shall neither interfere with nor be detrimental to public safety. An uncompensated meal 
period not to exceed one (1) hour during each work shift shall be granted consistent with 
operational requirements.  

 
2.9 TRANSFERS 

Requests from employees for transfers from one department to another will be made in writing 
and will be directed to the employee's present department head and referred to the appropriate 
department head and the City Administrator. Such requests will be given consideration when a 
suitable vacancy occurs; with the submission of a completed employment application. However, 
no employee will be transferred to a position for which he does not possess the minimum 
qualifications. 

 
2.10 PROMOTIONS 

1. Job vacancies may but need not be filled by advertising the vacancy only within the City.  
The decision to promote qualified City employees without advertising the position to the 
general public may be made in the discretion of the City Administrator based on a 
determination that a qualified pool of applicants exists within the City work force. 

2. Any promotional appointment to fill a position vacancy will be made on a competitive basis 
utilizing the criteria for appointments as established in the application procedures, Section 
2.1.2. 

3. In the case of promotional appointments, the promoted employee may be demoted at any time 
during the trial service period without appeal, provided that the employee is reinstated in the 
position from which he or she was promoted, even though this may necessitate the layoff of 
the employee occupying the position previously held by the demoted employee. 

 
2.11 LAYOFF 

1. The City Administrator may lay off employees if there are changes of duties in the 
organization, a reduction in the number of employees working for the City, lack of work, or 
lack of funds. 

2. Whenever possible, qualified employees who are scheduled to be laid off in a department will 
be integrated into another department by transfer if vacant positions are available. When 
layoffs are required, the decision will be based on relative merit and will give due 
consideration to seniority in the City service only where the employees' qualifications and 
ability are relatively equal. 

3. In the event a layoff is necessary, the City will advise the affected employee fifteen (15) 
working days in advance of the effective date of the layoff. 

4. In the event the position from which an employee was laid off becomes available within 
twelve (12) months after the effective date of the layoff, the employee who was laid off will 
be rehired, if he or she is available and accepts the position within ten (10) days of notice by 
the City that the position is available. Notice of the position vacancy shall be sent by the City 
to the employee by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 

 
City of Stayton           Page 10 
Personnel Manual 



 

2.12 RESIDENCE REQUIREMENTS 
Residency will not be a general condition of employment with the City. Employees are 
encouraged to live within the City; however, the City may require any employee to reside within 
ten (10) driving miles of City Hall if the employee's job responsibilities include duties which are 
to be performed outside of the regular workday on an emergency basis. The positions requiring 
City residency will be specified at the time the job vacancies are announced. 

 
2.13 VOLUNTARY RESIGNATION 

1. To resign in good standing, an employee will give his or her supervisor not less than ten (10) 
working days prior notice of such resignation unless the department head waives the 10-day 
notice provision because of extenuating circumstances. 

2. The notice of resignation will be in writing and will contain the reasons for leaving the City's 
service. The notice of resignation will be placed in the central personnel file. 

3. Failure to comply with this section will be entered in the employee's personnel record and 
may be cause for denying future employment by the City. 

 
2.14 RE-EMPLOYMENT 

Employees with a satisfactory record of service who resign their positions will be allowed to 
apply for vacancies under the same conditions as set forth in the application procedures section of 
this manual. 

 
2.15 VOLUNTEER SERVICES 

1. Any services volunteered will be offered freely and without pressure or coercion, direct or 
implied, from any supervisor, department head, or council member. 

2. No employee will be allowed to volunteer services for the City for work that is related to or is 
an extension of the employee's regular duties for the City. 

3. Any voluntary service performed must be outside normal or regular working hours and it 
must be performed without any expectation or contemplation of payment for work performed. 

 
2.16 PERSONNEL RECORDS 

1. The City will maintain a central personnel file at City Hall for each employee in the service 
of the City. 

2. The central personnel file will show the employee's name, social security number, home 
address, birth date, sex, title of position held, the department to which assigned, salary,  
change in employment status, emergency medical information and names of persons to 
contact in the event of an emergency, evaluations, training received, and such other 
information relating to the employee's qualifications for employment, promotion, 
compensation, termination, or other disciplinary action, and any other information or material 
the City deems relevant to the employee's City employment. 

3. A Personnel Action Form will be used as the single document to initiate and update personnel 
records. 

4. Personnel records will be considered confidential and will be accessible only to the City 
Administrator, supervisors, managers, and others authorized access by the City Administrator 
in accordance with Oregon law, or as required by the business and operational needs or 
interests of the City. Employees may examine their personnel records at a mutually 
convenient time upon request to the City Administrator or designee. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 11 
Personnel Manual 



 

5. Employees will be notified of any Personnel Action Forms or adverse entries into the 
employee's central personnel file. 

6. For each employee's benefit, it is important that all personnel records be kept up to date. If 
there is a change of name, address, telephone number, marital status, or number of 
dependents, the department head and Finance Director will be notified. 

7. Confidential Information Storage:  Records pertaining to I-9 verification, medical records, 
and victims of domestic violence are considered confidential and shall be maintained by the 
City Administrator or designee in confidential files separate from the personnel file. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 12 
Personnel Manual 



 

SECTION 3 
EMPLOYEE TRAVEL AUTHORIZATION AND REIMBURSEMENT 

 
3.1 GENERAL EXPECTATIONS 

All employees of the City are expected to use good judgment regarding the expenditure of the 
funds for travel expenses. Only through teamwork can the costs of travel on City business be 
minimized. 

 
3.2 DOCUMENTATION OBJECTIVE 

The procedures for documenting the expenses involved with employee travel on City related 
business activities are designed to provide accountability in two areas: 

a. Pre-approval of all travel requests to insure that the travel is appropriate to the needs of 
the City and that budgeted funds are available for the specific travel request. 

b. A complete accounting of the actual expenses for the travel to insure that the expenses 
being reported for reimbursement are appropriate and to provide documentation of the 
expenditure of City funds. 

 
3.3 APPROVAL AND REIMBURSEMENT 

1. When an employee anticipates submitting a request for travel reimbursement, the employee 
will obtain prior approval for the trip and the mode of travel from the employee's supervisor. 

2. Travel on official business outside the City by a single individual should be by City-owned 
vehicle or private vehicle. If the employee is authorized to use a private vehicle, mileage will 
be reimbursed at the applicable IRS rate at the time of travel. 

3. City vehicles will be used for authorized City uses and will not be used for private gain or 
benefit. 

4. City vehicles will not be used by family members of employees. 

5. Reimbursement for expenses on official trips will only be for expenses incurred during the 
performance of official duty as a City employee for the City's benefit. Meals and lodging 
expenses may be reimbursed up to the IRS reimbursement rates for meals and lodging in 
compliance with the Local Government employers’ taxable fringe benefit guide. 

NOTE: The City will not reimburse an employee for the cost of any alcoholic beverage 

6. When the employee knows that expenses for an upcoming trip will exceed the IRS limits, the 
employee will request and the department head may approve the additional expenses. 

7. Within one (1) week after the travel has been completed, the employee must turn in receipts 
for lodging and any other expenses which were paid on an actual basis. Receipts are required 
for meal reimbursement. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 13 
Personnel Manual 



 

SECTION 4 
POSITION DESCRIPTIONS 

 
4.1 POSITION DESCRIPTIONS 

1. The City Administrator will prepare and maintain a list of all job positions in the City.  
Copies of the job list and individual position descriptions will be available at City Hall. 

2. Position descriptions will include titles and written specifications. Job titles will refer to a 
particular position, not to the individual filling a position and will be used in all personnel, 
budget, and financial records. 

3. Each position will be allocated to an appropriate department on the basis of the duties and 
responsibilities of the position. 

4. Each position description will include a concise, descriptive title, a description of the duties 
and responsibilities, and the physical requirements. Position descriptions take into 
consideration the requirements of the job and are merely descriptive and explanatory of the 
work to be performed. They may not include all of the duties and are not intended to replace 
detailed work assignments. 

 
4.2 NEW POSITIONS 

1. The City Administrator will be responsible for keeping the position plan current through 
periodic studies of positions within the City service. 

2. The City Administrator may, with the approval of the City Council, create new positions. 
 

 
City of Stayton           Page 14 
Personnel Manual 



 

SECTION 5 
PAY PLAN, SCHEDULING, AND OVERTIME PRACTICES 

 
5.1 PAY PLAN 

1. The City policy is to pay fair, competitive wages which attract and hold qualified employees.  
Every job has been given a title and pay range. Wages are reviewed regularly to insure that 
City pay rates remain competitive. 

2. The City Administrator will prepare a salary schedule and pay plan covering all positions in 
the City, showing the minimum and maximum rates of pay. 

3. In arriving at such salary ranges, consideration is given to total compensation for comparable 
work in private places of employment, and other public employment in communities of 
similar size and location, including consideration of conditions of work and basic pay, current 
costs of living, the local economy and wage adjustments in the community, suggestions of 
department heads, and the City's financial condition. 

4. The City does not discriminate when determining how much to pay an individual. Some 
examples of, but not limited to, considerations when determining pay: skills, effort, 
responsibility, working conditions, years of experience, education, impact of errors, job 
complexity, access to confidential information, tasks performed, number of staff supervised, 
certifications, contact with others, merit, and supervision received. 

 
5.2 ANALYSIS OF PAY PLAN 

1. At least once each fiscal year, the City Administrator will review the current City salary rates, 
compensation policies, and personnel regulations of the City. 

2. The City Administrator may submit to the City Council recommendations for granting a cost 
of living wage adjustment, amending the personnel policies, compensation policies, and pay 
plan. 

3. All salaries and approval of any salary increases are subject to funds being available in the 
City budget. 

 
5.3 INITIAL COMPENSATION AND SALARY REVIEWS 

1. Upon initial or promotional appointment to a position, the employee will receive the 
minimum salary for the position. 

2. However, in cases where unusual difficulty in filling the vacancies is experienced or when the 
appointee is exceptionally qualified, the department head may recommend and the City 
Administrator may cause the appointment to be made at a salary level above the minimum, 
but not more than the maximum, for the position. 

3. Compensation will be reviewed at the end of an employee's trial service period and on an 
annual basis concurrently with the employee's performance evaluation. 

 
5.4 SALARY ADJUSTMENTS 

1. Salary adjustments (increases or decreases) may be warranted and approved while an 
employee works for the City. 

2. Salary decreases: Employees may receive salary decreases as follows: 

a. Across the board reduction in wages for all City employees due to a lack of funds in 
the City; or 

 
City of Stayton           Page 15 
Personnel Manual 



 

b. As part of a disciplinary action, in accordance with sections 12.1 to 12.4; or 

c. For unsatisfactory job performance, in accordance with section 11.2.2. All salary 
decreases must be recommended by the employee's department head and approved by 
the City Administrator. Salary decreases approved by the City Administrator will 
take effect on the date specified on the Personnel Action Form. 

3. Salary increases: Employees may receive salary increases as follows: 

a. For successful completion of the employee's trial service period; or 

b. For satisfactory, above average, or outstanding job performance; or 

c. For successful completion of job related training or education. 

4. All salary increases are discretionary and may occur if funds are available in the City budget. 

5. All salary increases must be recommended by the employee's department head and approved 
by the City Administrator, annually following a positive employee evaluation. COLA 
increases approved by the City Administrator will take effect on the first day of July unless 
otherwise specified on the Personnel Action Form. 

a. Successful Completion of Trial Service Period: The City Administrator may grant an 
employee a one-step merit salary increase upon the employee's successful completion 
of his/her trial service period if the employee receives a "satisfactory" or better 
performance evaluation. 

b. Satisfactory Performance: The City Administrator may grant an employee an annual 
one-step merit salary increase for satisfactory job performance when the employee 
receives a "satisfactory" or better performance rating. It is possible for an employee 
to receive a "satisfactory" evaluation and not receive a merit salary increase. 

c. Superior Performance: The City Administrator may grant an employee a one-step 
merit salary increase for superior job performance when the employee receives one 
or more performance evaluations with an "outstanding" or "above average" 
performance rating. The City recognizes that an employee who receives an 
"outstanding," or "above average" rating has exceeded normal expectations for the 
position and warrants consideration for a merit increase. 

d. Incentive Salary Increase for Education: The City Administrator may grant an 
incentive pay increase, in $50.00 increments, not to exceed $100.00 per month to an 
employee who successfully completes a significant amount of job-related educational 
courses on his/her own time and outside regularly scheduled work hours that increase 
the employee's productivity, improve work skills, and/or enable the employee to 
handle increased job responsibilities. Each department will prepare an incentive 
program which outlines the education or training required to obtain an incentive pay 
increase. 

6. All salary step increases are discretionary and must be recommended by the employee's 
supervisor and/or department head and approved by the City Administrator. Salary 
increases approved by the City Administrator will take effect on the first day of July 
unless otherwise specified on the Personnel Action Form. 

 
5.5 ACTING-IN-CAPACITY SALARY ADJUSTMENT 

1. An employee may receive an immediate, temporary five (5) percent salary increase when 
he/she accepts additional job responsibilities due to the absence of twenty-two (22) or more 

 
City of Stayton           Page 16 
Personnel Manual 



 

consecutive work days of the employee’s direct supervisor. Acting-in-capacity salary 
adjustments may be approved when: 

a. The employee's supervisor is absent for twenty-two (22) or more consecutive works 
days due to education, training, vacation, illness, or other leave of absence. 

b. The Department head recommends, and the City Administrator approves, the 
temporary salary adjustment on a Personnel Action Form. 

c. The employee takes on the duties of the supervisor in an acting capacity (example: 
public works superintendent acting as public works director in the director's absence). 

2. The salary adjustment will take effect on the date specified on the Personnel Action Form and 
will end on the date the supervisor returns to work. 

 
5.6 BONUSES 

The City Administrator may approve one-time salary bonuses to employees up to an amount of 
$100.00 per bonus when an individual performs exemplary service for the City and the citizens of 
the community. Bonuses will be added to the regular monthly paycheck. 

 
5.7 PAY PERIOD 

The pay period will begin on the twenty-sixth (26th) of the month and end on the twenty-fifth 
(25th) of the month. 

 
5.8 PAY DAY 

Employees will be paid on the last day of the month. A draw day on the fifteenth day is optional 
to the employee. The draw will not exceed 50 percent of the employee's take-home pay or of the 
net salary earned to the day of the draw, whichever is less. If the payday of the month falls on a 
Saturday or Sunday, payday will be the preceding Friday. If the payday of the month falls on a 
holiday, payday will be on the last regular work day of the month. 

 
5.9 PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS 

1. Required Deductions: Federal and state laws require the following deductions from every 
paycheck: 

a. Federal Withholding Tax 

b. State Withholding Tax 

c. Social Security Taxes (FICA) and Medicare 

d. Oregon Employee Work Benefit 

e. Court ordered child support payments or garnishments 

2. Optional Deductions: Other deductions may be made from the employee's paycheck with the 
employee's written request, including, but not limited to: 

a. Insurance contributions 

b. Deferred Compensation or retirement contributions 

c. United Way or other charitable contributions 

d. Any other deduction of general interest to City employees affecting five or more 
employees may be authorized by the employee, in writing, with approval of the 
Finance Director. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 17 
Personnel Manual 



 

5.10 TIME RECORDS 
Time cards must serve as an accurate record of the time for which each employee is paid wages 
and overtime. Each employee is expected to record accurately the time spent working on city 
business. The time card will be submitted to the employee's supervisor for approval at the end of 
each pay period. The supervisor will submit all approved time cards to the Finance Department.  
All time cards will be retained with payroll records. 

 
5.11 SEPARATION PAY 

A regular employee terminating employment with the City will be paid any earned and unpaid 
wages then due for work hours, earned vacation which the employee is eligible to take off, and 
compensatory time, which shall be paid at the employee’s hourly rate (hereinafter “pay upon 
separation”). An employee who is involuntarily terminated will be paid no later than the end of 
the first business day after a discharge or termination. If an employee resigns and fails to give at 
least forty-eight (48) hours advance notice prior to quitting City employment, pay upon 
separation shall be paid within forty-eight (48) hours of the termination excluding weekends and 
holidays. 

 
5.12 OVERTIME 

1. Department heads and supervisors will assign to each employee regular work duties and 
responsibilities which can normally be accomplished within the established workday or 
workweek. 

2. For positions which are exempt, executive, or administrative positions under the FLSA, 
overtime is considered a part of the job responsibilities and overtime in addition to the regular 
salary is not provided. Compensation for overtime will not be paid in excess of salary to 
incumbents of the following positions: 

a. City Administrator 

b. Police Chief 

c. Police Lieutenant 

d. Public Works Director 

e. Public Works Supervisor 

f. Sewer System Supervisor 

g. Finance Director 

h. Library Director 

i. City Recorder 

j. Director of Planning and Development 

k. Other supervisory or professionals where the position has been declared exempt    
from Federal Labor Standards Act (FLSA) standards by the City Administrator. 

3. Overtime and compensatory time off for all non-FLSA exempt employees are covered by the 
following guidelines: 

a. No employee will work in excess of the following limits unless approval is granted 
by the employee's supervisor. 

i. Eight (8) hours in one day; or 

ii. Ten (10) hours in one day if the employee is working on a regularly 

 
City of Stayton           Page 18 
Personnel Manual 



 

scheduled ten-hour shift; or 

iii. Forty (40) hours in one week; or 

iv. One-hundred seventy-one (171) hours in a 28-day period (police officers 
only). 

b. When budgeted funds are available for approved overtime, the City will pay an 
employee at one and one-half times his/her regular hourly rate of pay. For employees 
working a regular ten (10) hour work day, overtime will be calculated based on hours 
worked in excess of ten (10) hours in any one day. 

c. If budgeted funds are not available for the payment of overtime and it is consistent 
with the needs of the city, such overtime may be allowed in compensatory time off at 
the rate of one and one-half times the overtime hours worked. 

d. Overtime and compensatory time off will be computed and rounded up to the nearest 
one quarter hour. 

e. Compensatory time accumulation will not ordinarily exceed forty (40) hours. All 
compensatory time accumulated over forty (40) hours will be converted to overtime 
pay the following payday unless a written exception to accumulate more than forty 
hours is granted by the department head. 

f. An employee may request compensatory time off by filing a written request to his or 
her Supervisor. 

g. The supervisor may grant the request or may direct that the compensatory time off be 
taken at an agreed upon time. 

h. At any time, the City may elect to provide an employee with a cash payment for any 
or all accumulated compensatory time off. 

i. At the time of an employee's resignation or termination, the City will pay the 
employee for all accumulated overtime and compensatory time off. 

4. Notwithstanding prohibitions in sections 5.12.3.a through 5.12.3i, employees who in fact 
work overtime will be compensated regardless of whether that time was preauthorized. 
Employees who work overtime without authorization will be subject to discipline. 

 
5.13 MANAGEMENT LEAVE 

Federal Labor Standards Act (FLSA) exempt employees will be allowed time off with pay at a 
time approved by their supervisors. Department heads will regulate their own use of management 
leave, and will provide the City Administrator at least one day of advance notice of any day 
which they intend to take off. Management leave may be granted if the time off does not exceed 
the amount of time worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week. Any FLSA-exempt employees 
who leave city employment for any reason will not receive any compensation for hours worked in 
excess of forty (40) hours per week. 

 
5.14 WEEKEND DUTY / HOLIDAY / STANDBY TIME 

The City may pay Public Works employees a rate of pay for working on weekends or holidays 
when this work is in addition to a regularly scheduled 40-hour work week in accordance with a 
written department policy and procedure. 

 

 
City of Stayton           Page 19 
Personnel Manual 



 

SECTION 6 
TIME OFF 

 
6.1 HOLIDAYS 

1. All regular and trial service employees of the City will be entitled to the holidays listed below 
with pay. Full-time employees will receive regular compensation for one (1) work day at the 
regular rate of pay. 

• New Year’s Day 
• Martin Luther King Jr. Day 
• Presidents’ Day 
• Memorial Day 
• Independence Day 
• Labor Day 
• Veterans Day 
• Thanksgiving Day 
• Day after Thanksgiving Day 
• Christmas Day 

2. If any such holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday will be given as a holiday. If a 
holiday falls on Saturday, the preceding Friday will be given as a holiday. 

3. Holidays which occur during vacation or sick leave will not be charged against such leave. 

4. Paid holidays will not be paid to employees on leave without pay. 
 
6.2 VACATION 

1. Upon satisfactory completion of the first six months of the trial service period, annual 
vacation will be computed from the first day of the first full month of employment (e.g., 
Employees starting on the first day of the month receive credit for that month; employees 
starting on the second day of the month receive credit for the month following), and shall be 
posted to the vacation balance on the first day of the first full month during which the 
employee serves as a regular employee. 

2. Vacation leave will be earned on a monthly basis. 

3. Vacation Accrual Schedule. 

a. Regular full-time employees will earn the following annual vacation leaves based on 
the number of continuous years of service the employee has worked for the City: 

0 through completion of 5 years 80 hours annually 
6 through completion of 10 years 120 hours annually 
11 through completion of 15 years 160 hours annually 
15 or more years 200 hours annually 

b. Regular full-time non-union employees of the Stayton Police Department will earn 
the following annual vacation leaves based on the number of continuous years of 
service the employee has worked for the City: 

0 through completion of 3 years 80 hours annually 
4 through completion of 7 years 120 hours annually 
8 through completion of 12 years 160 hours annually 
13 or more years 200 hours annually 

 
City of Stayton           Page 20 
Personnel Manual 



 

4. Regular part-time employees will earn vacation leave at a rate in proportion to the number of 
hours they are normally scheduled to work. 

5. An employee will not be eligible to take vacation leave during the first six (6) months of 
employment. 

6. Vacation leave is granted to give employees an opportunity to take time off from their job 
responsibilities and refresh themselves. The City believes it is important for employees to use 
vacation leave on a regular basis. 

a. For the first five (5) years of employment, each employee is required to take a 
minimum of forty (40) hours of vacation leave annually. For each year after five 
years of employment, each employee is required to take a minimum of eighty (80) 
hours of vacation leave annually. 

b. If an employee does not use up all accumulated vacation leave by the first day of 
January of any calendar year, the employee may carry over vacation leave up to the 
maximum number of hours listed: 

Upon completion of 0 to 5 years of service 120 hours 
Upon completion of 6 to 10 years of service 160 hours 
Upon completion of 11 to 15 years of service 200 hours 
Upon beginning of 16+ years of service 240 hours 

c. Sworn Officers of the Stayton Police Department do not use accumulated vacation 
leave by the first day of January of any calendar year, the employee may carry over 
vacation leave up to the maximum number of hours listed: 

Upon completion of 0 to 3 years of service 120 hours 
Upon completion of 4 to 7 years of service 160 hours 
Upon completion of 8 to 12 years of service 200 hours 
Upon beginning of 13 or more years of service 240 hours 

d. On the first day of January of a calendar year, an employee will automatically lose 
any unused vacation the employee has accumulated over the maximum allowed in 
section 6.2.6b & c. No other compensation will be given to the employee unless 
granted by the City Council in accordance with Section 6.2.7. 

7. In the event an employee anticipates his/her earned vacation will exceed the maximum hours 
allowed for carry over to the next year, the employee may file a written request with his/her 
department head prior to the first day of January, that the City convert forty-hour blocks of 
vacation time into pay. Approval or denial of the request is at the discretion of the city. The 
conversion of earned vacation to pay may be approved only by the City Council and only if it 
finds the following conditions exist: 

a. The department head and the City Administrator have recommended approval of the 
request so that work priorities can be accomplished; 

b. The City will benefit more from the employee's continued work than by his/her 
taking earned vacation time;  

c. The employee has taken a minimum of eighty (80) hours of vacation during the 
preceding twelve months. 
 
 

 
City of Stayton           Page 21 
Personnel Manual 



 

8. All vacations must be scheduled and approved by department heads in advance with due 
consideration being given to the desires of the employees and to the work requirements 
facing the department. Vacation schedules may be amended to allow the department to meet 
emergency situations. 

9. Vacation leave will not be used in blocks of less than five (5) work days unless approved by 
the department head. 

10. An employee who has completed six (6) months of employment and is terminated prior to 
using any or all of his or her vacation will be paid for the unused portion of the vacation time 
earned. 

 
6.3 SICK LEAVE 

1. Accrual: In order to minimize the economic hardships that may result from an unexpected 
short-term personal or dependent illness or injury, the City provides regular full-time 
employees with eight (8) hours of accumulated sick leave per month. 

2. Part-time employees working twenty-five (25) or more hours per week will earn sick leave at 
a rate proportionate to the minimum number of hours the employee is normally scheduled to 
work. 

3. Sick leave will be calculated from the first day of the first full month of employment (e.g., 
Employees hired on the first day of the month begin earning sick leave that month; 
employees starting on the second day of the month begin earning sick leave the following 
month). 

4. Employees are eligible to use sick leave for the following reasons: 

a. Personal illness or physical disability. 

b. Quarantine of an employee by a physician for non-occupationally related disability. 

c. Illness in the employee's immediate family when the employee is needed to care for a 
dependent living in the employee's household. 

d. Medical or dental appointments which cannot be scheduled outside regular workday 
hours. 

e. Disability or illness caused by pregnancy will be treated in the same manner as any 
other temporary physical condition requiring time off work as specified in section 
6.6. 

f. Funeral Attendance: The employee must actually attend the funeral.  Sick leave will 
be granted on the day of the funeral and up to an additional two (2) days in order to 
travel to and from the funeral.  Any additional bereavement leave must be charged to 
vacation. 

5. Employees will be charged sick leave on the basis of one (1) sick leave hour for each duty 
hour absent. 

6. Notification of Inability to Work: Employees who are unable to report to work due to personal 
or dependent illness or injury must contact the immediate supervisor on or before scheduled 
starting time. If an employee becomes sick during the day, the supervisor or designee must be 
notified before the employee leaves work. When sick leave is taken to care for a dependent, 
the City expects that other care arrangements will be made as soon as possible, except where 
leave for dependent care purposes is provided for by family leave laws and employee is 

 
City of Stayton           Page 22 
Personnel Manual 



 

eligible for such leave. The employee must comply with the notice requirements under family 
leave laws, which may provide for later notification of inability to work than is otherwise 
required by this policy if the need for the leave is unanticipated. 

7. An employee who uses two (2) working days or less of sick leave, during a calendar year will 
be credited with a bonus of eight (8) hours of pay at the employee's regular rate of pay. 

8. Unused sick leave benefits may accumulate from year to year. 

9. An employee who has at least one-hundred twenty (120) hours of earned sick leave may, with 
the approval of the City Administrator, donate ten (10) hours sick leave to a fellow employee 
twice during each calendar year. The Administrator's determination will be based on his 
judgment of the need of the individual to receive such sick leave, and his decision is not 
subject to appeal. 

10. An employee who has at least five-hundred (500) hours of earned sick leave may, with the 
approval of the City Administrator, donate twenty (20) hours sick leave to a fellow employee 
once during each calendar year. The Administrator's determination will be based on his 
judgment of the need of the individual to receive such sick leave, and his decision is not 
subject to appeal. 

11. An employee who has at least one-thousand (1000) hours of earned sick leave may, with the 
approval of the City Administrator, donate forty (40) hours sick leave to a fellow employee 
once during each calendar year. The Administrator's determination will be based on his 
judgment of the need of the individual to receive such sick leave, and his decision is not 
subject to appeal. 

12. Employees are not paid for unused sick leave upon employment termination. 

13. Concurrent Leaves: Sometimes more than one type of leave may apply to a situation. Where 
allowed by federal or state law, leaves will run concurrently. This means that sick leave, 
workers’ compensation leave, leave as a reasonable accommodation for a qualified individual 
with a disability, federal family medical leave and state family leave, unpaid leaves of 
absence, may all run concurrently and be counted against the employee’s family medical 
leave entitlement. The City may designate any type of leave as family medical leave if the 
leave is used for a qualified family medical leave purpose. 

14. Medical Certification: An employee on sick leave that is running concurrently with another 
type of leave, for example, family medical leave or personal leave, must provide the medical 
certification required for any and all applicable types of leave. This means an employee on 
sick leave may be required to have their medical provider complete the certification of 
physician or practitioner form required for federal or state family medical leave, obtain 
second or third medical opinions at the City’s expense as provided by family medical leave 
laws, and provide fitness for duty medical certifications before return to work as provided by 
the family medical leave policy. 

 
6.4 WITNESS OR JURY DUTY 

When a City employee is called for jury duty or is subpoenaed as a witness, he/she will not suffer 
any loss and will receive his/her regular wages while serving on the jury or serving as a witness.  
Employees serving as jurors or as a witness will transfer to the City any payment he/she receives 
for the performance of this duty, except mileage reimbursement. The employee will provide a 
copy of the summons to their supervisor at least 2 weeks prior to the required appearance. The 
employee will be granted a reasonable time-off duty to serve as a witness or juror without loss of 
pay, earned vacation, or sick leave. Jury duty may require rescheduling if operations will be 

 
City of Stayton           Page 23 
Personnel Manual 



 

adversely effected. This provision does not apply to any absence when the employee is a plaintiff 
in the litigation, or a defendant in litigation which did not arise in the course of the employee's 
employment and does not relate to the performance of the employee's official duties. 

 
6.5 CONFERENCES AND CONVENTIONS 

Decisions concerning attendance at conferences, conventions, or other meetings at City expense 
will be made by the department head with the approval of the City Administrator. Permission 
may be granted based on the costs to the City and the benefits to the City from the employee's 
participation in the conference or the direct relation of the employee's work to the subject matter 
of the meeting. 

 
6.6 OREGON FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE (OFLA) AND FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT 

(FMLA) 
This policy intends to comply with applicable law and enables employees to take up to 12 weeks 
of protected leave in a 12-month period for their own serious condition; for the birth or adoption 
of a child; for the placement of a foster child; for the care of a child with a non-serious health 
condition; for the care of a spouse, parent, child, grandparent, grandchild, parent-in-law, same-sex 
domestic partner, or someone with whom the employee has an “In Loco Parentis” relationship 
who has a serious health condition; and for an exigency leave related to a spouse, child or parent 
of a covered service member who is on active duty or called to active duty. In addition, leave is 
provided to employees to enable them to take up to 26 weeks of protected leave in a 12-month 
period for the care of a spouse, child, parent or next of kin of a covered service member or 
veteran who has a serious injury or illness. An employee must be eligible under the FMLA to 
receive the defined benefits. 
 
The City of Stayton follows a calendar year, Sunday through Saturday. 
 
1. FMLA applies to employers with 50 or more employees in the current or previous year. To be 

eligible for FMLA leave, employees must have worked for the employer for at least 12 
months (not necessarily consecutive), and have worked at least 1,250 hours during the 12-
month period immediately preceding the leave. 

FMLA is differentiated from OFLA as follows (FMLA and OFLA will run concurrently 
under most, but not all circumstances): 

a. FMLA only provides for protected time off for the serious health condition of the 
employee or his or her spouse, child or parent (or one standing in the place of a 
parent or child of the employee). OFLA also extends to grandparents and 
grandchildren, parents-in-law, same-gender domestic partners and children and 
parents of same-gender domestic partners. 

b. OFLA (but not FMLA) has sick child leave (non-serious health condition requiring 
home care) and the additional allotment of leave following pregnancy disability leave 
and sick child leave following 12 weeks of parental leave. 

c. FMLA and Workers Compensation Leave may run concurrently. 

d. The City will designate leaves of absence as covered under FMLA and/or OFLA, 
even when not requested by the employee, if the reason for the absence is a 
qualifying purpose under one or both of the laws regulating these leaves of absence. 

2. OFLA applies to employers with 25 or more employees. Eligible employees are those who 
have been with the City for more than 180 days, working an average of 25 hours per week or 

 
City of Stayton           Page 24 
Personnel Manual 



 

more, are eligible to take twelve weeks leave within a twelve-month period for the: 

a. Birth of a child. 

b. Adoption of a child up to age 18 (or older if incapable of self care) or the placement 
of a foster child. 

c. Care of a child aged 18 or over, grandparent, grandchild, parent-in-law, same-sex 
domestic partner, or child or parent of a same-sex domestic partner who has a serious 
health condition. 

d. The employee’s own serious health condition. 

e. To care for a sick child other than a serious medical condition. 

f. For qualifying exigencies arising out of the fact that the employee’s spouse, son, 
daughter, or parent is on active duty or call to active duty status as a member of the 
National Guard or Reserves in support of a contingency operation. 

3. Under OFLA, an additional twelve weeks leave is available for an illness, injury, or condition 
related to pregnancy or childbirth that disables the employee. Further, employees who use 
parental leave may be entitled to additional leave to care for a sick child. For the purposes of 
this policy, a “serious health condition” is defined as: 

a. An illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that requires inpatient 
care in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical care facility; or 

b. An illness, disease, or condition that, in the medical judgment of the treating health 
care provider, poses an imminent danger of death, is terminal in prognosis with a 
reasonable possibility of death in the near future, or requires constant care; or 

c. Any period of disability due to pregnancy, or period of absence for prenatal care. 

4. Notice of Leave: An employee requesting FMLA/OFLA must submit a written request at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the anticipated leave date. If a leave must begin in less than thirty 
(30) days, but is not an emergency, the worker must provide written notice as soon as 
possible. If an emergency arises, an employee is required to give oral notice within twenty-
four (24) hours and submit a written notice within three (3) days of his/her return to work. 

a. The City realizes that there may be circumstances where it is not possible for an 
employee to provide 24-hour oral notice. Therefore, the employee may designate a 
family member or friend to notice the City during that period of time. 

b. If the leave is taken for the birth of a child, adoption, or placement of a foster child, 
the time taken must be in one block of time. When leave is used to care for a 
seriously ill family member or for the employee’s serious illness, the time can be 
taken in intermittent periods or a reduced work schedule where possible. 

c. Failure to provide the required notice may result in the City deducting the amount of 
time the notice was delayed, up to three (3) weeks from the leave period. 

5. Medical Verification: Concurrent with applying for FMLA/OFLA leave, the employee must 
provide medical documentation to support the request for time off. If the leave is 
unanticipated, medical verification is required within fifteen (15) days of the City’s request 
for verification. 

6. Employee Benefits and Reinstatement: An employee is responsible for paying whatever 
portion of his/her and dependents’ medical/dental premium payments during FMLA/OFLA 

 
City of Stayton           Page 25 
Personnel Manual 



 

leave. Employees will also be required to use whatever accrued sick leave and vacation time 
they have earned (in that order) before taking time without pay. 

7. An employee will be returned to his/her former position following FMLA/OFLA leave unless 
the position was eliminated. If the employee’s former position has been eliminated, the 
employee will be reinstated to an available, equivalent position. No employment benefits 
earned prior to the employee’s leave will be lost by taking FMLA/OFLA leave. 

8. Concurrent Leaves: Where allowed by law, all approved leave, whether paid or unpaid, and 
including leave designated as sick leave, vacation leave, personal leave, will be counted 
against the annual FMLA/OFLA leave entitlement. Workers’ compensation leave will not be 
counted toward the OFLA, but may be counted against FMLA entitlement. 

9. Employees will not engage in outside employment while on Medical leave with the City. A 
violation of this policy is grounds for termination. Questions about this policy should be 
directed to the City Finance Director or the employee’s manager or supervisor. 

10. Military Exigency Leave: The FMLA and OFLA (OMFLA) provides for unpaid Military 
Exigency Leave. Military Family Leave is leave taken by the spouse or domestic partner of a 
member of the Armed Forces of the United States, the National Guard, or the military reserve 
forces of the United States who has been called to active duty or notified of an impending call 
or order to active duty, or who is on leave from active duty during a period of military 
conflict. 

a. During a period of military conflict, an employee who is a spouse or domestic partner 
of a member of the Armed Forces of the United States, the National Guard or the 
military reserve forces of the United States who has been notified of an impending 
call or order to active duty or who has been deployed, is entitled to a total of 14 days 
of unpaid leave per deployment that may be taken. 

b. The 14 day entitlement is per deployment. If multiple deployments occur in an 
employee’s OFLA leave year the employee is entitled to use all OMFLA leave until 
OFLA leave entitlement is exhausted. 

c. An employee who is a spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin of a current 
member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or 
Reserves, with a serious injury or illness is eligible for up to a total of 26 workweeks 
of unpaid leave during a “single 12-month period” to care for the service member. 

d. An eligible employee seeking Oregon Military Family Leave must provide the City 
with notice of the intention to take leave within five business days of receiving 
official notice of an impending call or order to active duty or of a leave from 
deployment, or as soon as is practicable when official notice is provided fewer than 
five days before commencement of the leave. 

e. The active duty orders of a covered military member will generally specify if the 
service member is serving in support of a period of military conflict by citation to the 
relevant section of Title 10 of the United States Code and/or by reference to the 
specific name of the military conflict. 

f. An eligible employee’s notice of intention to take OMFLA leave must follow the 
above procedures for requesting any kind of leave. The City may require in writing 
that the eligible employee provide a photocopy of the service member’s orders to 
verify the purpose of the leave. 

g. Please contact the City Recorder for Medical Leave Request Forms. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 26 
Personnel Manual 



 

6.7 DOMESTIC VIOLENCE / VICTIM’S LEAVE 
1. In accordance with the provisions of ORS 659A.272, employees who work an average of 25 

hours or more per week for at least 180 days immediately before taking leave, and are victims 
of domestic violence, sexual assault, criminal harassment, or stalking, or are parents of 
victims (minor children), may be eligible for this leave for an authorized purpose. An 
“authorized purpose” includes seeking legal or law enforcement assistance or remedies; 
seeking medical treatment for or recovering from injuries; obtaining counseling or services 
from a victim services provider; or relocating or taking steps to secure a safe home for the 
employee or minor child. 

 
2. The City may grant an eligible employee a reasonable leave of absence if the employee or the 

employee’s minor child or dependent needs time off to deal with issues of domestic violence, 
sexual assault, criminal harassment, or stalking. 

 
3. Employees may use accrued sick or vacation leave; or comp time, to pay for time off. 

Employees shall charge leave for absences under this policy to accrued leave balances in 
accordance with applicable City rules and collective bargaining agreements. When 
applicable, such leave shall also be designated as FMLA and/or OFLA. 
 

4. The City may provide reasonable safety accommodations for an employee who is a victim of 
domestic violence, sexual assault, criminal harassment, or stalking, if the employee requests 
it, and if it does not impose an undue hardship on the City. 
 

5. When an employee requests a reasonable safety accommodation, the City will engage in 
discussions with the employee about the nature and scope of a reasonable safety 
accommodation that will best address the particular safety concern affecting the individual 
employee. 
 

6. An employee who wishes to take leave under this policy must provide certification as 
provided in ORS 659A.280(4) that the employee or dependent child is a victim of domestic 
violence, sexual assault, stalking, or criminal harassment. Where feasible, the employee will 
provide reasonable advanced notice of the intent to take leave. 
 

7. Examples of reasonable accommodation, may include, but are not limited to transfer, 
reassignment, modified schedule, unpaid leave from employment, changed work telephone 
number, changed work station, installed lock, implemented safety procedure, or any other 
adjustment to a job structure, workplace facility or work requirement. 

 
6.8 UNIFORMED SERVICES LEAVE AND RE-EMPLOYMENT 

Overview: This policy covers leave and re-employment for employees in the uniformed services.  
It also contains non discrimination and non-retaliation provisions related to uniformed service.  
Regular employees requiring a leave of absence for service in the uniformed service shall, under 
certain defined conditions, be provided leave, continue their benefits during their leave, and be re-
employed at the end of leave. 
 
This policy is intended to be in full conformance with all federal and local laws regarding to 
rights of military personnel and re-employment of veterans. Nothing in this policy shall diminish 
rights under the applicable federal or local laws. 
 
 
 

 
City of Stayton           Page 27 
Personnel Manual 



 

1. Definition: The following definition shall apply to this policy: 

a. “Service in uniformed service” means performance of duty on a voluntary or 
involuntary basis in a uniformed service: 

i. Active duty 

ii. Active duty for training 

iii. Initial active duty training 

iv. Inactive duty training 

v. Full-time National Guard duty 

vi. Fitness for duty examination 

2. General: This policy applies to all employees of the City. 

3. Compensation and Benefits for an Employee on Uniformed Services Leave: The City shall 
excuse the employee for the uniformed services leave. During the leave, the City will not 
compensate the individual, but the individual may elect to utilize vacation pay accrued before 
commencement of the leave. Health care insurance coverage may be maintained at the 
employee rate for the first 30 days. At 31 or more days, insurance may be maintained through 
COBRA at no more than 102 percent of the full premium under the plan. 

4. Required Notice of an Employee’s Need for Uniformed Services Leave: 

a. Employees (or the uniformed services in which the employee is to serve) must 
provide written or verbal notification to the City of their obligation or intention to 
perform service in the uniformed services, unless notice is precluded by military 
necessity or otherwise unreasonable or impossible. 

b. An employee’s failure to provide notice may result in loss of re-employment rights 
and benefits and other employee benefits under law. 

5. An Employee’s Obligation to Report for Work or Request for Re-employment: 

a. Employees must report back to work or request re-employment within the following 
time limits (extended by two years in case of disability). 

b. Employees may be required to provide documentation to verify their rights to re-
employment, including separation papers. 

c. Employees who fail to report to work or apply for re-employment within the required 
periods will be considered absent and unexcused. 

6. Re-employment Rights: 

a. An employee returning from uniformed services of ninety (90) days or less who has 
met the requirements for re-employment will be reinstated to the job the employee 
would have had if continuously employed with the City without interruption for 
uniformed service as long as the person is qualified to perform the job. 

b. An employee returning from uniformed services of ninety-one (91) days or  longer 
will be reinstated to the job the employee would have had if continuously employed 
with the City without interruption of uniformed services or a position of like seniority 
status and pay, as long as the person is qualified to perform the duties. 

 

 
City of Stayton           Page 28 
Personnel Manual 



 

c. Re-employment is not required in the following circumstances: 
i. Circumstances have changed to make re-employment impossible or 

unreasonable. 

ii. The employee has a disability incurred or aggravated during uniformed 
service and it would be an undue hardship on the City to re-employ the 
person. 

iii. The employment the employee left for uniformed service was for a brief, 
non-recurrent period and there was no reasonable expectation such 
employment would continue indefinitely or for a significant period. 

iv. The employee failed to give advance written or verbal notice of the need for 
uniformed service leave, as required by this policy and the law. 

v. The cumulative length of the uniformed services leave and all previous 
absences from a position with the City exceeds five (5) years. Some periods 
of uniformed service are excluded by law from the five-year calculation. 

vi. The employee was separated from uniformed services with a dishonorable or 
bad conduct discharge or other such discharge regarding character of service 
as permitted by law. 

7. Nondiscrimination and Non-retaliation: The City will not discriminate in employment or take 
any adverse employment action against any person because the person has taken an action to 
enforce a legally protected right under the laws protecting this right for re-employment due to 
service in uniformed services. 

 
6.9 UNPAID LEAVE OF ABSENCE 

The following policies apply to all unpaid leaves of absence including, but not limited to, 
maternity leave, military leave, and parental leave, except as otherwise provided for by law. 

1. A regular employee who has been continuously employed with the City for at least one (1) 
year may request a personal leave of absence without pay for a reasonable period not to 
exceed ninety (90) calendar days. 

2. Requests for personal leave and extensions of granted leaves must be in writing and must be 
approved in writing by the employee's department head and the City Administrator. 

3. The City Administrator may approve or disapprove a personal leave on the basis of legal 
requirements, employee's length of service, performance, responsibility level, the reason for 
the request, whether other individuals are already out on leave, and the expected impact the 
leave will have on the operations of the City. 

4. The City Administrator will notify the City Council of personal leaves which are granted. 

5. The City will not pay for group health insurance, dental insurance premiums, retirement 
benefits, or long-term disability life insurance during any portion of an unpaid leave of 
absence. Accordingly, the premiums for such coverage are the complete responsibility of the 
employee. In order to keep insurance in force, premiums for the entire period of leave must 
be paid before the employee begins the approved leave of absence. Vacation time and sick 
leave will not be earned during an unpaid leave of absence. The employee's benefits will be 
reinstated upon the employee's return to work subject to eligibility requirements of the plans. 

6. It is the employee's responsibility to report to work at the end of the approved leave. Failure 
to report to work on the day after expiration of the approved leave will be considered a 
voluntary resignation. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 29 
Personnel Manual 



 

SECTION 7 
FRINGE BENEFITS 

 
7.1 RETIREMENT 

1. Those City employees qualified to participate in a City retirement plan (including sworn 
police personnel, but not including parties to a collective bargaining agreement) shall receive 
a salary increase in an amount equal to 6 percent of salary; such salary increase shall be 
deemed to be "picked up" on a pre-tax basis as contributions to the City's retirement plans 
pursuant to Section 414(h)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code. Participation in said retirement 
plans shall become effective in accordance with the City's retirement plans' criteria for 
eligibility and coverage. 

2. Employees do not have the option of receiving the salary payment and paying the employee 
contribution directly. 

3. Employees' reported salary on the W-2 form for tax purposes will be reduced by the amount 
of the employee's contributions. 

 
7.2 SOCIAL SECURITY 

The City will pay the employer's contribution in the Social Security Plan. 
 
7.3 INDUSTRIAL ACCIDENT INSURANCE 

1. The City provides Workers' Compensation Insurance through an insurance carrier for 
industrial accidents and diseases. Benefits include medical treatment, medical care, and 
disability compensation. 

2. The City will pay the premium for medical, hospital, and dental insurance for up to six (6) 
months for employees who sustain an injury or illness compensable by Workers' 
Compensation and who are unable to perform their regular duties. 

3. An employee who has sustained a compensable injury will be reinstated to the employee's 
former position of employment, if available, or to other employment which is available and 
suitable upon demand for such reinstatement, provided the employee is not disabled from 
performing the duties of such position and can provide written medical evidence of the ability 
to perform all job requirements. 

4. An employee is not eligible to earn vacation or sick leave time while on workers' 
compensation leave for a period of longer than thirty (30) days. 

 
7.4 MEDICAL AND RELATED INSURANCE 

The City provides medical, hospitalization, dental, and related insurance benefits for all full-time 
employees and their eligible dependents. The City expects employees to cooperate in containing 
the costs of health care. Depending upon the design of the benefits package and the costs 
involved, the City Council may request employee contributions towards the cost of health care 
related benefits. 
 
The City provides partial benefits for part-time employees as described in Section 2.6.2. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
City of Stayton           Page 30 
Personnel Manual 



 

7.5 COBRA 
1. Employees and their families may be covered under the Federal Consolidated Omnibus 

Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) which permits an employee and/or his/her family 
members to continue medical insurance benefits under certain conditions. The employee or 
eligible family members shall pay the total cost of health insurance premiums permitted 
under COBRA, plus 2% for administration. 

2. As an employee covered by the city's health insurance, an employee has the right to choose 
continuation coverage for him/herself and dependents for up to eighteen (18) months if group 
health coverage is lost because of a reduction in hours of employment or because of 
termination of employment for reasons other than gross misconduct on the part of the 
employee as defined under COBRA. 

3. In the event the employee is the spouse of another city employee who is also covered by the 
city's health care plan, the employee whose hours have been reduced or terminated has the 
right to choose continuation of coverage for him/herself for up to thirty-six (36) months 
should health insurance benefits under that plan be lost under any of the following 
circumstances: 

a. The death of the spouse. 

b. Termination of the employee's spouse's employment (for reasons other than gross 
misconduct) or reduction in the employee's spouse's hours of employment. 

c. Divorce or legal separation from the employee's spouse. 

d. The employee's spouse becomes eligible for Medicare (the employee is responsible 
to check with the Finance Director regarding details of Oregon's law on retiree and 
retiree's spouse coverage). 

4. In the case of a dependent child of an employee covered by the city's health plan, he/she has 
the right to continued coverage of health insurance under the city's health plan, according to 
federal guidelines, if lost under any of the following circumstances: 

a. The death of a parent. 

b. The termination of a parent's employment (for reasons other than gross misconduct) 
or reduction in parent's hours of employment with the city or affiliate group. 

c. Parents' divorce or legal separation. 

d. A parent becomes eligible for Medicare. 

e. The dependent ceases to be a "dependent child" under the city's health coverage (for 
example: the dependent, upon reaching the age of 26 years, no longer qualifies as a 
dependent). 

5. Under COBRA, the employee, as the employee or as the family member, has the 
responsibility to inform the Finance Director of a divorce, a legal separation, or a child losing 
dependent status under the city's health coverage. 

6. When the Finance Director is informed that one of the events listed in section 7.5.4 above has 
occurred, the employee will be notified that he/she has the right to choose continuation of 
coverage, what the premiums are, when the premiums are due, and any other special 
requirements. Under COBRA, the employee has sixty (60) days from the date coverage will 
cease to inform the Finance Director that he/she wishes to continue coverage. Premiums must 
be paid by the employee from the date when the group health coverage ended and employee 
contribution began. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 31 
Personnel Manual 



 

7. COBRA provides that employee continuation coverage may be terminated for any of the 
following reasons: 

a. The City no longer provides group health coverage to any of its employees. 

b. The employee does not make premium payments on the continued coverage on time. 

c. The employee receives coverage under another group health plan. 

d. The employee becomes eligible for Medicare. 

e. The employee is divorced from a covered employee and subsequently remarries and 
is covered under the new spouse's group health care plan. 

8. The employee is not required to prove that he/she is insurable to obtain continued coverage. 

9. If the employee decides to continue the group health plan, he/she has the right to convert to 
an individual conversion policy at the end of the continuation period. 

10. If the employee does not choose continuation coverage, the group health insurance coverage 
through the city will end. 

 
7.6 HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR RETIRED EMPLOYEES & DEPENDENTS 

A person who retires from city employment (retiree) may continue health coverage under the 
city's health insurance plan subject to the following conditions: 

1. The same health insurance coverage offered to regular employees is available to eligible 
retirees. 

2. The retirees have the option as to whether or not to take advantage of the coverage. 

3. The retiree has the option of electing coverage for his/her dependents. Dependent coverage, if 
elected, for a spouse may continue until the spouse achieves Medicare eligibility; for a child, 
until the child reaches age 26. 

4. The retiree will pay the total cost of health insurance premiums. 
 
7.7 MODIFICATION OF BENEFITS 

Benefits for employees may be provided, modified, or changed at the discretion of the City. 
Employees will be notified in writing of all benefit changes which occur. 
 

 
 

 
City of Stayton           Page 32 
Personnel Manual 



 

SECTION 8 
SAFETY AND ACCIDENTS 

 
8.1 SAFETY POLICY STATEMENT 

Nothing is of greater concern to the City than the safety of its employees and the public. For the 
employee's protection, job-related injuries or illnesses must be reported immediately in 
accordance with the City safety and accident policy. Employees are expected to use common 
sense and good judgment in work habits, to follow safe work practices, and to bring any unsafe 
condition to the attention of a supervisor. Examples of safe work practices are as follows: 

1. Use the safety equipment which has been provided for use. 

2. Do not operate equipment while prescribed medication, drugs, or alcohol are present in the 
body without a doctor's written approval. 

3. Operate only equipment for which training or orientation has been received. 

4. Warn co-workers of unsafe conditions or practices.  Accept with appreciation the warning of 
a co-worker as an expression of concern for your own well being. 

5. Report dangerous or unsafe conditions that you observe at work. 

6. Refrain from horseplay at all times. 

7. Abide by safe operational practices, rules, and directives generated by public safety or 
regulatory agencies. 

 
8.2 UNSAFE CONDITIONS 

1. Employee Responsibility: Every employee is responsible for safety. To achieve the City goal 
of providing a safe work place, everyone must be safety conscious. Employees should report 
any unsafe or hazardous condition directly to a supervisor immediately, if it cannot be 
corrected independently. Every effort will be made to remedy safety problems as quickly as 
possible. Employees will participate in all required safety training programs offered by the 
City. 

2. Management Responsibility: The City will establish a safety committee which will meet on a 
regular basis in accordance with state law. Each department will consider the need for 
adopting safety practices, policy, or procedures warranted by hazards department employees 
encounter. Consideration will be ongoing. Each accident is cause for review. A copy of such 
policies will be delivered to all department employees. Department heads are encouraged to 
involve employee in the process. The need for periodic training should be considered and 
arranged when appropriate in the judgment of the department head. 

3. Managing Unsafe Conditions: It is every employee's responsibility to identify conditions 
which could pose a hazard to employees or to the general public. After identifying the 
problem, employees at the scene are expected to: 

a. Eliminate the hazard and obtain whatever assistance is necessary. 

b. Control the hazard by enclosure or guard. 

c. Employ avoidance procedures. 

d. Use personal protective equipment as appropriate. 
 
 

 
City of Stayton           Page 33 
Personnel Manual 



 

8.3 ACCIDENT REPORTING 
1. Accidents involving the City must be reported in detail as soon after the occurrence as 

possible to the employee’s supervisor and the Department head. All accident reports should 
be submitted to the Finance Director. 

2. Vehicular Accidents: Accidents involving City-owned vehicles or personal vehicles being 
operated on City business must be reported to the Police Department for investigation. Any 
accident resulting in personal injuries must be reported immediately to the employee's 
supervisor and the Finance Director. 

3. Other Accidents: Accidents involving City-owned equipment or City property, when personal 
injury or property damages results, must be reported to the appropriate department head 
immediately. The Department head will notify the Police Department to determine if there is 
a need to conduct an investigation. 

 
8.4 EMPLOYEE INJURY REPORT 

In the case of an accident involving personal injury to an employee, regardless of the seriousness, 
a supervisor and the Finance Director should be notified as soon as possible. Failure to report 
accidents can result in a violation of conditions of insurance coverage, and can lead to difficulties 
in processing insurance and benefit claims. Injured workers must fill out a Workers' 
Compensation Insurance Report form and submit it within forty-eight (48) hours or as soon as 
possible to the Finance Director. In case of serious injury to an employee, the supervisor and the 
Finance Director will complete and file the workers' compensation reports. All injuries must be 
reported in writing and in a timely manner to avoid risk of claim denial. The Finance Director 
will provide advice and assistance to any person filling out a Workers' Compensation Report. 

 
8.5 WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE 

If an employee is injured on the job, in most cases the injured worker will be entitled to benefits 
under the state workers' compensation law. The City carries Workers' Compensation Insurance 
and will assist employees in obtaining all benefits to which they are legally entitled 

 
8.6 LIGHT DUTY ASSIGNMENTS 

Disabled employees who are temporarily assigned light duty work as a reasonable 
accommodation but are unable to perform the essential duties of their job may be required to 
provide a medical evaluation after 30, 60, or 90 days from their treating physician so that the City 
may determine whether the employee is capable at that time of performing the essential functions 
of the job, with or without reasonable accommodation. The City offers light duty 
accommodations only for those employees whom the City may anticipate will recover the ability 
to perform all of the essential functions of the job within a reasonable time. If recovery becomes 
doubtful, the City may discontinue the light duty assignment. No light duty assignment is 
intended to become permanent. 
 

8.7 RETURN-TO-WORK POLICY 
The following procedures must be followed by employees who return to work following an on-
the-job injury which has resulted in the employee's being off work: 

1. All requests to return to work must be made in writing, must be dated, and must be signed by 
the employee. 

2. All requests to return to work must be accompanied by a dated, written released signed by the 
attending physician. This release must clearly specify whether the employee is released for 
his former job or is restricted in any way. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 34 
Personnel Manual 



 

3. Requests to return to work must be made no later than the seventh regular work day 
following the date of the attending physician's signature on the written release. Except where, 
in the opinion of the City Administrator or department head, extenuating circumstances exist, 
failure to make a timely request terminates the employee's right to reinstatement or 
reemployment. Failure to seek a written release upon becoming able to return to work may 
constitute abandonment of the right to reinstatement or reemployment. 

4. Requests to return to work may be brought in personally or they may be mailed to the City.  
If mailed, the request should be directed to the department head. Requests delivered 
personally will be deemed made on the date on which the written request is delivered.  
Mailed requests will be deemed made upon the date of receipt. All requests will be date 
stamped upon receipt. 

5. All requests to return to work must be directed to the department head. 

6. If the former job or a suitable alternative is not available at the time of request to return to 
work, the department head must be contacted personally or by telephone once per week to 
renew the request. If a period of ten days elapses without contact, the employee will be 
considered to have abandoned his right to return to work. 

7. All job offers will be made by telephone. It is the obligation of the employee to keep the City 
advised of any changes in phone number. 

8. If the employee is offered a suitable position in response to the request to return to work and 
the employee refuses it, he will be considered to have voluntarily terminated his employment 
and to have abandoned his right to reinstatement or reemployment. 

 

 
City of Stayton           Page 35 
Personnel Manual 



 

SECTION 9 
WHAT THE CITY EXPECTS OF YOU 

 
9.1 PUBLIC SERVICE, TEAMWORK, AND EXCELLENCE 

This section has been arranged to present a general overview of some of the City's expectations of 
its employees. 

1. Public Service: Service to the community is the primary responsibility of the City and all 
employees. Each employee will strive to provide the highest quality service in a caring, 
responsive, and effective way. All employees should remember that to the public the 
individual employee represents and is the "City of Stayton." 

2. Teamwork: Every employee should keep in mind that each is a part of a team of City 
employees. A cooperative spirit and teamwork are essential to high morale, productivity, and 
personal job satisfaction. Each employee should always strive to be a positive, constructive 
member of the city team. 

 
9.2 PERSONAL CONDUCT 

1. Personal Conduct: All employees will conduct themselves in a manner which is appropriate 
for an employee in the public's service. Employees will be courteous, considerate, efficient, 
and helpful to everyone in their work and will do the best job possible on every assignment.  
Each employee should strive to provide services that are a source of pride to the employee, 
fellow employees, elected officials, and the citizens of Stayton. 

2. Public Relations: Public relations will be an integral component of each employee's job.  
When answering telephones or greeting the public, each employee will be courteous, 
considerate, efficient, and helpful. In addition, each employee will listen to questions and 
concerns and respond to the citizen in a friendly, professional manner. Each employee should 
actively work to serve the public and demonstrate that he or she is capable and willing to help 
the citizen. Favorable impressions created by employees' public behavior can help develop 
good will and support for City services. 

3. Meetings: From time to time the City will require employees to attend work-related meetings 
either on or off-premises. These meetings will be used to disseminate information, train, or 
instruct personnel on work related matters. Per ORS 659.785, employees cannot be required 
to attend employer-sponsored meetings or communications with the employer or the agent, 
representative, or designee of the employer if the primary purpose of the meeting or 
communication is to communicate the opinion of the employer about religious or political 
matters (political party affiliation, campaigns for measures or candidates). An employee may 
not be disciplined, discharged, or otherwise penalized for refusing to attend or participate in 
such meetings. 

 
9.3 CODE OF ETHICS FOR CITY EMPLOYEES 

1. Personal Interests Avoided: City employees may not use City time to participate in matters of 
personal interest. When giving testimony unrelated to their assigned City responsibilities, 
City employees should recognize their capacity as a private citizen and not use information or 
facts that have come to them by virtue of their employment which are not subject to 
disclosure to the public. In matters of personal interest, employees should conduct themselves 
so as not to impair their working relationship with other employees or with public officials. 
Information on these laws is available at the Oregon Government Ethics Commission website 
(http://www.oregon.gov/OGEC/). 
 

 
City of Stayton           Page 36 
Personnel Manual 

http://www.oregon.gov/OGEC/


 

2. Conflict of Interest: City of Stayton employees shall avoid situations that create, potentially 
create, or give the appearance of creating a conflict with the mission or objectives of the City; 
or could cast doubt upon objectivity between personal interests and the interests of the City of 
Stayton. 

DISCLOSURE: City employees are required to report any potential conflict of interest 
to their supervisor or the City Administrator. 

3. Gifts and Gratuities: Acceptance of certain types or forms of gifts is viewed as a conflict of 
interest.  Employees will not accept any special favors, gifts, loans, fees, or gratuities 
resulting from or related to employment with the City, if the acceptance could be considered 
to influence directly or indirectly the actions of said personnel, or any other person, in any 
matter of City business. In this regard, the appearance of impropriety can be as damaging as 
actual impropriety and will be avoided. 

4. Special Gifts:  Department heads may allow acceptance of nonmonetary gifts of nominal 
value (e.g. under $50.00) at holidays or special occasions which are available to be shared by 
all employees. Under no circumstances are gifts to exceed $50 per calendar year from any 
one source. 

 
9.4 POLITICAL ACTIVITIES OF CITY EMPLOYEES 

1. Official Position – Campaigning: Employees may not use their official authority or position 
with the City to further the cause of any political party or candidate for nomination or 
election to any political office. 

2. Political Activity: The restrictions imposed by the law of the State of Oregon (ORS 
260.432(2)) on your political activities are that “No public employee shall solicit any money, 
influence, service or other thing of value or otherwise promote or oppose any political 
committee or promote or oppose the nomination or election of a candidate, the gathering of 
signatures on an initiative, referendum or recall petition, the adoption of a measure or the 
recall of a public office holder while on the job during working hours. However, this section 
does not restrict the right of a public employee to express personal political views.” 

It is therefore the policy of the City of Stayton that employees may engage in political 
activity except to the extent prohibited by state law when on the job during working hours. 

3. Off-duty Activity: During the term of their employment a City employee may not run for any 
elective office that creates a conflict of interest between the duties of that employee and the 
prospective duties of the elective office holder. An employee must obtain prior written 
approval of the department head and/or City Administrator before filing as a candidate for 
elective office. Failure to obtain prior written approval may be deemed by the City to 
constitute a voluntary resignation if the employee is elected to that position and the City 
Council determines that the election to the position creates a conflict of interest with the 
employee's position with the City. Nothing in this rule is intended to restrict the political 
actions or activities of employees outside of their regular working hours. 

 
9.5 CIVIC INVOLVEMENT 

1. The City Council encourages employees to participate in civic activities and non-profit 
organizations in the Stayton community. 

2. The City will reimburse an employee for the amount of membership dues incurred by an 
employee provided that: 

a. The employee has made application through his or her department head and has 

 
City of Stayton           Page 37 
Personnel Manual 



 

received written approval for city payment of the employee's membership dues. 

b. The employee's attendance or participation is voluntary and he or she is advised that 
non-attendance or non-participation will not prejudice his or her working conditions 
or employment standing. 

c. The employee is instructed not to perform services on behalf of the City while 
attending any meetings or activity sponsored by the organization. 

d. Funds for such expenditures are available in the current budget. 

e. The employee is not receiving reimbursement for membership dues from any other 
source. 

3. Meetings or activities of the civic group or non-profit organization which are only offered 
during regular working hours may be approved by the department head provided time off 
may be arranged conveniently and reasonable arrangements can be made to make up time off. 

4. City employees may provide services to civic and non-profit organizations on an assignment 
basis as part of an employee's regular duties for the City. 

5. Authorized expenses incurred by an employee when performing an assigned task will be 
reimbursed in accordance with the Travel and Expense Reimbursement Policy. 

 
9.6 COST AND ENERGY CONSCIOUSNESS 

Every employee of the city, as a citizen and taxpayer, should practice every economy possible in 
the discharge of his/her duties. Failure to do so is not in the best interest of the City and may lead 
to discipline and/or discharge, as appropriate. 

Turning off lights, electric heaters, motors, etc. when not in use contributes to both dollar and 
energy savings. Employees are encouraged to recommend to their supervisors work procedures 
which will result in a cost saving, energy saving, or improved service to the public. 

 
9.7 LEGAL LIABILITY 

1. Employees are expected to abide by all laws and regulations which govern the performance 
of their duties and will perform their duties in a reasonable and prudent manner. 

2. The City will indemnify and defend its employees, in accordance with the Oregon Tort 
Claims Act, in the event litigation is brought arising out of employee's performance of duty. 

 
9.8 ATTENDANCE AND PUNCTUALITY 

1. Each employee is important to the overall success of the City operation.  When an employee 
is absent, his job must be done by someone else. Everyone is expected to be punctual, regular 
in attendance, and work as scheduled. 

2. In accepting employment with the City, each employee is required to meet certain standards.  
Maintaining an acceptable level of job attendance is part of good work performance and is 
one of the standards by which an employee's overall contribution to the City may be 
measured. 

3. Continued employment carries with it the personal responsibility of each employee to be on 
the job on time every scheduled work day. Recurring and excessive absences and/or tardiness 
is disruptive to work schedules, costly to the City and its residents, and detrimental to the 
morale and efforts of employees who maintain a good work record. 
 

 
City of Stayton           Page 38 
Personnel Manual 



 

4. All employees will maintain a daily timecard which includes an accurate record of all hours 
worked. 

5. No personal time will be spent in City offices outside regular working hours. 

6. Repeated failure to meet these requirements may subject an employee to disciplinary action, 
which could include termination. 

 
9.9 PERSONAL APPEARANCE 

1. Both the employee's personal appearance and dress are essential to creating a favorable 
public image. All employees will dress in neat, clean, professional-looking attire appropriate 
to their daily job duties. 

2. Each employee is responsible to present a proper appearance whether in an office 
environment, in a police patrol car, or on a maintenance site. Good taste and good judgment 
in personal attire is expected. 

3. The City may provide, at City expense, clothes or uniforms, if required by the department.  
The City will schedule and pay for cleaning of city-issued clothing and uniforms, with the 
exception of certified police officer uniforms. 

 
9.10 APPEARANCE OF WORK AREAS 

The City's objective is to provide and maintain clean, safe and healthy work conditions. It is the 
responsibility of each employee to maintain a safe, neat work area and to insure that all working 
documents, desks, and cabinets are secured at the close of the work day. 
 

9.11 PERSONAL TELEPHONE CALLS 
City phones are to be used for City purposes. Telephone calls of a personal nature (incoming or 
outgoing) should be kept to an absolute minimum and made during breaks or lunch periods 
whenever possible. Under no circumstances should an employee charge a long distance call to the 
City unless it is work-related. Employees are requested to keep other personal phone calls to a 
minimum.  Friends and relatives should be discouraged from calling during working hours except 
in emergencies. 
 

9.12 ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS 
1. The City’s systems, equipment, hardware, software and other information (hereinafter 

referred to as “systems”) in any form are considered an asset of the City and thus must be 
properly used and adequately protected. This includes the transmission of information over 
computer communication networks. 

2. Systems include but are not limited to, computers, software, electronic mail (e-mail), copiers, 
fax machines, telephones, cell phones, voice mail, surface messengers, communication tools, 
various on-line services, and protected health information. All of these systems are operated 
and managed based upon this policy. 

3. The City-provided systems are intended to be used primarily for business purposes. Without a 
Department Head’s approval, you are not allowed personal use of City systems. Any 
approved personal use must not interfere with normal business activities, involve solicitation, 
be associated with any for-profit outside business activity, or potentially embarrass the City. 

4. The City reserves the right to monitor employee use of City systems at any time. Employees 
should not consider their usage of City systems to be private. Within the bounds of current 
and future laws, the City reserves and intends to exercise the right to review, audit, intercept, 

 
City of Stayton           Page 39 
Personnel Manual 



 

access, and search any of these systems at will, monitor data and messages within them at any 
time for any reason, and disclose selected contents without notice or other restrictions. 
Messages sent through these systems remain the property of the City. All data and messages 
maintained on City systems may be subject to public records law and disclosed to the public 
upon lawful request. 

 
9.13 BLOGGING AND SOCIAL NETWORKING 

The City takes no position on any employee’s decision to start or maintain a social media blog or 
participate in other social networking activities. However, it is the right and duty of the City to 
protect itself from unauthorized disclosure of information. The City’s social networking policy 
covers City-authorized social networking and personal social networking and applies to all 
employees (see Authorized Social Networking and Personal Blogging/Social Networking below). 

Blogging or other forms of social media or technology include but are not limited to video or wiki 
postings, sites such as Facebook and Twitter, chat rooms, personal blogs or other similar forms of 
online journals, diaries or personal newsletters not affiliated with the City. 

Unless specifically instructed, employees are not authorized and therefore restricted from 
speaking on behalf of the City. Employees are expected to protect the privacy of other employees 
and clients and are prohibited from disclosing personal employee and nonemployee information 
and any information to which employees have access through work. This policy does not prohibit 
employees from exercising their rights under applicable employment relations laws. 

Authorized social networking is social networking or blogging on behalf of the City which has 
been authorized by the City. Authorized social networking and blogging is used to convey 
information about City services, promote and raise awareness of City activities and events, and 
issue or respond to breaking news or negative publicity. 

The goal of authorized social networking and blogging is to become a part of the community 
conversation and promote web-based sharing of ideas and exchange of information. When social 
networking, blogging or using other forms of web-based forums, the City must ensure that use of 
these communications maintains our integrity and reputation while minimizing actual or potential 
legal risks, whether used inside or outside the workplace. 

1. Personal Blogs/Social Networking: The City respects the right of employees to write blogs 
and use social networking sites, the City does not want to discourage employees from self-
publishing and self-expression, and does not discriminate against employees who use these 
media for personal interests and affiliations or other lawful purposes. 

If you choose to identify yourself as a City of Stayton employee, please understand that some 
readers may view you as a spokesperson for the City due to your content including text and 
images. Because of this possibility, we ask that you state that your views expressed in your 
blog or social networking area are your own and not those of the City, nor of any person or 
organization affiliated or doing business with the City of Stayton. 

2. Employer Monitoring: Employees are cautioned that they should have no expectation of 
privacy while using the internet at work, subject to lawful access to public postings. Postings 
can be reviewed by anyone, including the City of Stayton. The City reserves the right to 
monitor comments or discussions about the City, its employees, and clients. 

Employees are cautioned that they should have no expectation of privacy while using City 
equipment or facilities for any purpose, including authorized blogging. 

 
 

 
City of Stayton           Page 40 
Personnel Manual 



 

9.14 CELL PHONE / ELECTRONIC DEVICES 
1. Personal Electronics: Use of personal electronics during work hours must be kept to a 

minimum and may not interfere with the performance of work. Messages sent via personal 
media on or off duty may not contain information represented as a being a spokesperson of 
the City; may not contain defamatory or confidential information regarding the City or its 
Management; and may not be used to harass or intimidate as outlined in the Harassment 
Policy. 

The City discourages personal cell phone use or text messaging except on breaks or lunch 
time. In cases of emergencies, prior approval should be obtained by the supervisor. 

Employees should not store confidential or work-related information on personal cell phones 
unless authorized by a supervisor and protected by a password. When using a cell phone, 
employees should be courteous and speak quietly in an area away from coworkers and other 
persons interacting within the workplace. Unattended cell phones should have the volume set 
to silent to limit disruptions within the workplace. 

2. City-issued Cell Phones: Cell phones assigned to City employees, volunteers and officials are 
intended to provide for the efficient conduct of business related to the City of Stayton. 
Personal calls (outgoing and incoming) will be allowed infrequently, for limited duration, and 
only in instances of family emergencies when a landline telephone is not reasonably 
available. These phones remain City property and will be on the service plan provided by the 
City. 

Employees issued City cell phones shall have no expectation of privacy while using City-
issued devices.  The City may audit and monitor phone calls, messages, internet, and other 
usage. 

3. Cell Phone Safety: The City prohibits the use of cell phones, including text messaging, during 
the following work-related activities: 

a. While operating a moving vehicle unless a hands free device is used. 

b. While operating or being in close proximity of heavy, dangerous, moving machinery. 

c. Where use of a cell phone may place employees at risk of injury. 
4. Reporting Lost or Stolen Cell Phones: If a personal or City-issued cell phone stores email 

addresses, phone numbers or other work or private information about other employees, 
customers, or clients, or sensitive or confidential workplace information and is lost or stolen, 
report the loss to a supervisor immediately. 

5. Any improper use or violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and 
including discharge. Any violation of this policy should be brought to the attention of the 
City Administrator. 

 
9.15 SMOKING 

For health and safety considerations, the City discourages smoking. State law prohibits smoking 
in buildings except in designated smoking areas. The City believes that smoking should not be 
permitted in general office areas where city employees work together or where they greet the 
public. Smoking is prohibited in all City facilities and buildings. 

 
 
 
 

 
City of Stayton           Page 41 
Personnel Manual 



 

9.16 OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT 
1. City Comes First: When an individual accepts employment with the City, it is understood that 

the City has first call upon the services of its employees, regardless of any impingement upon 
secondary employment. 

2. Incompatible Work: Employees will not engage in outside employment which is incompatible 
with City employment, which will detract from the efficiency of work performance, or which 
is in conflict with the interest of the City. The City asks that the employee think seriously 
about the affects that such extra work may have on his/her limits of endurance, overall 
personal health, and effectiveness of his/her job performance for the City. The employee will 
be held responsible by the City for the same performance standards and scheduling demands 
for which he was hired. Exceptions cannot be made for employees who choose to accept 
additional employment. 

3. Notification: Employees will notify the department head, in writing, in advance of all 
employment outside the scope of their employment with the City. 

4. Conflicts: The City Administrator, after consulting with the department head, will notify the 
employee in writing at any time outside employment is found to be in conflict with the 
interests of the City or is likely to bring discredit upon the City. It will be up to the employee 
to choose which employment option is most desired. 

 
9.17 SELLING AND PEDDLING AMONG EMPLOYEES 

Peddling, soliciting, distribution of materials or sale for charitable or other purposes will not be 
allowed among or by employees during working hours without the approval of the City 
Administrator. Such activities will not be approved, except for bona fide charitable activities. 
 

9.18 SUBSTANCE ABUSE 
1. Policy: The City considers its employees its most valuable asset and is concerned for the 

safety, health, and well being of its employees, and the health risks and performance 
problems that substance abuse can cause. This drug and alcohol policy and procedure is 
established based on these concerns. 

2. The misuse of alcohol and other drugs can impair an employee's performance and his  
physical and mental health. It may also jeopardize employee safety and the safety of the 
public, which relies on the ability of city personnel to respond in emergencies. The City is 
committed to maintaining a safe and healthy work place for all employees by identifying the 
misuse of alcohol and drugs and by assisting employees to overcome drug or alcohol related 
problems through appropriate treatment and, if necessary, disciplinary action. Each employee 
will be responsible for meeting performance, safety, and attendance standards. 

3. The City has responsibilities pursuant to the Drug Free Work Place Act of 1988. The City 
expects and requires that employees will not report to a scheduled work shift under the 
influence of intoxicating liquor or illegal drugs and that on-call employee’s will not report to 
a call-out when intoxicated. The use, sale, possession, manufacture, distribution, and/or 
dispensation by an employee of an intoxicating liquor, controlled, or illegal substance, or a 
drug not medically authorized, or any other substances which impair job performance or pose 
a hazard to the safety and welfare of the employee, other employees, or the public, is strictly 
prohibited, except for alcohol or medically prescribed controlled substances used off-duty, 
and except for lawful possession of evidence by police employees while on-duty. The parties 
recognize that conduct in violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action and/or 
criminal investigation if appropriate. This policy will be enforced and administered in a 
manner which is consistent with the value statements set forth in this section. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 42 
Personnel Manual 



 

4. Nothing in this section shall be construed or applied to prevent a supervisor from responding 
in an on-call circumstance when, in the judgment of the supervisor who has recently 
consumed an alcoholic beverage, the supervisor is able to respond and discharge his or her 
duties appropriately. 

5. Reports of Permitted Use: Each employee must report to his/her immediate supervisor the use 
of medically authorized drugs or other substances which the employee knows or should know 
can impair job performance and shall provide proper written medical authorization to work 
from a physician while using such authorized drugs. It is the employee's responsibility to 
determine from the physician whether or not the prescribed drug would impair job 
performance. Any failure to provide proper evidence of medical authorization can result in 
disciplinary action. 

6. Reports of Drug Conviction: Each employee must report facts and circumstances to the 
department head no later than five (5) days after conviction for violating any criminal drug 
statute. 

7. Employee Education: The City will afford employees an opportunity to deal with drug and 
alcohol related problems. The Finance Director maintains information relating to the hazards 
of and treatment for drug and alcohol related problems. Any employee may seek advice, 
information, and assistance voluntarily. Medical confidentiality will be maintained, consistent 
with this policy. 

8. Employee Assistance: Any employee who voluntarily requests assistance in dealing with a 
personal drug and/or alcohol problem may do so through a private treatment program for 
drug and alcohol problems. The Finance Director (who will consult with health care 
providers as appropriate) will assist employees who wish to identify and select an appropriate 
treatment program. 

9. If an employee seeks drug treatment voluntarily and not under adverse employment 
circumstances, earned sick leave benefits may be used while attending rehabilitation. After 
such accommodation, the discontinuation of any involvement with alcohol or drugs shall be 
an essential requisite for employment and is consistent with the City's policy of maintaining a 
drug free work place. 

10. Discipline Related to Abuse: As a result of disciplinary action arising from a drug or alcohol 
problem, an employee may be directed to consult with or be evaluated by a health care 
provider. Such an employee may be required to participate in a drug or alcohol treatment 
program as a condition of continued employment. 

11. A supervisor, based on reasonable suspicion that substance abuse is a factor in  
employment, may require an employee to be evaluated for drug and alcohol use and 
treatment. An employee may be required to participate in follow-up care as part of a 
comprehensive alcohol and drug treatment program based upon medical advice. 

12. An employee may be required to authorize the Finance Director or department head to 
monitor treatment and satisfactory participation, and to submit to random blood and urine 
screening for alcohol and/or drugs for a specified period of time, not to exceed thirty-six (36) 
months in any situation when treatment is the result of City intervention. Medical 
confidentiality will be preserved, subject to rights granted by the employee to the supervisor 
and department head to monitor treatment and program compliance through the Finance 
Director or directly with a health care provider. 

 

 
City of Stayton           Page 43 
Personnel Manual 



 

13. Drug Testing Upon Reasonable Suspicion: Where a supervisory employee of the City has a 
reasonable suspicion that an employee is under the influence of alcohol or drugs, the 
employee in question will be asked to submit to discovery testing including but not limited to 
urinalysis, a blood screen, breathalyzer, or multiple tests to confirm involvement with alcohol 
or drugs or that the employee is drug or alcohol free at the time in question. If drug use is 
confirmed, sick leave benefits will not apply if the employee seeks drug treatment, even if 
treatment is imposed as a condition of return to work or continued employment. 

14. Consequence of a Positive Test: An employee who is found to be under the influence of or 
impaired by alcohol or illegal drugs as a result of a test requested by the City based upon 
reasonable suspicion will be subject to disciplinary action including suspension or 
termination. 

15. Consequence of Refusal to Submit to Testing: An employee who refuses to submit to 
discovery testing for alcohol and drugs promptly upon request of the supervisor will be 
subject to suspension or discharge, or both. Alleged lack of reasonable suspicion is not 
grounds to refuse to submit to a test; however, it is reason to challenge discipline if discipline 
is imposed based on the test result alone. 

16. Testing Procedure: When the employee is notified that he/she is required to consent and 
submit to such tests, he/she may request the presence of a witness to the test. The test may not 
be delayed unreasonably in order to wait for a witness. The absence of a witness will not be 
grounds for the employee to refuse to consent and submit to such tests or searches. The 
presence of a witness will not disrupt or interfere with the tests. 

17. If requested, the employee will consent to blood, urine, or breathalyzer test(s), or any 
combination, by signing a consent form. The form will contain the following information: 

a. Employee consent to release test results to the City. 

b. The procedure for confirming an initial positive test result for a controlled substance, 
including marijuana. 

c. The consequences of a confirmed positive test result for a controlled substance, 
including marijuana. 

d. The consequences of a positive test for alcohol, under the circumstances. 

e. A listing provided by the employee of legally prescribed and over-the-counter 
medications which may be in the employee's body. 

f. The right to explain a confirmed positive test result for a controlled substance, 
including marijuana, or a positive test for alcohol. 

g. The consequences of refusing to consent to the blood, urine or breathalyzer test. 

18. In the event that the blood or urine test results are positive for controlled substance(s), 
including marijuana, the City will require that a second confirmatory test from the same 
sample be conducted, using gas chromatography, mass spectrograph techniques, or a 
qualitative equivalent, which also must be positive, before concluding the employee has such 
substance(s) present in the body. 

19. If the blood or confirmed urine test is positive, the City will instruct the laboratory to retain 
the blood or urine sample for a period of not less than thirty (30) calendar days from the date 
the tests are complete for the purpose of allowing the employee to conduct an independent 
test at his or her own expense at a laboratory approved by the City. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 44 
Personnel Manual 



 

20. The procedures to obtain, handle, and store blood and urine samples and to conduct 
laboratory tests will be documented to establish procedural integrity and chain of evidence.  
Such procedures will be administered with due regard for the employee's privacy and the 
need to maintain the confidentiality of test results to an extent which is not inconsistent with 
the needs of this policy. The employee will be notified of the results of all tests conducted 
pursuant to this policy. 

a. Definitions: For the purpose of this policy, the following definitions of terms are 
provided. 

i. Reasonable suspicion is defined as specific articulable observations by a 
supervisory employee concerning the work performance, appearance 
(including noticeable odor of an alcoholic beverage), behavior, or speech of the 
employee. Any accident or incident involving physical injury to any person 
may be considered to constitute reasonable suspicion for discovery testing for 
drugs and alcohol, where human factors contribute to the incident and where a 
question of sobriety short of reasonable suspicion exists. 

ii. Under the influence is defined as any detectable level of drugs (in excess of 
trace amounts which can be attributable only to secondary exposure) in an 
employee's blood or urine or any noticeable or perceptible impairment of the 
employee's mental or physical faculties, or any such impairment coupled with a 
blood-alcohol level of at least 0.02 percent. 

iii. Intoxicated is defined as being under the influence with a blood alcohol level of 
0.08 percent or higher by weight of alcohol in the blood. 

iv. Controlled substances is defined as all forms of narcotics, depressants, 
stimulants, hallucinogens, and cannabis, the sale, purchase, transfer, use, or 
possession of which is prohibited or restricted by law. 

v. Over-the-counter drugs are those which are generally available without a 
prescription from a medical doctor and are limited to those drugs which are 
capable of impairing the judgment of an employee to safely perform his/her 
duties. 

vi. Prescription drugs are defined as those drugs which are used in the course of 
medical treatment and have been prescribed and authorized for use by a 
licensed practitioner/physician or dentist. 

b. Searches: Employees have no expectation to be free from search of a patrol vehicle, 
locker, desk, or contents of other similar department-controlled spaces. A search of 
areas used exclusively by an employee (when directed at or against an individual 
employee due to suspicion of a violation of this policy) will be based on reasonable 
belief that the employee possesses any controlled substance. If possible, notice to the 
employee and an opportunity to be present will be given. 

 

 
City of Stayton           Page 45 
Personnel Manual 



 

SECTION 10 
NON-DISCRIMNATION AND HARASSMENT 

 
10.1 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

It is the policy of the City that all persons are entitled to equal employment opportunities and 
benefits regardless of age, race, religion, color, sex, sexual orientation, veteran status, military 
status, injured worker status, marital status, political affiliation, union participation, national 
origin, non-supervisory family relationships, or membership in any other classification protected 
under federal or Oregon law. Discrimination on the basis of mental or physical disability is also 
prohibited except where a particular provision requires a bona fide occupational qualification.  The 
City will take affirmative action to ensure that the City work force is representative of the work 
force in the area.  It is the policy of the City to comply with federal and state statutes on equal 
employment opportunities. 

 
Employment opportunities are open to all qualified applicants on the basis of their performance, 
training, experience, aptitudes, and abilities. Advancement to another classification is based on the 
individual's performance, ability, aptitude, and potential, and where two employees have identical 
qualifications, length of employment may be a determining factor. 

 
10.2 NON-DISCRIMNATION CLAUSE 

The City will rigorously enforce all of the laws relating to providing equal opportunities and non-
discrimination in employment and in preventing any improper conduct on the job. If at any time an 
employee has any complaint or appeal in this area, the employee should immediately notify his or 
her supervisor. If the supervisor is the source of the problem, the employee should immediately 
notify the department head, City Administrator, or the Mayor. 

 
10.3 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) 

1. The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and the Americans with Disabilities Act 
Amendment Act (ADAAA) are comprehensive federal civil rights laws that specifically 
protect individuals with physical and mental disabilities. Individuals still need to be 
“qualified” for the job, and not pose a “direct threat.” Individuals may be protected under the 
ADA/ADAAA if any of the following conditions exist: 

a. They currently have a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits a major 
life activity. 

b. They have a record of such an impairment, physical or mental, that substantially limits 
a major life activity; or 

c. They are perceived to have such impairment. 

2. Episodic or in remission conditions may meet the definition of a disability if it would 
substantially limit a major life activity when active. Temporary, non-chronic impairments of 
short duration, with little or no residual effects usually are not considered disabilities under 
ADA/ADAAA. Examples of, but not limited to, impairments that typically would not meet the 
ADA/ADAAA definition of a disability:  common cold, seasonal or common influenza, joint 
sprain, minor and non-chronic gastrointestinal disorders or broken bones that are expected to 
heal completely. 

3. The use of ordinary eyeglasses or contact lenses that are intended to fully correct visual acuity 
or eliminate refractive error, typically are not considered disabilities under ADA/ADAAA. 
Pregnancy is not considered impairment under the ADA/ADAAA. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 46 
Personnel Manual 



 

4. Individuals who currently engage in illegal use of drugs are excluded from ADA/ADAAA 
protection. 

5. The ADA/ADAAA also prohibits discrimination on the basis of an individual's relationship to 
someone (parent, sibling, child, spouse/significant other, etc.) with a disability. 

The City offers equal employment opportunities for qualified individuals who may have a 
physical or mental disability, but are still able to perform the essential functions of the job with 
or without reasonable accommodation. Essential functions are defined as the fundamental non-
marginal duties of the position being held or sought by a disabled individual. A job function is 
essential if the position exists for the performance of the function, there are only a limited 
number of employees available to perform it, or the function is so highly specialized that an 
expert must be specially hired to perform it. 

6. Reasonable accommodation may be available to employees and applicants, as long as the 
accommodation doesn't cause undue hardship for the City. Individuals protected by the 
ADA/ADAAA should discuss their need for possible accommodation with their manager or 
the Finance Director. 

 
10.4 AGE DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT ACT (ADEA) 

The Age Discrimination in Employment Act prohibits the discrimination against employees age 40 
and over with respect to any term, condition or privilege of employment, including hiring, firing, 
promotion, layoff, compensation, benefits, job assignments and training. The City may ask an 
employee to waive his/her rights or claims under the ADEA either in the settlement of an ADEA 
administrative or court claim or in connection with an exit incentive program or other employment 
termination program. Specific minimum standards must be met in order for a waiver to be 
considered knowing and voluntary and, therefore, valid, including 21 days to consider the waiver 
and 7 days to rescind a decision. Affected employees will be notified of their rights when 
applicable. 

 
10.5 WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY 

The City does not discriminate against employees who report in good faith alleged violations of 
state or federal laws, rules, or regulations. It is the responsibility of all City employees to report 
violations or suspected violations of applicable laws, rules, and regulations. Employees should 
share their concerns, suggestions, or complaints with someone who can properly address them. 
Typically, concerns should be shared with a supervisor, department head, or the City 
Administrator. This policy in no way limits an employee’s right to engage in rights protected by 
the Public Employees Collective Bargaining Act. 
 
Anyone filing a complaint concerning a violation or suspected violation must be acting in good 
faith and have reasonable grounds for believing the information disclosed indicates a violation. 
Any allegations that prove to have been made maliciously or knowingly to be false will be viewed 
as a serious disciplinary offense. 
 
Discrimination or retaliation against employees who report in good faith alleged violations of 
applicable laws, rules, or regulations shall not be tolerated. Any employee who believes that he or 
she has been subjected to discrimination or retaliation for whistleblowing, or that a violation of 
this policy has occurred, should immediately contact the City Administrator. The City 
Administrator or designee shall conduct an investigation regarding the complaint maintaining 
anonymity and confidentiality to the greatest extent possible. Appropriate corrective action will be 
taken if warranted by the investigation. 

 

 
City of Stayton           Page 47 
Personnel Manual 



 

10.6 RETALIATION 
1. If you believe you have been discriminated against or harassed, or if you witness or suspect 

any violation of our policies, you should report the matter immediately to any member of 
management or to the City Administrator, or Human Resources Representative. If the 
complaint is in regard to an alleged violation of these policies by the City Administrator, the 
complaint may be directed to the Mayor and City Council of the City. The City will not 
retaliate against you for filing a complaint or cooperating in an investigation, and will not 
tolerate or permit retaliation by management, employees or co-workers. 

2. The City will not tolerate unlawful retaliation or adverse actions against employees for 
engaging in protected activity. Federal Laws such as Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 
the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, and the American with Disabilities Act, all 
prohibit an employer from retaliating against an employee engaged in a protected activity.  
Adverse actions include termination, refusal to hire, denial of promotion, threats, unjustified 
negative evaluations and/or references, and reassignment leading to less desirable work 
conditions. 

3. A protected activity is defined as opposing an unlawful practice prohibited by employment 
discrimination laws (even if the accusations are not substantiated), or participating in any way 
in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing of an Equal Employment Opportunity charge. 

4. Any act of retaliation by a manager and/or coworker may result in serious disciplinary action 
up to and including termination. Any staff member may file a complaint with the City 
Administrator, or the Human Resources Representative or the Mayor and City Council of the 
City if an employee feels that they have experienced retaliation in any form. 

 
10.7 HARASSMENT 

1. Statement of Concern: The City seeks to eliminate and prevent harassment and to alleviate any 
effects such as harassment may have on the working condition of an employee. All such 
harassment is forbidden. The City prohibits harassment based on disability, race, color, 
national origin, religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, veterans status, military status, retaliation 
for opposing unlawful employment practices, association with members of a protected class, 
marital status, union participation, injured workers status, non-supervisory family 
relationships, or any other protected class, regardless of whether that harassment is targeted 
specifically at the employee. 

Harassment includes unsolicited remarks, gestures or physical contact, display or circulation 
of written materials or pictures derogatory towards either gender or towards racial, ethnic, or 
religious groups, or basing personnel decisions on an employee's response to such harassment. 
The City regards job related harassment as a serious transgression. 

2. Sexual harassment can include, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, requests for 
sexual favors, and other verbal or non-verbal communication or physical conduct of a sexual 
nature where: 

a. Submission to such conduct is made, either explicitly or implicitly, a term or condition 
of an individual’s employment. 

b. Submission or rejection of such conduct by an individual influences any employment-
related City decisions affecting the individual; or, 

c. The conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with an individual’s work 
performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 48 
Personnel Manual 



 

The conduct prohibited may be verbal, visual or physical in nature. A mayor to an employee, 
council to employee or co-worker to co-worker may direct it. It includes unwelcome sexual 
advances, requests for sexual favors, physical touching, or the granting or withholding of 
benefits (e.g. pay, promotions, time off) in response to the sexual conduct. More subtle forms 
of prohibited behavior, such as offensive posters, cartoons, caricatures, comments and jokes, 
language or innuendoes, hugging, or kissing may also constitute sexual harassment when they 
create or contribute to a hostile or offensive work environment. 

3. Policy: The City's policy is that every employee has a fundamental right to be free of such 
harassment.  In response to formal reports of harassment, the City will seek to protect all 
parties involved from retaliation, false accusations, or future harassment, and where indicated, 
will take prompt and adequate remedial measures. 

a. Should an issue of harassment be raised, all related matters will be kept confidential to 
the greatest extent possible throughout the investigation, counseling, and disciplinary 
stages. Any department head receiving notice of harassment will notify the City 
Administrator who will direct an investigation and insure that the charge is resolved 
appropriately. 

4. Reporting Harassment: Any employee who feels harassed or is aware of harassment of 
another employee is urged to report this to an immediate supervisor, department head, or the 
City Administrator. The report may be informal or formal. A formal report will include a 
written statement or an appeal under a labor agreement. 

5. Response to Reports of Harassment: Written reports concerning harassment will be forwarded 
to the City Administrator unless there is an allegation against that person; in that event, written 
reports will be forwarded to the City Attorney. This procedure will apply to written statements 
received from reporting employees or written records made by supervisory employees, 
including department heads. Whenever supervisory employees become aware of allegations of 
harassment, they will make a written record of the allegations and will forward the record to 
the City in accordance with this policy. 

6. Investigation: The City Administrator or the City Attorney will begin an investigation if 
necessary. The first pre-investigation step will be to inquire of all persons reporting as to 
whether the record now includes all allegations of harassment. The investigation will be 
conducted promptly on a priority basis. 

a. The investigation will be directed at ascertaining the facts concerning the allegations.  
If, in the course of investigation, evidence of harassment involving other employees is 
found, the City will initiate separate investigations. 

b. The person reported to have harassed an employee will be advised of the allegations 
and afforded an opportunity to reply verbally or in writing. The employee will also be 
advised that any retaliatory conduct will be subject to disciplinary action regardless of 
allegations of harassment. 

c. The results of the investigation will be reduced to writing. A finding will be made that 
there is or there is not reasonable cause for disciplinary action. Nothing in this section 
will limit the authority of the City to modify policies or practices to correct any 
appearance of sexual harassment without finding reasonable cause for disciplinary 
action or taking any disciplinary action. The report will also include any 
recommendations to remedy any harm suffered if evidence shows the employee 
allegedly affected by sexual harassment was injured or harmed. 

d. A report which finds reasonable cause for disciplinary action will be maintained in the 

 
City of Stayton           Page 49 
Personnel Manual 



 

personnel file of any employee subject to discipline. The employee may have placed 
in the personnel file a statement of rebuttal or correction. For the purpose of this 
section, a former employee may present such statement. 

7. Sealing of Records Relating to Harassment: Records relating to harassment include written 
reports regarding alleged harassment, memos between City employees concerning 
investigation of such allegations, and City recommendations in response to allegations.  
Records relating to sexual harassment will be retained by the City for a minimum of six (6) 
years. All such records will be retained in a sealed file. Cross-referenced to the sealed file will 
be the reports of the reporting employee, the allegedly affected employee, and the employee 
who was reported to have harassed another. Once the material in the sealed file is determined 
to have no reasonable bearing on job performance or on the efficient and effective 
management of the City, references to the alleged harassment contained in one or more 
individual personnel files may be removed. 

No information from the sealed file nor any indication of the cross-reference to the sealed file 
will be disclosed to persons who do not have confidential access to the personnel affairs of the 
City, provided that there are two exceptions which permit some disclosure. 

a. An employee who reported harassment and/or an employee who was allegedly 
affected by harassment may request that the City provide information to another 
regarding the investigation of harassment. On a case-by-case basis, the City, in its own 
discretion, may agree to release specified information; 

b. Whenever the City would provide general information from the City's personnel file to 
persons who are not officers or employees of the City in regard to an employee or 
former employee and the employee's personnel file reflects a finding of reasonable 
cause for disciplinary action, the City will also send information regarding the 
investigation of harassment, except that no readily identifiable reference to other 
parties involved may be included, and any statement which the employee had 
requested be held in the file will accompany the disclosure. 

 
10.8 COMMUNICABLE DISEASES AND RELATED SAFETY PROTOCOL FOR 

EMPLOYEES AND CLIENTS 
This policy addresses employment and public relations issues arising from communicable diseases 
in the City workplace. It does not address communicable disease reporting or treatment. 

For some diseases, workplace transmission is a real danger. For other diseases, such as Acquired 
Immune Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS), according to the best medical evidence available, casual 
workplace contacts among employees and citizens who are infected will not transmit the disease.  
The nature of each disease will determine the City's response to infected employees and clients.  

1. Policy for a Safe Working Environment: The City recognizes that its employees and clients are 
entitled to a safe working environment. Employees and job applicants who are communicable 
disease carriers or who are afflicted with disease symptoms are entitled to compassion and 
legal protection against unlawful discrimination. Work restrictions will be imposed only when 
a disease may be spread in the City workplace. Based on these principles, the City has 
formulated this policy to: 

a. Prevent unlawful discrimination in hiring; 

b. Educate employees about the ways communicable disease is and is not transmitted; 

c. Designate a contact person to whom concerned employees can go for information; 

 
City of Stayton           Page 50 
Personnel Manual 



 

d. Ensure the confidentiality of information about any employee who contracts a 
communicable disease; 

e. Address employment concerns of infected employees; 

f. Require medical assessment of employees with potentially dangerous diseases; 

g. Assure that the public is accommodated and that risks to health are minimized; 

h. Provide for technical assistance on infection control issues; 

i. Protect the health of employees through a program of universal precautions for blood-
borne diseases; 

j. Avoid disruption or interference with the City's business that could result from 
unfounded health concerns; and 

k. Specify the oversight of communicable disease issues regarding employees. 

2. Non-Discrimination Hiring: The City will not unlawfully discriminate against persons with 
disease on the basis of their handicap. The following practices are to be followed: 

a. Job applicants are not to be asked whether they have any disease or are infected with a 
disease agent. They are to be asked whether they are able to perform specific job 
functions, tasks, or duties. They may also be asked to describe or demonstrate how 
they will perform a job, with or without an accommodation. If accommodation is 
required, its reasonableness will be assessed by management under Section 10.8.6, 
Employment of Infected Employees. 

b. Job applicants who disclose that they have a disease or are infected will be asked if 
they can do the job applied for and whether any sort of accommodation is required. 
The reasonableness of any requested accommodation will be determined by 
management under Section 10.8.6, employment of infected employees. 

c. Any applicant known by the City to be handicapped but capable of performing the 
essential duties of the job sought, with or without reasonable accommodation, will be 
given the same consideration as other equally qualified applicants. 

3. Employee Education: Employees who are educated about the actual medical risks posed by 
communicable diseases will be safer and more comfortable at work. The City, in coordination 
with the Oregon Health Division, will strive to provide the following sources of education 
about the transmission of diseases: 

a. Informational materials designed to answer specific questions; 

b. Videotaped and/or live presentations; 

c. Confidential access to a designated contact person trained to answer questions or 
obtain additional information; 

d. Training which will include personal preventive techniques such as immunization and 
good hygiene; 

e. Training regarding hazardous materials which will specifically include information 
concerning the infectious risks associated with contact with blood and other bodily 
fluid spills. Employees are strongly urged to take advantage of these resources. 

4. Designated Contact Person: The City will have a designated contact person who will be 
trained to address communicable disease concerns. At present, this person is the department 

 
City of Stayton           Page 51 
Personnel Manual 



 

head or their designate. 

5. Confidentiality: The City recognizes that an employee's health concerns are confidential.  
Employees who have been infected with or who have been exposed to a communicable disease 
may notify the designated contact person confidentially. Medical information will be kept 
confidential, consistent with legal, medical, and management practices. 

a. Employees infected with a communicable disease or afflicted with disease symptoms 
are expected to refrain from publicizing their condition in a manner likely to subject 
the City to adverse publicity or internal controversy. Failure to do so is grounds for 
discipline, wholly independent of the employee's underlying disability. 

b. Employees who obtain knowledge that an employee is a communicable disease carrier 
or is afflicted with disease symptoms will maintain the confidentiality of such 
information. Failure to do so may result in discipline. 

6. Employment of Infected Employees: Employees who are infected with a communicable disease 
or afflicted with disease symptoms may contact the designated contact person for confidential 
information about the potential impact of their condition on their employment.  Upon request, 
the designated contact person will assist concerned employees in obtaining information about 
community resources and psychological counseling available to persons with a communicable 
disease and their families. 

Any employee with a known infectious disease for which there is a known risk of transmission 
to co-workers or clients will be: 

a. Given reasonable accommodation within the work organization which does not pose a 
risk of disease transmission, or 

b. If no reasonable accommodation is possible, then he/she will be placed on medical 
leave, subject to the City's policies on such leave. Any employee with a known 
infectious disease for which there is no known risk of transmission in the workplace 
may continue in his or her position as long as the employee is able to perform his or 
her job duties safely. If complications of the employee's illness could be caused by 
ordinary workplace conditions, reasonable accommodations will be made in job 
assignment to avoid those complications. 

c. The reasonableness of any proposed accommodation will be determined by 
management and will take into consideration the health and safety of all employees 
and clients. Supervisors are to consult the designated contact person to obtain City 
authorization before making any employment decision on the basis of an employee's 
actual or perceived infection. Discrimination against such employees on the basis of 
their handicap will not be tolerated, but no employee will be permitted to work in a 
position which would create a risk of disease transmission to co-workers or the public. 

7. Medical Assessment: If the department head has reasonable basis to believe that an employee 
has an infectious disease which may pose a hazard to co-workers or clients, the department 
head will request a medical assessment from the employee's physician. If, in the department 
head's judgment, the medical assessment by the employee's physician does not adequately 
resolve the issue of hazard, and following consultation with the Marion County Health Officer, 
the department head may require a second opinion from a physician selected by the City. Any 
leave taken under the terms of this section for medical examinations will be an administrative 
leave with pay. To the extent not covered by the employee's medical insurance, the cost for 
medical examinations required under this section will be borne by the city. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 52 
Personnel Manual 



 

8. Technical Assistance: The Marion County Health Officer will provide technical assistance to 
the department head regarding medical issues which may arise from an infectious disease 
incident. Medical technical assistance will include providing a current list of infectious 
diseases which are transmittable in the workplace. This listing will be consistent with the rules 
of the Oregon Health Division. 

9. Infected Citizens: As a public service organization, the City cannot discriminate against 
citizens on the basis of disability. If uniform health precautions are followed rigorously and 
routinely, then the risks of accidental infection when rendering aid to an infected person is 
minimized. Discrimination against citizens with or who are suspected of having a 
transmittable infection will not be tolerated. 

10. Exposures: In the event of exposure to bodily fluids under circumstances that could present a 
risk of infectious exposure, a report will be made to the department head as soon as possible.  
If confirmed, the department head may solicit the cooperation of the source person through 
voluntary testing with informed consent. In order to protect the employee, a baseline test will 
be made within the week following exposure and at three-month intervals for one year. The 
department head will insure that the employee involved receives counseling appropriate for the 
circumstances. All testing will be preceded by informed consent and written authorization. 

11. Universal Health Precautions: As recommended by public health authorities, the City will 
adhere to a program of universal precautions for protection against diseases spread by blood or 
bodily fluids ("bodily fluids" is defined as fluids that may contain blood or feces; not urine, 
sweat, saliva, or tears). This means that, for safety purposes, employees will operate on the 
assumption that all employees and citizens are potential carriers of blood-borne disease.  
Universal precautions protect against AIDS and many other diseases such as hepatitis B. The 
following general precautions will be followed: 

a. Any employee cleaning up a spill of blood or bodily fluids or rendering emergency 
medical assistance will wear appropriate protective gear (such as latex gloves); 

b. Protective gear for cleaning blood or spills of bodily fluids will be provided by the 
City and will be located near any area determined to be a site of such a spill, and in 
emergency response vehicles; 

c. An employee rendering medical assistance which may expose the employee to blood 
or bodily fluids will take precautions against contamination (such as wearing latex 
gloves while bandaging a bleeding wound, or using a mouth- piece for mouth-to-
mouth resuscitation). An employee exposed to blood or bodily fluids will scrub with 
soap and water; 

d. Protective equipment for medical emergencies will be provided by the City and will 
be located in or near all first aid kits. 

e. Any additional precautions applicable to specific job functions and any further general 
precautions will be conveyed through employee training sessions, educational 
material, or more specific departmental policy. 

12. Business Disruptions Due to Unfounded Health Concerns: If an employee refuses to work 
with an infected co-worker or serve an infected citizen and if a supervisor should decide that 
the co-worker or citizen poses or posed no threat to the health of others, continued refusal or a 
failure to work with or other disruption of City services may result in discipline, including 
discharge. Harassment of known or suspected carriers is expressly prohibited and may result in 
discipline, including discharge. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 53 
Personnel Manual 



 

13. Oversight: It will be the responsibility of the department head to: 

a. Ensure the proper posting of work rules and operation procedures to ensure that each 
employee has advance notice of his/her obligations regarding providing of services to 
infected clients as well as safety procedures; 

b. Ensure that safety procedures are in compliance with guidelines issued by the Centers 
for Disease Control (CDC) or the Oregon Health Division; 

c. Arrange for any specialized training that may be necessary in operational areas in 
which special risks may exist; 

d. Ensure that such equipment and materials are available to employees as are necessary 
to adhere to required procedures; 

e. Ensure that the policy in this section is adhered to. 

14. Complaints concerning any employee's failure to comply with this policy should be brought to 
the attention of a supervisor. Complaints may be raised by following procedures of Section 
10.7, Harassment, or Section 11.3 related to the appeal process. 

 
10.9 CRIME VICTIMS 

No person may refuse to hire an otherwise qualified individual because the individual is a victim 
of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or criminal harassment. 
 
No person may discharge, threaten to discharge, demote, suspend or in any manner discriminate or 
retaliate against an employee with regard to promotion, compensation, or other terms, conditions 
or privileges of employment because the employee is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, 
stalking, or criminal harassment or because the employee requests leave or reasonable safety 
accommodation under the provisions of this rule. 

 
10.10 RELIGIOUS ACCOMMODATION 

The City respects the religious beliefs and practices of all employees and will make, upon request, 
an accommodation for such observances when a reasonable accommodation is available that does 
not create an undue hardship on the City of Stayton’s business. 
 
An employee whose religious beliefs or practices conflict with his/her job, work schedule, with the 
City’s policy or practice on dress and appearance, or with other aspects of employment and who 
seeks a religious accommodation should submit a request for the accommodation to his/her 
immediate supervisor. The request should be in writing and include the type of religious conflict 
that exists and the employee’s suggested accommodation. 
 
The supervisor and employee will meet to discuss the request and the decision on an 
accommodation. If the employee accepts the proposed religious accommodation, the immediate 
supervisor will implement the decision. If the employee rejects the proposed accommodation, the 
parties may discuss alternative accommodations or the employee may appeal the decision using 
the policy set forth in these personnel rules (Section 11.3.3). 
 
With management approval, an employee may use vacation or other available leave for religious 
activities; if accrued leave is not available, then an employee may request to take unpaid leave. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 54 
Personnel Manual 



 

SECTION 11 
EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE REVIEW PROCESS 

 
11.1 EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE REVIEWS 

1. Purpose: Communication. Employee performance reviews are an essential communication 
process between the employee and the immediate supervisor. Such reviews provide 
information relating to merit, identify areas of training needs, target the strengths and 
weaknesses of the employee's work performance, and measure the relationship between goals 
and objectives and the individual employee's productivity. The purpose of evaluations is to 
inform employees of the supervisor's assessment of how well they are performing their duties 
and whether there are areas of performance needing improvement. 

2. Goal: Desirable Behaviors. The goal of the employee performance review process is to 
establish a pattern of expected work habits. The performance review process gives employees 
and supervisors an opportunity to review and establish goals, to reward or acknowledge good 
performance, to create incentives, and to detect and correct improper behavior or activity 
and/or substandard work performance. 

3. Review Process: Performance reviews will be completed at least annually and in accordance 
with the guidelines and instructions set forth in this manual. 

4. Trial Service Review: Trial Service employees will participate in goal-setting 
interview/reviews as often as appropriate and will be evaluated before conversion to regular 
employee status. 

5. Pay and Probation Recommendations: A recommendation for a merit or step increase and/or 
extension of probation, or passing probation to regular employee status, or termination will be 
set forth in a performance evaluation as appropriate. 

6. Supplemental Evaluation: A supplemental performance evaluation may be submitted on any 
occasion deemed appropriate by a supervisor. 

 
11.2 PERFORMANCE REVIEW PROCEDURES 

1. A written evaluation of each employee's job performance will normally be completed by the 
employee's supervisor at the end of the employee's trial service and then the employee's 
performance will be reviewed annually from the date of the employee's successful completion 
of the trial service period. 

a. Forms: The supervisor will use performance evaluation forms approved by the City 
Administrator. Each evaluation will be completed, dated, and signed by the 
supervisor. 

b. Employee Review: The supervisor and employee will review the evaluation in detail.  
Each employee will sign the performance evaluation after the review and may attach a 
written response to the evaluation within five (5) days of the date of the evaluation. 

c. Personnel Record: The performance evaluation will become a permanent part of the 
employee's personnel record and will be placed in the central personnel file. 

d. Review: After an evaluation is completed, the employee's supervisor will review the 
performance evaluation with the supervisor's next immediate supervisor. 

e. Job Performance Goals and Objectives: The employee and supervisor may establish, 
in writing, specific job performance objectives and completion dates as part of each 
evaluation. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 55 
Personnel Manual 



 

f. Rating Scale: An employee's job performance will be rated by, needs improvement, 
performing adequately, and exceeds expectation: 

i. Needs Improvement: Overall employee performance is satisfactory.  
Deficiencies are noted in one or more areas and improvements are required to 
achieve satisfactory performance, and/or the employee has accomplished less 
than 75 percent of the job objectives for previous year; those completed are 
satisfactory to good. 

ii. Average: Good to excellent performance on 80 percent of work assignments.  
The employee works independently and initiates improvements in the 
operation of the City. Employee has completed all job objectives for the 
previous year at a skill level of above average. 

iii. Exceeds Expectations: Excellent performance. All job skills are performed at 
a superior level.  The employee works independently and initiates 
improvements in the operation of the City. Employee has completed all job 
objectives for the previous year and has performed numerous other work 
assignments and/or professional development training, demonstrating a 
superior skill level on most assignments. 

2. Merit Salary Adjustment 

a. The City Administrator may grant an employee a merit salary increase for satisfactory 
or superior job performance in accordance with policy 5.4, Salary Increases. 

b. The City Administrator may approve a reduction in salary if employee performance 
needs improvement. 

3. Re-Evaluation and Follow-Up Action Related to Performance 

a. Where the employee's work needs improvement, the supervisor will work with the 
employee to establish an employee improvement program. The supervisor and 
employee will establish, in writing, a work program which defines the areas where the 
employee's performance has not met standards, what improvement is necessary to 
bring the employee's work up to a satisfactory performance level, and the date by 
which the employee's work must be brought up to standard. 

b. A supervisor will re-evaluate an employee three (3) months after the employee 
receives an "needs improvement" performance rating to determine if the employee has 
met the agreed upon requirements of the employee improvement program. 

c. If the employee fails to meet the agreed upon performance standards within the time 
specified, the employee may be subject to transfer, demotion, reduction in salary, or 
termination. 

 
11.3 PROBLEM SOLVING PROCESS FOR NON-BARGAINING UNIT EMPLOYEES 

1. City Policy: While the City strives for fair treatment of all employees, misunderstandings and 
problems do occur in any organization. The City's intent is that such matters be resolved as 
early as possible. Disagreements relating to a work assignment, pay, promotional opportunity, 
or any other aspect of the work relationship should be discussed with the immediate supervisor 
openly. Supervisors and employees, including employees covered by a collective bargaining 
agreement, should make a genuine attempt to understand each other's perspective and to make 
every effort to resolve differences. 

2. Steps to Solution: If at any time an employee feels he/she is not being treated fairly, the 

 
City of Stayton           Page 56 
Personnel Manual 



 

employee may report the problem to the department head or to the City Administrator. 

a. Employees are encouraged to talk with their department heads as soon as possible 
after becoming aware of the problem. The department head is the person responsible 
for what goes on in the immediate work area. He/She will review reported problems, 
and will keep the employee informed of progress. 

b. If the employee feels the problem has not been resolved satisfactorily, the employee 
can file a written complaint or appeal as outlined in the complaint or appeal procedure. 

c. The City cannot guarantee that an employee's point of view will be accepted. 
However, supervisors and the City Administrator will always listen and will make 
every effort to ensure that the problems are resolved fairly and in the public interest. 

3. Complaint or Appeal Procedure:  When problems arise which cannot be resolved informally, 
the following process should be followed in submitting and processing an appeal: 

a. If an employee wishes to express a formal complaint related to employment 
conditions, relationships, or any other type of appeal other than disciplinary matters, 
the employee will submit to his/her supervisor a written statement describing the 
complaint or appeal within seven (7) working days of the event(s) upon which the 
appeal is claimed. The supervisor will reply to the employee in writing within seven 
(7) working days of the filing of the appeal, not including the date of presentation of 
the appeal. 

b. If the employee is not satisfied with the supervisor's decision, the employee may 
appeal the matter to the supervisor's department head by filing a written appeal within 
seven (7) working days of the supervisor's decision. The department head will review 
the written appeal, all pertinent correspondence, records, and information accumulated 
to date and then meet with the employee. The department head will reply to the 
employee in writing within seven (7) working days of the filing of the appeal, not 
including the date of the presentation of the appeal. 

c. If the employee is not satisfied with the department head's decision, the employee may 
appeal the matter to the City Administrator by filing a written appeal within seven (7) 
working days of the decision. The City Administrator will review the written appeal, 
all pertinent correspondence, records, and information accumulated to date and meet 
with the employee. The City Administrator will reply to the employee in writing 
within seven (7) working days of the filing of the appeal, not including the date of the 
presentation of the appeal. The City Administrator's decision will be final. 

d. An appeal against the City Administrator will be filed with the Mayor and City 
Council at the next regularly scheduled council meeting, the appeal will be heard or 
scheduled for consideration within fourteen (14) days. The City Council will meet, 
hear the appeal, and respond to it by the end of its meeting unless it votes to extend the 
response time. After hearing the appeal, the Council may extend the response time to 
thirty (30) days. The City Council's decision will be final. 

4. Follow process: All employees will follow the informal problem solving process or complaint 
and appeal process. No employee may present his or her appeal to a department head, the City 
Administrator, or the City Council without first presenting the matter to that employee's 
supervisor, except as provided in Section 10.7, Harassment. If the appeal procedures are not 
followed, the appeal will be considered not to have existed. Any appeal not taken to the next 
step in the appeal process will be considered resolved on the basis of the last reply made and 
received. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 57 
Personnel Manual 



 

5. No employee will be disciplined or discriminated against in any way because of his or her 
proper use of the appeal procedure. 

6. Any employee who is covered by a collective bargaining agreement may elect to pursue any 
matter under the problem-solving process; however, by so doing the bargaining unit 
employee waives the right to bring the grievance under the collective bargaining agreement. 

 
11.4 VIOLATION OF RULES WHICH MAY LEAD TO DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

This section and the appeal procedure set forth in Section 12 do not alter the "at-will" status of 
employees. Section 11.4 is intended to provide employees with forewarning of the kinds of 
behavior which the City will consider as the basis for corrective or disciplinary action, and 
Section 11.4, read together with Section 12, is intended to provide employees with procedural 
rights relating to disciplinary action. 
 
Although City employees do not have a proprietary interest in continued employment and the 
employment relationship is terminable at any time at the will of either the employee or the City, 
without the need to indicate a specific reason or cause, the City has identified certain conduct 
which is grounds for imposition of discipline, including termination. The City has also developed 
certain procedures which the City Administrator and supervisors are expected to follow when 
exercising the City's right to discipline or dismiss employees. These procedures are set forth in 
this manual, but do not constitute terms of any employee's contract of employment. 
 
The orderly and efficient operation of the City requires that employees maintain discipline, proper 
standards of conduct, and competent performance of job responsibilities. Supervisors will resort 
to corrective action or disciplinary action when an employee fails to perform in accordance with 
the expectations of the City. Discipline may be initiated for many proper reasons, including but 
not limited to violation of work rules, insubordination, or poor job performance. The severity of 
the disciplinary action will depend upon the nature of the offense or misconduct, the employee's 
work record, and other factors deemed relevant by the City. 
 
An employee may receive corrective action or disciplinary action when the employee's 
performance falls below desirable standards. In addition, an employee who commits misconduct 
or violates standards of conduct will be subject to disciplinary action. The City may issue verbal 
or written warnings, suspend, demote, dismiss, or take other actions it deems appropriate for 
violation of work rules or for poor performance. Meetings with supervisors, performance reviews, 
and counseling sessions are intended to assist an employee to do well and improve, and do not 
constitute disciplinary action. 
 
Although specific work rules cannot be listed to cover every situation, employees are expected to 
exercise sound judgment and to act in the public interest at all times. Employees failing to do so 
will be subject to counseling or discipline as deemed appropriate by the supervisor. Certain 
behaviors are considered particularly serious and will result in an appropriate level of disciplinary 
action. These include but are not limited to: 

1. Drinking intoxicating beverages or abusing prescription or non-prescription drugs on the 
job; arriving on the job under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs; or 
working while under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs. 

2. Violation of lawful duty. 

3. Insubordination. 

4. Breach of discipline. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 58 
Personnel Manual 



 

5. Being absent from work without first notifying and securing permission from the 
employee's supervisor in accordance with the sick leave policy contained in this manual. 

6. Unwarranted absenteeism or tardiness. 

7. Offensive conduct toward the public or fellow employees, including but not limited to the 
use of abusive, profane, or obscene language, or argumentative, rude, or discourteous 
behavior. 

8. Conviction of a felony or of a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude. 

9. Accepting fees, gifts, or other valuables in the performance of official duties for the City 
beyond the limits established in these personnel policies. 

10. Misuse and/or being wasteful of material, property, or working time. 

11. Inability or unwillingness to perform his or her assigned duties or to assist others. 

12. Violation of the provisions of any rules or regulations prescribed by the City Council, 
City Administrator, department head or supervisor. 

13. Falsification of records. 

14. Theft, destruction, or abuse of city property. 

15. Dishonesty. 

16. Unauthorized possession of firearms or explosives on city property and/or during 
working hours. 

17. Deliberately restricting work output. 

18. Unauthorized use of city tools, equipment, or materials. 

19. Any conduct or action which tends to bring the city into discredit or which would affect 
the employee's ability to perform his or her official duties. 

20. Outside employment which affects the employee's efficiency or which results in a 
conflict of interest. 

21. Verbal abuse, physical abuse, physical intimidation, fighting, provoking or instigating a 
fight during working hours. 

22. Misuse of sick leave or other benefits. 

23. Working unauthorized overtime or failing to report hours worked on the employee's 
timecard. 

24. Repeated violations of safety rules or the conduct of unsafe activities while on the job or 
in the workplace. 

25. Multiple uncorrected violations of one or more work rules, personnel policies, 
departmental rules, or standard operating procedures of the City. 

26. Inability or unwillingness to work cooperatively and courteously with other employees, 
city officials, or the public. 

27. Conduct which deviates from generally acceptable standards of personal   behavior, 
public relations, and public service. 

28. Conduct which is inconsistent with performance expectations and the legitimate interests 
of the City in delivering public services. 
 

 
City of Stayton           Page 59 
Personnel Manual 



 

These rules are clear and require little explanation. However, if an employee has any questions 
concerning the application or intent of these rules, the employee should consult his/her 
supervisor. Employee cooperation in observing the City work rules will make it unnecessary for 
the City to invoke the disciplinary standards or procedures. 
 
Obviously, rules cannot be listed to cover every situation. Conduct not specifically addressed by 
this manual will be disciplined in a manner the supervisor decides is equivalent to the 
misconduct. 
 

 
City of Stayton           Page 60 
Personnel Manual 



 

SECTION 12 
DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES FOR NON-BARGAINING UNIT EMPLOYEES 

 
12.1 PURPOSE OF DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

The purpose of disciplinary action is to maintain discipline, maintain proper standards of conduct, 
and to improve the performance, efficiency, and morale of the employee. Employee misconduct 
or any action which reflects discredit on the City is a direct hindrance to the effective 
performance of city government functions and will be considered good cause for disciplinary 
action. 
 

1. Disciplinary actions, administered according to the frequency or severity of the offense, 
can include: 

a. Verbal Warning 

b. Written reprimand 

c. Temporary salary reduction 

d. Suspension 

e. Demotion 

f. Termination from the City service 

2. Discipline will be of progressive severity whenever possible and will depend on the 
seriousness of the offense involved. However, suspension, demotion, or termination may 
be deemed appropriate for a first offense because of the seriousness of the offense. If an 
employee fails to perform job duties and/or fails to meet job performance goals and 
objectives, suspension, demotion or termination may be immediately considered. 

3. Written notice of all disciplinary actions other than verbal warnings will be made a part 
of the employee's personnel records and the employee will receive a copy of all 
disciplinary actions or memoranda placed in the central personnel file. 

4. Letters of warning will be considered temporary contents of the central personnel file and 
will be removed and then retained in a separate file by the employer no later than 
eighteen (18) months after they have been placed in the employee's personnel file. 

5. An employee's overall record may be considered in determining the appropriate degree of 
discipline to be imposed in a particular case. 

6. Aggravating or mitigating circumstances, such as an employee's past record, length of 
service with the City, and other relevant facts may be considered by the City in imposing 
discipline. 

 
12.2 DISCIPLINARY ACTION PROCEDURE 

1. When disciplinary action is necessary, it will be administered by the employee's super visor.  
Supervisors will be disciplined by the supervisor's department head. Department heads will 
be disciplined by the City Administrator. The City Administrator will be disciplined by the 
City Council. 

2. In order to establish an accurate record of the procedure and to ensure that discipline is 
imposed in a consistent and lawful manner, it is important to make an adequate initial 
investigation. Before any disciplinary action is taken, the supervisor must determine: 

 
City of Stayton           Page 61 
Personnel Manual 



 

a. What rule or performance standard was violated; 

b. Who was involved; 

c. When the violation or deficiency occurred; 

d. Who the witnesses were, if any; and 

e. The past record of the employee. 

3. Verbal warnings and written reprimands are appropriate for employees who have not had 
prior disciplinary problems and for minor rule infractions. The supervisor should attempt to 
fit the warning or reprimand to the individual employee and particular situation. Such verbal 
warnings and written reprimands will be handled in private. The supervisor should record 
even verbal warnings in his/her supervisory diary or log book. There are no additional 
procedures and no further appeals from either a verbal warning or a written reprimand. 

4. An employee who receives a written reprimand will be given written notice of the following: 

a. The factual allegations, performance standards, and/or rule violated. 

b. Specific information on how the employee's performance does not meet standards. 

c. A work plan including the steps the employee needs to take to comply with the 
established rule and/or steps needed for the employee to meet required standards, 
including a specific timeline for meeting established goals. 

d. A statement of the consequences to the employee if he/she fails to correct the 
deficiency and/or accomplish the goals within the timeframe given. 

e. A statement that the employee may file a written response within two (2) working 
days of receipt of the written reprimand. 

f. A statement that there are no additional procedures to be followed and no further 
appeals which may be filed for a written reprimand. 

Written reprimands will be placed in the employee's central personnel file. The employee will 
be provided a copy of a written reprimand and a place is to be provided for him/her to 
acknowledge its receipt. An employee may prepare a response which will be attached to the 
reprimand and placed in the central personnel file within two (2) working days of receipt of 
the reprimand. There are no additional procedures and no further appeals from a written 
reprimand 

5. An employee whose demotion, temporary salary reduction, suspension without pay, or 
termination is sought will be given the following: 

a. Written notice of: 

i. The factual allegations and rule violated. 

ii. The sanctions being considered (i.e., temporary salary reduction, suspension, 
demotion, or termination, and when the sanctions will take effect). 

iii. A statement that the employee has a right to refute the allegations by filing a 
written response by a specified time and date as set forth below. 

iv. A statement that the employee has a right to a meeting with the supervisor during 
which he/she may verbally or in writing respond to the allegations at a specified 
date, time, and place. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 62 
Personnel Manual 



 

v. The date by which the supervisor will make a final decision and when it will be 
communicated to the employee. 

b. The employee should have at least two (2) working days but in no case more than 
seven (7) working days, in which to hold the personal meeting with his/her 
supervisor and/or to file a written response to the charges, including supporting 
affidavits. 

c. The reviewing individual's final decision will be communicated to the employee 
within two (2) working days from the time the written response is filed or the 
personal interview is held, whichever is earlier. 

6. The City is not required to give the employee a formal hearing or to extend the right to 
examine witnesses prior to the imposition of discipline; however, such a procedure may be 
permitted at the discretion of the City if the supervisor believes that such a process would 
advance the supervisor's pre-disciplinary investigative and fact finding process. 

7. In the event of a serious problem or of disruptive misconduct, it may be necessary to suspend 
an employee immediately.  The suspension must be with pay until the "due process" 
requirements are met. Any actions should be as prompt as possible. 

8. When the disciplinary action is resolved, any monies owed to the employee will be promptly 
paid to the employee. 

 
12.3 DISCIPLINARY ACTION OF TRIAL SERVICE EMPLOYEES 

During the trial service period an employee may be disciplined or discharged without appeal. 
Trial service employees are not entitled to the procedures and rights set out in this section. 

 
12.4 APPEAL PROCEDURE 

1. All regular employees will have the right to appeal a disciplinary action other than verbal 
warnings or written reprimands. Written notice of the appeal will be filed with the department 
head within two (2) working days after the effective date of disciplinary action. The appeal 
will specifically state the reason for the appeal and areas of disagreement between the 
supervisor and the employee. Department heads must respond to the appeal within seven (7) 
working days. 

2. If the employee is not satisfied with the department head's decision, he or she may appeal the 
matter to the City Administrator within seven (7) working days of receipt of the department 
head's decision. The City Administrator will take action on the appeal within seven (7) 
working days of the filing of the appeal. If the City Administrator feels that the issues involved 
will take more than seven (7) working days to review, the City Administrator may set 
additional time by which a decision must be reached. The City Administrator may establish 
rules and procedures to review the appeal on a case-by-case basis. 

3. The City Administrator's decision will be final for all employees except department heads, 
who may appeal a suspension without pay and termination, but not other decisions. 

4. If a department head is not satisfied with the City Administrator's decision regarding 
disciplinary action taken against him/her, the department head may appeal the matter to the 
City Council by filing a written appeal with the Mayor within two (2) working days of the City 
Administrator's decision. The Council will meet, hear the appeal, and respond to it by the end 
of its next regularly scheduled Council meeting following the filing of the appeal unless the 
Council votes to extend the response time. The Council may extend the response time up to 
thirty (30) days. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 63 
Personnel Manual 



 

5. All hearings before the City Council which are held under the appeal procedures may be 
conducted either in meetings open to the public or in executive session at the discretion of the 
Council, unless the employee making the appeal requests a hearing open to the public. The 
employee is entitled to attend the hearing. 

6. The Council's decision will be final. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 64 
Personnel Manual 



 

SECTION 13 
SUGGESTION, INCENTIVE AND EDUCATION PLANS 

 
13.1 SUGGESTION POLICY 

The City supports the use of an employee suggestion program to bring dollar saving ideas to the 
attention of the City Administrator and encourages employees to take an increased interest in the 
operation of the City. 

 
13.2 RECOGNITION 

The City will recognize length of service for employees through longevity awards, and 
outstanding accomplishments and work performance. 

 
13.3 IN-SERVICE TRAINING 

The City Council encourages employees and supervisors to take advantage of training 
opportunities in order that services rendered to the City will be more effective. The City 
Administrator will assist department heads in meeting training needs in their departments, in 
developing training programs designed to meet immediate city-wide personnel needs, and in 
preparing employees for promotion to positions of greater responsibility. 
 
Training sessions may be conducted during regular working hours at the discretion of department 
heads. Prior to employee participation in a training session conducted outside the employee's 
regularly scheduled work hours, the department head will be contacted and a determination will 
be made as to whether or not such sessions are to be approved for additional overtime. 

 
13.4 EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES 

1. The City will reimburse an employee for the cost of tuition for courses and degree programs 
directly related to the employee's work offered at any accredited institution for higher 
education (e.g., Chemeketa Community College, Linn-Benton Community College, Western 
Oregon University, Portland State University, etc.) which courses are conducted outside the 
employee's regularly scheduled work hours, provided that: 

a. Attending or taking such courses is voluntary and the employee is advised that non-
attendance will not prejudice his or her working conditions or employment standing. 

b. The employee is instructed not to perform services on behalf of the City while 
attending any such session. 

c. Funds for such expenditures are available in the current budget. 

d. The employee has made application through their supervisor to the City 
Administrator prior to registration, and has received written approval for participation 
in the educational program. 

e. The employee submits evidence of a passing grade of "C" or higher or "Pass", and 
satisfactory completion of the course. 

f. The employee is not receiving reimbursement for tuition from any other source. 

g. The employee is eligible for reimbursement for no more than eight (8) credit hours 
per semester. 

h. Prior to approval of an eligible educational class or program, the City Administrator 
may require the employee sign an agreement or professional growth plan related to 
the educational costs and the employee's future employment with the City. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 65 
Personnel Manual 



 

i. The City Administrator must grant prior approval for out-of-state training or 
educational classes or programs, which last longer than three (3) work days or which 
cost the city more than $1,000. 

2. Courses which are only offered during regular working hours may be approved by the 
department head provided time off may be arranged conveniently and reasonable 
arrangements can be made for the employee to make up time off. 

3. The City will reimburse an employee for the expense of attending classes, lectures, 
conferences, or conventions when the employee has been directed to attend on an assignment 
basis. The assignment will have prior approval of the employee's department head. 

4. Normally the cost of textbooks and technical publications required for such courses will be 
the responsibility of the employee. If the City purchases any of the textbooks and publications 
for such courses, said textbooks and publications will become the property of the City. 

5. The City may require employees to attend courses or training seminars as part of regularly 
scheduled work duties and will reimburse an employee for the expenses of attending classes, 
lectures, conferences, or conventions when attendance is on an assignment basis. 

6. Employees are advised that educational and in-kind benefits from the City to an employee 
may be counted as part of the employee's compensation by the Federal Internal Revenue 
Service (IRS) and will be reported on W-2 forms at the end of the year as income. 

 
City of Stayton           Page 66 
Personnel Manual 



M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO:  Mayor Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM: Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
 
DATE: February 19, 2013   
 
SUBJECT: Monthly Finance Department Report   
      
 
Attached are the month-end reports for the major operating funds of the City.  I have 
identified the following funds as the major operating funds:  General Fund, Public Works 
Administration Fund, Library Fund, Water Fund, Sewer Fund, Street Fund and Swimming 
Pool Fund.  If you have any questions, please let me know. 
 
Departmental activity: 
 
Utility Billing:           December 2012                     January 2013 
 Number of Bills sent out      2,625                                 2,619 
 Delinquent Notices sent out        469                              472 
 Courtesy Delinquent Notices sent to Landlords      231                  228 
           Notified of Impending Shut off & Penalty                120                                    112 

Customers with Interrupted Services Non-Payment    17          21 
           Services still Disconnected                                            0                                        0 
 
Accounts Payable: 
 Number of Checks Issued                    183        122 
 Total Amount of Checks                $478,075.89               $195,679.44 
 
Accounts Receivable: 
 Number of Invoices Sent Out             5                             13
 Total Amount of Invoices          $3,915.00       $7,975.49 
  
 
  
 
  



CITY OF STAYTON
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2013

GENERAL FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 02/08/2013     11:10AM       PAGE: 1

REVENUE

PROPERTY TAXES 1,552,684.40 1,708,922.00 156,237.60 90.9
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 3,800.73 7,200.00 3,399.27 52.8
GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 375.00 1,500.00 1,125.00 25.0
FRANCHISE FEES 383,193.82 626,000.00 242,806.18 61.2
LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 24,503.28 16,000.00 (                8,503.28) 153.2
FINES & FORFEITURES 23,419.48 20,500.00 (                2,919.48) 114.2
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 119,935.89 163,200.00 43,264.11 73.5
INTEREST (                2,847.95) 1,000.00 3,847.95 (284.8)
MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 200,966.65 385,425.00 184,458.35 52.1

2,306,031.30 2,929,747.00 623,715.70 78.7

EXPENDITURES

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 177,424.23 411,000.00 233,575.77 43.2
ADMINISTRATION 253,791.04 461,973.00 208,181.96 54.9
POLICE 1,026,306.19 1,866,232.00 839,925.81 55.0
PLANNING 70,833.56 138,224.00 67,390.44 51.3
COMMUNITY CENTER 26,934.46 56,798.00 29,863.54 47.4
PARKS 80,802.87 141,576.00 60,773.13 57.1
STREET LIGHTING 52,848.69 103,915.00 51,066.31 50.9

1,688,941.04 3,179,718.00 1,490,776.96 53.1



CITY OF STAYTON
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2013

PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 02/08/2013     11:10AM       PAGE: 2

REVENUE

INTEREST 107.82 100.00 (                       7.82) 107.8
MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 206,537.65 415,000.00 208,462.35 49.8

206,645.47 415,100.00 208,454.53 49.8

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 80 219,045.12 438,423.00 219,377.88 50.0

219,045.12 438,423.00 219,377.88 50.0



CITY OF STAYTON
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2013

LIBRARY FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 02/08/2013     11:10AM       PAGE: 3

REVENUE

PROPERTY TAXES 126,680.42 134,700.00 8,019.58 94.1
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 36,328.50 80,450.00 44,121.50 45.2
GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 150.00 30,000.00 29,850.00 .5
LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 8,050.75 12,300.00 4,249.25 65.5
FINES & FORFEITURES 9,710.41 15,000.00 5,289.59 64.7
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,118.00 1,100.00 (                     18.00) 101.6
INTEREST 237.90 200.00 (                     37.90) 119.0
MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 64,750.00 131,100.00 66,350.00 49.4

247,025.98 404,850.00 157,824.02 61.0

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 80 248,751.71 444,912.00 196,160.29 55.9

248,751.71 444,912.00 196,160.29 55.9



CITY OF STAYTON
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2013

WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 02/08/2013     11:10AM       PAGE: 4

REVENUE

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 1,179,859.77 1,745,000.00 565,140.23 67.6
LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 19,157.50 29,000.00 9,842.50 66.1
INTEREST 3,274.42 3,500.00 225.58 93.6
MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 258.07 11,000.00 10,741.93 2.4

1,202,549.76 1,788,500.00 585,950.24 67.2

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 86 1,531,250.93 2,324,761.00 793,510.07 65.9

1,531,250.93 2,324,761.00 793,510.07 65.9



CITY OF STAYTON
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2013

SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 02/08/2013     11:10AM       PAGE: 5

REVENUE

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 1,588,511.23 2,626,680.00 1,038,168.77 60.5
INTEREST 7,741.52 9,000.00 1,258.48 86.0
MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 47,315.42 2,500.00 (              44,815.42) 1892.6

1,643,568.17 2,638,180.00 994,611.83 62.3

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 86 1,216,170.54 3,405,469.00 2,189,298.46 35.7

1,216,170.54 3,405,469.00 2,189,298.46 35.7



CITY OF STAYTON
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2013

STREET FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 02/08/2013     11:10AM       PAGE: 6

REVENUE

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 50,085.38 84,000.00 33,914.62 59.6
LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 3.61 .00 (                       3.61) .0
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 597,125.14 861,119.00 263,993.86 69.3
INTEREST 245.76 250.00 4.24 98.3
MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 13.65 250.00 236.35 5.5

647,473.54 945,619.00 298,145.46 68.5

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 80 529,457.78 977,462.00 448,004.22 54.2

529,457.78 977,462.00 448,004.22 54.2



CITY OF STAYTON
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2013

SWIMMING POOL FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 02/08/2013     11:10AM       PAGE: 7

REVENUE

PROPERTY TAXES 146,566.56 153,400.00 6,833.44 95.6
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 59,365.17 105,000.00 45,634.83 56.5
GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 16.00 20,000.00 19,984.00 .1
INTEREST 183.01 300.00 116.99 61.0
MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 38,165.06 79,000.00 40,834.94 48.3

244,295.80 357,700.00 113,404.20 68.3

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 86 200,605.87 408,958.00 208,352.13 49.1

200,605.87 408,958.00 208,352.13 49.1



 

 
 
M E M O R A N D U M  
 

TO:                Mayor Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:            Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:      Monthly Crime Rate Comparison Statistical Sheets 
   
DATE:  February 19, 2013 
 
Below you will see the stats for the Police Department for the month of January. The month of 
January was very busy. There were several arrests made in connection with several large 
incidents such as the burglary at Master Craft and a very large forgery “ring”. 
 
 Jan. 

2013 
Year to Date 

2013 
Jan. 
2012 

Year to Date 
2012 

     
Police Activity 737 737 790 790 
     
Investigated Incidents 347 347 274 274 
     
Citations/Warning 216 216 332 332 
     
Traffic Accidents 9 9 13 13 
     
Arrests 96 96 51 51 
     
Reserve Volunteer Hours 325.25 325.25 286.5 286.5 
     
Citizen Volunteer Hours 63.5 63.5 N/A N/A 
     
Peer Court Referrals: 3 3 5 5 
        
        
 







   
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

MONTHLY OPERATING REPORT 
 
 
 
 

TO:       Mayor A. Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council  
 
FROM:  Jennifer Russell, Administrative Assistant 
 
THRU:  Dave Kinney, Public Works Director 
       
DATE:  February 19, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:   January Monthly Operating Report 
 
 
KEY ACTIVITIES STATUS 
 
• WWTP Facility Effluent flows: 48.59 million gallons were treated during January. The highest 

flow was 2.94 million gallons on January 30th, and the lowest flow was 1.23 
million gallons on January 23rd. The average flow was 1.73 million gallons. 
Total rainfall for January was 4.15 inches. 4.38 tons of dewatered biosolids were 
produced. 

 
• WTP Highest production day was 3,036,000 on the January 19th. 
 
• Water System City crews replaced 3 meters. Cleaned # 1 filter bed. Repaired a water line for the 

Pine St Pump Station operations. Potholes for the waterline project on Jefferson 
St 

 
• Streets  Swept 134 curb miles and removed approximately 66 cubic yards of material.  
    
 Parks Court ordered Community Service: 24 hours 

 
• Building Permits   

            Permit Type Issued SDC’s Paid
New Single Family Dwelling 1 $11,065.00 
Residential Building Addition/Alteration/Other 0 0 
Commercial Building Addition/Alteration/Other 6 $32,656.00 
Electrical 2 0 
Mechanical  1 0 
Plumbing 0 0 

TOTAL 10 $43,721.00 
One (1) Residential SDC = $11,065 

 
Public Works Monthly Operating Report  Page 1 of 1 
February 19, 2013 



   
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

MONTHLY OPERATING REPORT 
 
 
 
 

TO: Mayor Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council  
 
FROM: Rebekah Meeks, Pool Manager 
   
DATE: February 19, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: January Pool Monthly Operating Report 
 
SALES

 Jan  2013 
SALES 

2012-2013 
YTD 

Jan  2012 
SALES 

2012-2013 
YTD 

Swim Lessons $         80.00 $    7,475.25 $           0.00 $    7,367.55

Daily Receipts $    1,799.91  $  14,561.08 $    2,840.90 $  19,772.83

Pool Rentals $    2,513.00 $    9,475.00 $    1,100.00 $    5,843.00

Pool Vending $         88.43 $       934.31 $       129.25 $    1,322.00

Memberships $    4,685.50 $  21,112.19 $    3,985.50 $  17,701.64

Lifeguard Training $       410.00 $       445.00 $           0.00 $           0.00

Other $         0.00 $           5.00 $           0.00 $           0.00

TOTAL $  9,576.84 $58,693.33 $  8,055.65  $52,007.02
Target revenue above general fund and levy subsidies is $108,500.  YTD sales 
represent approximately 54% of that target. 

 
        

 
Pool Monthly Operating Report   
February19, 2013 



 
 M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

                                     

TO:  Mayor Scott Vigil and Stayton City Councilors  
 
FROM: Louise Meyers 
 
DATE: February 19, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: Library Director’s Report, January Activities 
  
 
Updates: 
 
In partnership with the Oregon Library Association, we will be participating in a new program 
called the Oregon Library Passport Program. This is a statewide program, and is intended to help 
those who commute between cities or for those people travelling for vacation. Any patron in 
good standing that has a library card from a participating library will be able to go to another 
participating library and get a library card which will allow checkout at that library. Items must 
be returned to the owning library and no costs will be involved. Any fines must be paid to that 
library. For more information or to see a list of participating libraries go to website at 
www.librariesoforegon.org. 
 
The Library Foundation is planning an event called the Santiam Canyon Father Daughter Dance. 
It will occur on April 13th at the Community Center.  
 
AARP will be providing tax assistance on Thursdays at the library in March and April. This is 
free and on a walk-in basis. Anyone is welcome, not just seniors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.librariesoforegon.org/


CHECKOUTS 13,918 11,223 10,448 12,667 11,707 9,573 13,050 73,616 82,586 12%

Non-resident cards             $1,046.00 $692.00 $307.00 $705.00 $1,647.00 $325.00 $655.00 $6,565.00 $5,377.00 -18%

Fines: overdue books        $866.00 $1,011.00 $1,903.00 $1,129.00 $1,535.00 $696.20 $921.70 $7,954.00 $8,061.90 1%

Room fees                        $109.00 0 $526.25 $49.50 $538.25 $648.00 $566.00 $784.00 $2,437.00 211%

Fees-cards and  lost books $776.00 $140.00 $299.00 $127.00 $171.00 $283.00 $84.20 $1,547.00 $1,880.20 22%

Total $16,850.00 $17,756.10 5%

REFERENCE QUESTIONS

Reference questions 559 528 461 543 561 376 506 2,286 3,534 55%

Telephone 302 346 290 327 292 246 328 2,001 2,131 6%

Total 4,287 5,665 32%

INTERNET USE 1,946 1,837 1,482 1,580 1,507 1,526 1,640 12,829 11,518 -10%

PROGRAM ATTENDANCE

Children/teens 827 224 199 341 252 183 356 2,762 2,382 -14%

Adults 350 79 100 185 134 101 193 2,050 1,142 -44%

Outreach 75 57 212 828 675 499 739 2,086 3,085 48%

Total 6,898 6,609 -4%

MEETING ROOM 
ATTENDANCE

1,217 341 617 1,126 532 284 865 6,182 4,982 -19%

PATRON VISITS 9,383 8,069 6,721 8,194 7,441 6,355 8,194 54,802 54,357 -1%

INCOME Received

2012 - 2013 Monthly Library Statistics 
March April

% 
Change

2011-12JuneMaySept. 2012-13 YTDJuly August Feb.Dec. Jan.Oct. Nov.



Comment Forms 
and Other 
Documents 

Distributed at the 
Council Meeting 




	Stayton Letter.pdf
	2013-02 - Stayton Personnel Manual.pdf
	Personnel Manual Cover.pub
	Personnel Manual

	EMPLOYEE CERTIFICATE OF RECEIPT OF PERSONNEL HANDBOOK.doc
	Stayton Personnel Manual (January 2013).doc




